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                                                               580B(Amounts are rounded down to the nearest million yen) 

  
581B1．Financial Results for the Fiscal Period Ended August 31, 2014 (from March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014) 

582B(1) Operating Results                                [Percentages indicate period-on-period changes] 

 583BOperating revenues 584BOperating income 585BOrdinary income 586BNet income 
587BPeriod ended 

588BAugust 31, 2014 
589BFebruary 28, 2014 

590BMillions of yen  %   
 591B9,322  [15.4] 
 592B8,080  [11.1] 
 

593BMillions of yen  %   
 594B4,911  [1.2] 
 595B4,852  [12.8] 

 

596BMillions of yen  %   
 597B3,973  [(2.4)] 
 598B4,069  [14.7] 

 

599BMillions of yen  %   
 600B3,971  [(2.4)] 
 601B4,068  [14.7] 

 
 

 

 602BNet income  
per unit 

603BReturn on  
unitholders’ equity 

604BOrdinary income to 
total assets 

605BOrdinary income to 
operating revenues 

606BPeriod ended 
607BAugust 31, 2014 

608BFebruary 28, 2014 

609B Yen 
610B1,893 
611B1,974 

612B% 
613B3.0 
614B3.3 

615B% 
616B1.4 
617B1.7 

618B% 
619B42.6 
620B50.4 

 
621B(2) Distributions 

 

622BDistributions 
 (excluding OPD*)  

623BOptimal payable distribution 
624B(OPD) 

625BDistributions 
(including OPD) 

626BPayout 
ratio 

627BDistributions 
to net assets 

628BPer Unit 629BTotal 630BPer Unit 631BTotal 632BPer Unit 633BTotal 

634BPeriod ended 
635BAugust 31, 2014 

636BFebruary 28, 2014 

637B Yen 
638B1,893 
639B1,939 

   
   

641BMillions of yen 
642B3,970 
643B4,067 

 

644B Yen 
645B283 
646B251 

 

647BMillions of yen 
648B593 
649B526 

650BYen 
651B2,176 
652B2,190 

 

653BMillions of yen 
654B4,564 
655B4,593 

656B% 
657B100.0 

658B99.9 

659B% 
660B3.0 
661B3.1 

662B* “OPD” stands for “Optimal Payable Distribution” that means distributions in excess of retained earnings. 
663B(Note 1) Payout ratio for the period ended February 28, 2014 was calculated as follows since new investment units were issued 

during the period:  
 664BPayout ratio ＝ Total distributions (excluding OPD) / Net income (loss) ×100 

665BPayout ratio is rounded down to the first decimal place. 
666B(Note 2) Payout ratio and distributions to net assets ratio are calculated on the basis of excluding OPD.  
667B(Note 3) Retained earnings decreased at a rate of 0.004 and 0.005 for the periods ended August 31, 2014 and February 28, 2014, 

respectively, due to OPD (refund of investment). These rates are calculated based on Article 23, Paragraph 1 (3) of the 
Order for Enforcement of the Corporation Tax Act.  
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668B(3) Financial Position 

 669BTotal assets 670BNet assets 
671BUnitholders’ equity to 

total assets 672BNet assets per unit 
673BPeriod ended 

674BAugust 31, 2014 
675BFebruary 28, 2014 

676BMillions of yen 
677B293,223 
678B256,107 

 

679BMillions of yen 
680B133,388 
681B134,011 

   

682B% 
683B45.5 
684B52.3 

 
 

685BYen 
686B63,588 
687B63,884 

 
688B(4) Cash Flows  

 
689BNet cash provided by 
(used in) operating 

activities 

690BNet cash provided by 
(used in) investing 

activities 

691BNet cash provided by 
(used in) financing 

activities 

692BCash and cash 
equivalents at the end of 

the period 
693BPeriod ended 

694BAugust 31, 2014 
695BFebruary 28, 2014 

696B Millions of yen 
697B6,666 
698B4,765 

 
   

699B Millions of yen 
700B(36,291) 
701B(27,228) 

 
   

702B Millions of yen 
703B32,011 
704B17,808 

   

705B Millions of yen 
706B9,201 
707B6,814 

 
708B2．Earnings Forecast for the Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015)  
and for the Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015) 

709B                                 [Percentages indicate period-on-period changes] 

 710BOperating 
revenues 

711BOperating 
income 

712BOrdinary 
income 

713BNet  
714Bincome 

715BDistributions 
per unit 

(excluding OPD)  

716BOPD per 
unit 

717BDistributions 
per unit 

(including OPD) 
718BPeriod ending 

719BFebruary 28, 2015 
720BAugust 31, 2015 

721BMillions of yen [%] 
 722B10,967 [17.6] 
 723B10,962 [(0.0)] 

724BMillions of yen [%] 
 725B5,790 [17.9] 
 726B5,616 [(3.0)] 

727BMillions of yen [%] 
 728B4,662 [17.4] 
 729B4,486 [(3.8)] 

730BMillions of yen [%] 
 731B4,661 [17.4] 

732B4,484 [(3.8)] 

733BYen     
734B1,949 
735B1,875 

736BYen     
737B294 
738B296 

739BYen     
740B2,243 
741B2,171 

742B(Reference) Estimated net income per unit:  for the fiscal period ending February 28, 2015 1,950 yen 
 743Bfor the fiscal period ending August 31, 2015 1,875 yen 
 
744B* Other 

745B(1) Changes in accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and retroactive restatement 
746B(a) Changes in accounting policies due to revisions to accounting standards 

and other regulations:  
747BNone 

748B(b) Changes in accounting policies due to other reasons:  749BNone 
750B(c) Changes in accounting estimates: 751BNone 
752B(d) Retroactive restatement: 753BNone 

 
754B(2) Number of investment units issued and outstanding 

755B(a) Number of investment units issued and outstanding, including treasury units: 
 756BAs of August 31, 2014 757B2,097,700 Units 758BAs of February 28, 2014 759B2,097,700 Units 

760B(b) Number of treasury units: 
 761BAs of August 31, 2014 762B0 Units 763BAs of February 28, 2014  764B0 Units 

 
 

765B(Note) Please refer notes to “Per Unit Information” on page 38 for the number of investment units used as the basis for 
calculating the net income per unit.  
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766B* The Status of Statutory Audit 

767BAt the time of disclosure of this report of financial results, the audit procedures for the accompanying financial statements under 
the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act are in process.  
 
768B* Appropriate use of the forecast of financial results and other special matters 

769BThe forward-looking statements in this material are based on the information currently available to us and certain assumptions 
we believe reasonable. Actual operating performance may differ substantially due to various factors. Furthermore, those statements 
do not guarantee the amount of future distributions and distributions in excess of earnings. Please refer to “Assumptions 
Underlying Earnings Forecasts for the 6th Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015) 
and for the 7th Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015)” on page 15-17 for assumptions 
regarding the forward-looking statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This is an English language translation of the original Japanese announcement of the financial statements (“Kessan Tanshin”). This 

translation is provided for information purpose only. Should there be any discrepancy between this translation and the Japanese original, 

the Japanese original shall prevail. 
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770B1. Structure and Formation of Investment Corporation 

 

771BThe following summarizes the structure and formation of GLP J-REIT as well as the names and 
relationships of its related parties as of the date of this document. 
 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

772B(Note): Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited, GLP Singapore Pte. Ltd. and GLP J-REIT Master Lease Godo Kaisha 
is each regarded as “Specified Related Party” as defined in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act (the “Act”) 
since: (i) Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited and GLP Singapore Pte. Ltd. are the indirect holding 
companies of GLP Japan Advisors Inc. and (ii) GLP J-REIT Master Lease Godo Kaisha is conducting or has 
conducted transactions specified under Article 29-3 Paragraph 3, Item 4 (Real Estate Lending Transactions) of the 
Order for Enforcement of the Act and thus is considered as an “interested party” of GLP Japan Advisors Inc.  

773BType of contracts 

(1) 774BAsset Management Agreement 
(2) 775BAsset Custody Agreement /General Administration Agreement /Transfer Agency Agreement 
(3) 776BFinancial Agency Agreement 
(4) 777BRight-of-First-Look Agreement 
(5) 778BSponsor Support Agreement  
779B(Note) Details of contractual relationship with other specified related parties, if any, are described below. 

GLP J-REIT 

J-REIT 

GLP Japan Advisors 
Inc. 

(1) 

(5) 

Asset Manager 

Specified Related Party: 
Sponsor Parent 

Global Logistic 
Properties Limited 

(2) 

(4) 

Specified Related Party: 
Sponsor 

Global Logistic 
Properties Inc. Auditor 

KPMG AZSA LLC 

Board of Directors 

Executive Director: Masato Miki 
Supervisory Director: Toraki Inoue 
Supervisory Director: Kota Yamaguchi 

General Meeting of Unitholders 

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 
Banking Corporation 

Custodian,  

General Administrator  

and Transfer Agent  

for Investment Units 

Other Specified Related 
Parties (Note) 

 

(3) 
Sumitomo Mitsui  

Banking Corporation 
 

The Bank of Tokyo- 
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 

Administrator  

for Investment Corporation 

Bonds 
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780BNames, Operational Roles and Business Functions of Parties in the Structure 
 

781BName 782BOperational Role 783BBusiness Function 

 784BGLP J-REIT 785BInvestment Corporation 786BGLP J-REIT is a real estate investment corporation managing 
assets by primarily investing in real estate and other assets and 
seeking steady income and stable growth of investment assets in 
the medium to long term. 

 787BGLP Japan Advisors Inc.  788BAsset Manager 789BPursuant to the Asset Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) 
(item (1) in the table above), GLP J-REIT designates GLP Japan 
Advisors Inc. as the Asset Manager to manage its assets in 
accordance with the terms as well as investment policy determined 
by GLP J-REIT. 
790BBased on the Agreement, the Asset Manager provides the following 
services: (i) managing investment assets of GLP J-REIT, (ii) 
managing GLP J-REIT’s financing, (iii) periodical reporting to 
GLP J-REIT on assets under management, (vi) formulating 
investment strategy for assets under management, and (v) all other 
services requested by GLP J-REIT relating to items (i) to (vi). 

 791BMitsubishi UFJ Trust 
and Banking 
Corporation 

792BCustodian 793BPursuant to the Asset Custody Agreement (item (2) in the table 
above), GLP J-REIT designates Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking 
Corporation as its Custodian to provide custodial services. 

  794BGeneral Administrator  795BPursuant to the General Administration Agreement (item (2) in the 
table above), GLP J-REIT designates Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 
Banking Corporation as its General Administrator to perform: (i) 
the general administrative services (of the administrative tasks 
prescribed in Article 117, Item 4 of the Investment Trust Act, all 
tasks except the maintenance of unitholders’ registry), (ii) 
calculation services (as set out in Article 117, Item 5 of the 
Investment Trust Act), (iii) administration of accounting records 
(administrative tasks prescribed in Article 117, Item 6 of the 
Investment Trust Act, and Article 169, Paragraph 2, Item 6 of the 
Ordinance for Enforcement of the Act on Investment Trusts and 
Investment Corporations (Ordinance of the Prime Minister’s Office 
No. 129, 2000) (hereinafter “Investment Trust Act Enforcement 
Ordinance”)), and (vi) administration of tax payments 
(administrative tasks prescribed in Article 117, Item 6 of the 
Investment Trust Act and Article 169, Paragraph 2, Item 7 of the 
Investment Trust Act Enforcement Ordinance).  
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781BName 782BOperational Role 783BBusiness Function 

 796BMitsubishi UFJ Trust 
and Banking 
Corporation 

797BTransfer Agent for 
Investment Units 
 

798BPursuant to the Transfer Agency Agreement (item (2) in the table 
above), GLP J-REIT designates Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking 
Corporation as its Transfer Agent for Investment Units to provide 
services including (i) preparation, administration and maintenance 
of unitholders’ registry and other records, (ii) tasks relating to 
administration and record keeping, (iii) dispatch of convocation 
notices of General Meetings of Unitholders, (vi) preparation and 
tallying of voting documents, and (v) administration of payment 
distributions to unitholders, etc.  

 799BSumitomo Mitsui 
Banking Corporation 

800BAdministrator for 
Investment Corporation 
Bond 

801BPursuant to the Financial Agency Agreement (Item (3) in the table 
above) for the 1st Unsecured Investment Corporation Bonds (with 
special pari passu conditions among specified investment 
corporation bonds), GLP J-REIT designates Sumitomo Mitsui 
Banking Corporation as its Administrator for Investment 
Corporation Bond to perform services including (i) issuing agent, 
(ii) payment agent, (iii) administrating bondholders’ requests and 
(vi) record keeping of bondholders’ registry. 

 802BThe Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, 
Ltd. 

803BAdministrator for 
Investment Corporation 
Bond 

804BPursuant to the Financial Agency Agreement (Item (3) in the table 
above) for the 2nd Unsecured Investment Corporation Bonds (with 
special pari passu conditions among specified investment 
corporation bonds), GLP J-REIT designates The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. as its Administrator for Investment 
Corporation Bond to perform services including (i) issuing agent, 
(ii) payment agent, (iii) administrating bondholders’ requests and 
(vi) record keeping of bondholders’ registry.   
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805BSpecified Related Parties of GLP J-REIT 
 

806BName 807BRelationship 808BDetails of Relationship 

 809BGlobal Logistic 
Properties Limited 
(hereinafter “GLP”) 
 

810BIndirect holding 
company of Asset 
Manager 
 
811BSponsor Parent 

812BGLP owns 100% of the issued shares of Global Logistic Properties 
Holdings Limited and is the ultimate parent company of the Asset 
Manager. 
813BPursuant to the Right-of-First-Look Agreement (Item (4) in the 
table above), GLP provides a right-of-first-look to the Asset 
Manager with respect to the properties that GLP group companies 
owns as of the date of this document.  

 814BGlobal Logistic 
Properties Inc. 
815B(hereinafter “GLPI”) 

816BParent company of  
Asset Manager 
 
817BSponsor 

818BGlobal Logistic Properties Inc. (“GLPI”) is the parent company of 
the Asset Manager with 98.0% ownership of its issued shares. 
819BPursuant to the Sponsor Support Agreement (item (5) in the table 
above) with the Asset Manager, GLPI provides sponsor support.  
820BAdditionally, based on its Trademark License Agreement with GLP 
J-REIT and Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited, GLPI 
agrees that GLP J-REIT operates under GLP group name and logo 
for its trademarks and properties owned. 
821BGLPI performs property management services for assets owned by 
GLP J-REIT based on the Property Management Agreement 
between the Asset Manager and the Trustee. 

 822BGlobal Logistic 
Properties Holdings 
Limited 
823B(hereinafter “GLPHL”) 
 

824BIndirect holding 
company of Asset 
Manager 

825BGlobal Logistic Properties Holdings Limited (“GLPHL”) owns 
100% of the issued shares of GLP Singapore Pte. Ltd. and thus is an 
indirect holding company of Asset Manager. 
826BBased on its Trademark License Agreement with GLP J-REIT and 
GLPI, GLPHL agrees and acknowledges that GLPI is permitted to 
sublicense the Licensed Trademarks. 

 827BGLP Singapore Pte. 
Ltd. 

828BIndirect holding 
company of Asset 
Manager 

829BGlobal Singapore Pte. Ltd. owns 100% of the issued shares of GLPI 
and thus is an indirect holding company of Asset Manager. It does 
not have a contractual relationship with GLP J-REIT. 

 830BGLP J-REIT Master 
Lease Godo Kaisha 
831B(hereinafter “GLP 
J-REIT MLGK”) 

832BRegarded as an 
“interested party” of 
Asset Manager since it is 
conducting or has 
conducted transactions 
specified under Article 
29-3, Paragraph 3, Item 
4 (Real Estate Lending 
Transactions) of Order 
for Enforcement of the 
Financial Instruments 
and Exchange Act. 

833BGLP J-REIT Master Lease Godo Kaisha (“GLP J-REIT MLGK”) is 
regarded as an “interested party” of the Asset Manager (Since GLPI 
is its sole shareholder, GLP J-REIT MLGK falls under the category 
of “Parent Company, etc.” of the Asset Manager under the Act).  
834BGLP J-REIT MLGK earns revenue from master lease agreements 
for assets held by GLP J-REIT. The average of this revenue for all 
fiscal periods, starting with this period, for next three years will be 
approximately 20% or more of GLP J-REIT’s total operating 
revenue from prior year. 
835BGLP J-REIT MLGK enters into the Master Lease Agreement for 
assets held by GLP J-REIT as well as other related agreements with 
the Trustee. 
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836B2. Management Policy and Operating Conditions 
 
(1) 837BManagement Policy 

838BDisclosure is omitted, as there are no significant changes from the investment policy, investment targets and 
distribution policy described in the most recent Securities Report filed on May 26, 2014. 
 

(2) 839BOperating Conditions 
840B[Overview of the 5th Fiscal Period] 

(i) 841BBrief Background of GLP J-REIT 
842BGLP J-REIT is a real estate investment corporation (J-REIT) specializing in logistics facilities that 
primarily invests in modern logistics facilities. GLP J-REIT was founded in accordance with the Act on 
Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations (hereinafter the “Investment Trust Act”) with GLP 
Japan Advisors Inc. as the founder. It had its units listed on the Real Estate Investment Trust Market of 
the Tokyo Stock Exchange on December 21, 2012 (securities code: 3281). Subsequently, GLP J-REIT 
issued new investment units through a public offering in September 2013 and through a third party 
allocation in October 2013. The number of investment units issued and outstanding as of the end of the 
current fiscal period was 2,097,700 units with unitholders’ net capital of 129,415 million yen. Moreover, 
as of the end of the current fiscal period, GLP J-REIT owns 44 properties (total acquisition price of 
285,061 million yen).  

843B(Note)  New investment units were issued through a public offering on September 1, 2014 and through 
a third party allocation on September 24, 2014. Please refer to “[Outlook of Next Fiscal Period], 
(iii) Significant Subsequent Events, (a) Issuance of new investment units” for details. 

 

844B(ii) Investment Environment and Business Performance 
845BDuring the current fiscal period, the overall Japanese economy is on a recovery trend. Although the 
reactionary effect was witnessed from a last-minute rise in demand before a consumption tax increase in 
April 2014, such effect has gradually lessened thanks to the effects of government policy measures.  

846BThe favorable financing environment in the real estate market has led to a number of asset acquisitions 
by J-REIT and increases of its capital through public offerings, while transactions and investments by 
private placement funds and foreign investors continued to be active. 

847BIn the leasing market for logistics facilities, although there was an increase in the new supply of 
large-scale logistics facilities, the new supply space was steadily taken up against the backdrop of the 
expansion of the third-party logistics (3PL) business and the e-commerce market. 

848BUnder these conditions, GLP J-REIT acquired the following four properties: (1) two properties (total 
acquisition price 28,500 million yen) in March 2014 pursuant to the Trust Beneficial Interest Transfer 
Agreement entered on September 3, 2013 and (2) two properties (total acquisition price 7,750 million 
yen) in April 2014 pursuant to the Trust Beneficial Interest Transfer Agreement entered in March 2014. 
Thus, GLP J-REIT managed to continuously expand the size of its assets and steadily grow its portfolio 
while maintaining the quality of its asset portfolio. 

849BMoreover, while providing services which satisfy the needs of its portfolio property tenants, GLP 
J-REIT actively strove to increase rents in an environment of strong demand for logistics facilities. Thus, 
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GLP J-REIT successfully renewed all lease contracts with the same condition or higher rents during the 
four consecutive fiscal periods since its listing on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. 

850BAs a result of these operations, GLP J-REIT owns 44 properties with the total acquisition price of 
285,061 million yen and the total leasable area of 1,490,181.13m2 as of the end of the current fiscal 
period. The occupancy rate of the entire portfolio continued to remain stable, and at the end of the 
current fiscal period, it was at the high level of 99.9%. 

 

3381B(iii) Overview of Financing 
851BGLP J-REIT maintains a target Loan-To-Value ratio (hereinafter “LTV”) of 45% to 55% and operates 
with a stable financial condition. Under the favorable financing environment, GLP J-REIT also pursues 
to lengthen debt maturity and reduce its borrowing costs. 

852BIn the current fiscal period, GLP J-REIT entered into new loan agreements in the amount of 28,920 
million yen in March and 7,700 million yen in April 2014 for the purpose of acquiring aforementioned 
properties. GLP J-REIT achieved to lengthen debt maturities while reducing borrowing costs, by 
refinancing 5,700 million yen with new loan contracts in June 2014 and issuing 2,000 million yen of the 
2nd 10-year-maturity investment corporation bond in July 2014. Besides, GLP J-REIT further 
strengthened its financial stability by utilizing interest rate swap contracts to convert variable interest 
rates of some loans into fixed rates for a long term.  

853BAs a result of the above, outstanding interest-bearing liabilities as of the end of the current fiscal period 
totaled 149,920 million yen (outstanding loans 141,920 million yen, outstanding investment corporation 
bonds 8,000 million yen), and the ratio of interest-bearing liabilities to total assets (LTV) was 51.1%. 

854BGLP J-REIT was assigned the following credit rating as of the end of the current fiscal period. 

855BCredit Rating Agency 856BType 857BRating 858BOutlook 
859BJCR 

860B(Japan Credit Rating 
Agency, Ltd.) 

861BLong-term issuer rating 862BAA- 863BStable 

864BJCR 
865B(Japan Credit Rating 

Agency, Ltd.) 
866BBond rating (Note 1) 867BAA- 868B– 

869BJCR 
870B(Japan Credit Rating 

Agency, Ltd.) 
871BBond rating (Note 2) 872BAA- 873B– 

874B(Note 1) It is the rating for the 1st Unsecured Investment Corporation Bond. 
875B(Note 2) It is the rating for the 2nd Unsecured Investment Corporation Bond. 

 
876B(iv) Overview of Financial Results and Cash Distribution 

877BAs a result of these management efforts, GLP J-REIT reported operating revenues of 9,322 million yen, 
operating income of 4,911 million yen, ordinary income of 3,973 million yen and net income of 3,971 
million yen for the current fiscal period.  

878BAs for cash distribution for the current fiscal period, in accordance with the distribution policy set forth 
in its Articles of Incorporation, GLP J-REIT decided to distribute 3,970,946,100 yen. This cash 
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distribution is eligible for the special tax treatment on investment corporations (Article 67-15 of the Act 
on Special Measures Concerning Taxation) and represents the multiple of the number of investment 
units issued and outstanding (2,097,700 units) from unappropriated retained earnings. Accordingly, 
distribution per unit for the current fiscal period was 1,893 yen. 

879BIn addition, GLP J-REIT intends to distribute funds in excess of the amount of retained earnings 
(Optimal Payable Distribution (hereinafter “OPD”)) for each fiscal period on a continuous basis, in 
accordance with the distribution policy set forth in the Articles of Incorporation (Note). Based on this, 
GLP J-REIT decided to distribute 593,649,100 yen, an amount almost equivalent to 30% of 
depreciation (1,985 million yen) for the current fiscal period, as a refund of investment. As a result, the 
amount of OPD per unit was 283 yen.  

880B(Note) GLP J-REIT intends to distribute funds in excess of the amount of retained earnings that do not 
exceed the amount obtained by deducting capital expenditure for the accounting period 
immediately before the period in which the distribution is made from an amount equal to 
depreciation expenses for the corresponding period. The amount obtained by deducting 342 
million yen of capital expenditure for the current fiscal period from 1,985 million yen of 
depreciation expenses for the period is 1,643 million yen. 

 881BFor the time being, GLP J-REIT intends to make an OPD distribution in the amount equal to 
approximately 30% of depreciation expenses for the accounting period immediately before the 
period in which the distribution is made, unless GLP J-REIT determines that the OPD payment 
would have a negative impact on its long-term repair and maintenance plan or financial 
conditions in light of the estimated amount of capital expenditure for each fiscal period based on 
the plan.  

 882BWith respect to all 44 properties held as of the end of the current fiscal period, the six-month 
period average of the total amount of the emergency short-term repair and maintenance expenses 
and the medium- to long-term repair and maintenance expenses, which are set forth in the 
Engineering Reports dated September 19, 2012, August 20, 2013 and March 20, 2014 for each 
property prepared by Deloitte Tohmatsu Property Risk Solution Co., Ltd., is 358 million yen.  

  

883B[Outlook of Next Fiscal Period] 
(i) 884BOperational Environment in Next Fiscal Period 

885BAlthough some weakness remains in the market due to the reaction after a last-minute rise in demand 
before a consumption tax rate increase, the Japanese economy is expected to recover owing to the 
effectiveness of various government policy measures. While favorable investment environment is 
expected to continue in the short term, it is necessary to continuously monitor the risk of prolonged 
reactionary effect from a last-minute rise in demand before a consumption tax increase, the trends of the 
economies of the emerging countries and the resource-rich countries, the outlook of European debt 
crisis, and the recovery pace of the U.S. economy. 

886BLeasable logistics facilities transactions have exhibited an upward trend due to rising investor interest in 
such transactions. This trend is expected to continue for a while. The leasing market is also expected to 
continue steady expansion because: (1) while the supply of new modern logistics facilities is expected 
to continue, the current growth in leasing demand among tenant companies is expected to absorb the 
vacancies from such facilities and (2) market shows solid trends in rents.   
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887BWith regard to the financing environment, financial institutions are expected to maintain their current 
positive lending policies, and this financial environment will further ensure a steady capital inflow into 
the J-REIT market.  

(ii) 888BFuture Management Policy and Matters To Be Addressed 
889BUnder these circumstances, GLP J-REIT is committed to implementing the following measures to 
further its growth over the medium to long term. 

890BIn its internal growth strategy, while enjoying the stable cash flows that characterize its portfolio of 
assets, GLP J-REIT will negotiate for higher rents for lease contracts subject to renewal, giving 
consideration to market rents, upon the expiration of lease period. At the same time, GLP J-REIT will 
manage to enhance the value of existing assets by appropriate maintenance of such assets and capital 
expenditures. 

891BAs for external growth strategy, the Asset Manager of GLP J-REIT has entered into a right-of-first-look 
agreement with Global Logistic Properties Limited, which is the sponsor parent, and its group 
companies (hereinafter “GLP Group”), allowing GLP J-REIT to preferentially obtain information 
regarding the sale of logistics facilities with regard to the 24 properties wholly owned by the GLP 
Group (as of the date of this document). Taking advantage of this agreement as a valuable pipeline and 
continuously collecting information from third parties regarding prospective properties, GLP J-REIT 
will pursue further expansion of its portfolio size.  

892BIn terms of financial strategy, GLP J-REIT will examine such financing activities as extending debt 
maturities through refinancing, issuing investment corporation bonds and raising funds through public 
offerings, while closely monitoring the trends in the financing environment. By doing so, GLP J-REIT 
will work to achieve the optimal balance of financing methods and financing costs.  

3382B(iii) Significant Subsequent Events  
(a) 893BIssuance of new investment units 

894BAt the Board of Directors’ Meetings held on August 11 and August 20, 2014, GLP J-REIT resolved 
to issue the following new investment units. The proceeds from new investment units through a 
public offering were fully collected on September 1, 2014 while the proceeds from new investment 
units through a third-party allocation were fully collected on September 24, 2014. 

895B[Issuance of new investment units through a public offering] 
896BNumber of new investment units to be issued: 897B281,709 units 

(113,216 units for domestic market, 
168,493 units for international market) 

898BIssue price (Offer price): 899B113,827 yen per unit 
900BTotal amount issued (total offering amount): 901B32,066,090,343 yen 
902BAmount to be paid in (issue amount): 903B109,947 yen per unit 
904BTotal amount to be paid in (total issue amount): 905B30,973,059,423 yen 
906BPayment date 907BSeptember 1, 2014 
908BInitial date of distribution calculation: 909BSeptember 1, 2014 
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910B[Issuance of new investment units through a third-party allocation] 
911BNumber of new investment units issued: 912B11,322 units 
913BAmount to be paid in (issue amount): 914B109,947 yen per unit 
915BTotal amount to be paid in (total issue amount): 916B1,244,819,934 yen 
917BPayment date 918BSeptember 24, 2014 
919BInitial date of distribution calculation: 920BSeptember 1, 2014 
921BUnderwriter: 922BNomura Securities Co., Ltd. 

 
923B[Purpose of funding] 
924BThe funds raised through the public offering were appropriated for the acquisition of beneficiary 
rights of real estate in trust stated below in “(b) Acquisition of Assets”. The funds raised through 
the third-party allocation will be kept as cash on hand, of which, 1,090 million yen was 
appropriated to repay a long-term loan before its maturity of January 4, 2015. The amount was 
paid on September 30, 2014. 

 
(b) 925BAcquisition of assets 

926BGLP J-REIT acquired the nine properties shown below in the form of trust beneficiary interests 
(with the total acquisition price of 53,830 million yen). The acquisition price (the purchase price 
stated in the Sales and Purchase Agreement of Beneficiary Rights of Real Estate in Trust) excludes 
acquisition costs such as direct expenses for acquisition, property-related taxes and consumption 
taxes. 

927BProperty name 928BAcquisition date 929BLocation 930BSeller 
931BAcquisition 

price 
932B(Millions of yen) 

933BGLP Tokyo II 934BSeptember 2, 
2014 935BKoto-ku, Tokyo 936BTokyo 2 Logistics Special 

Purpose Company 937B36,100 

938BGLP Okegawa 939BSeptember 2, 
2014 

940BOkegawa, 
Saitama 

941BOkegawa Logistics Special 
Purpose Company 942B2,420 

943BGLP Kadoma 944BSeptember 2, 
2014 945BKadoma, Osaka 946BAzalea Special Purpose 

Company 947B2,430 

948BGLP Seishin 949BSeptember 2, 
2014 950BKobe, Hyogo 951BSeishin Logistics Special 

Purpose Company 952B1,470 

953BGLP Fukusaki 954BSeptember 2, 
2014 

955BKanzaki-gun, 
Hyogo 

956BFukusaki Logistics Special 
Purpose Company 957B3,640 

958BGLP Ogimachi 959BSeptember 2, 
2014 960BSendai, Miyagi 961BAzalea Special Purpose 

Company 962B1,460 

963BGLP Hiroshima 964BSeptember 2, 
2014 

965BHiroshima, 
Hiroshima 

966BAzalea Special Purpose 
Company 967B3,740 

968BGLP Fukuoka 969BSeptember 2, 
2014 

970BFukuoka, 
Fukuoka 

971BAzalea Special Purpose 
Company 972B1,520 

973BGLP Chikushino 974BSeptember 2, 
2014 

975BChikushino, 
Fukuoka 

976BAzalea Special Purpose 
Company 977B1,050 

978BTotal 
979B－ 980B－ 981B－ 982B53,830 
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(c) 983BBorrowing of funds 
984BGLP J-REIT borrowed funds for acquisition of specified assets and related costs as stated in “(b) 
Acquisition of Assets” above. 

985BLender 
986BLoan 

amount 
987B(Millions of yen) 

988BInterest rate 
989BLoan 

execution 
date 

990BRepayment 
date 

991BRepayment 
method 992BCollateral 

993BSumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation 994B990 

995BJBA yen 
1month 

TIBOR plus 
0.2% 

996BSeptember 
2, 2014 

 

997BFebruary 
28, 2015 

998BLump-sum 
repayment 

on 
repayment 

date 

999BUnsecured 
1000Bnot  

guaranteed  

1001BThe Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 
UFJ, Ltd. 1002B660 

1003BJBA yen 
1month 

TIBOR plus 
0.2% 

1004BFebruary 
28, 2015 

1005BMizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi 
UFJ Trust and Banking 
Corporation, Citibank Japan 
Ltd., The Bank of Fukuoka, 
Ltd., The Norinchukin Bank, 
Resona Bank, Limited., 
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, 
Limited, Shinsei Bank, Limited, 
Aozora Bank, Ltd., and The 77 
Bank, Ltd.  

1006B3,700 

1007BJBA yen 
1month 

TIBOR plus 
0.175% 

1008BSeptember 
2, 2016 

1009BSumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation, The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., 
Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi 
UFJ Trust and Banking 
Corporation, The Bank of 
Fukuoka, Ltd., Development 
Bank of Japan Inc. The 
Norinchukin Bank, Resona 
Bank, Limited. and Sumitomo 
Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited 

1010B13,600 

1011BJBA yen 
3month 

TIBOR plus 
0.36% 

1012B(Note 1) 

1013BSeptember 
2, 2022 

1014BSumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation and The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 

1015B2,700 

1016BJBA yen 
3month 

TIBOR plus 
0.93% 

1017B(Note 2) 

1018BSeptember 
2, 2027 

1019BTotal 1020B21,650 1021B- 1022B- 1023B- 1024B- 1025B- 
1026B(Note 1): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been 

substantially fixed at 0.862%. 
1027B(Note 2): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been 

substantially fixed at 1.854%. 
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1028B(iv) Earnings Forecast 
1029BGLP J-REIT has made the following earnings forecast for the fiscal period ending February 28, 2015 
(from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015) and the fiscal period ending August 31, 2015 (from 
March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015). Please refer the forecast assumptions to “Assumptions Underlying 
Earnings Forecasts for the 6th Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to 
February 28, 2015) and the 7th Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 
31, 2015)” below. 

1030B                                [Percentages indicate period-on-period changes] 

 1031BOperating 
revenues 

1032BOperating 
income 

1033BOrdinary 
income 

1034BNet  
1035Bincome 

1036BDistributions 
per unit 

(excluding OPD)  

1037BOPD per 
unit 

1038BDistributions 
per unit 

(including OPD) 
1039BPeriod ending 

1040BFebruary 28, 2015 
1041BAugust 31, 2015 

1042BMillions of yen [%] 
 1043B10,967 [17.6] 
 1044B10,962 [(0.0)] 

1045BMillions of yen [%] 
 1046B5,790 [17.9] 
 1047B5,616 [(3.0)] 

1048BMillions of yen [%] 
 1049B4,662 [17.4] 
 1050B4,486 [(3.8)] 

1051BMillions of yen [%] 
 1052B4,661 [17.4] 

1053B4,484 [(3.8)] 

1054BYen     
1055B1,949 
1056B1,875 

1057BYen     
1058B294 
1059B296 

1060BYen     
1061B2,243 
1062B2,171 

 
3383B(Note) The forecast figures are the current figures calculated based on certain assumptions, and the actual net income, 

distribution per unit, OPD per unit and other figures may vary due to changes in circumstances surrounding GLP 
J-REIT. In addition, the forecast is not a guarantee of the amount of distributions or OPD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3384B(This part is intentionally left blank)
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Assumptions Underlying Earnings Forecasts for the 6th Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 
(from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015) and the 7th Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 
(from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015)  

1063BItem 1064BAssumption 

524BAccounting period 3385BThe 6th Fiscal Period: from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015 (181 days) 
3386BThe 7th Fiscal Period: from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015 (184 days)  

525BPortfolio assets 

1065B・ It is assumed that the portfolio assets will consist of 53 properties which include beneficiary 
rights in trust assets mainly of real estate held by GLP J-REIT (44 properties) as of the end of 
the 5th Fiscal Period and the following beneficiary rights of real estate in trust newly acquired 
on September 2, 2014 (hereinafter the “Nine September Properties”): GLP Tokyo II, GLP 
Okegawa, GLP Kadoma, GLP Seishin, GLP Fukusaki, GLP Ogimachi, GLP Hiroshima, GLP 
Fukuoka and GLP Chikushino. The forecast also assumes that there will be no changes in 
portfolio assets (acquisition of new assets, disposal of portfolio assets, etc.) after these 
acquisitions until the end of August 2015. In practice, however, changes such as acquisitions of 
new assets or disposals of assets other than those properties stated above may occur. 

526BNumber of investment units 
issued and outstanding 

1066B・It is assumed that the number of investment units issued and outstanding as of the date of this 
document will be 2,390,731 units.  

527BInterest-bearing 
liabilities 

1067B・The outstanding interest bearing debts of GLP J-REIT as of the end of the 5th Fiscal Period are 
149,920 million yen.  

・ 1068BGLP J-REIT borrowed 21,650 million yen, including short-term loans of 1,650 million yen, 
(hereinafter the “September 2014 Borrowing”) on September 2, 2014 to acquire the Nine 
September Properties.  

・ 1069BOn September 30, 2014, GLP J-REIT repaid 1,090 million yen of a long term loan with the  
maturity date of January 4, 2015, by using funds raised by the issuance of new investment units 
through a third party allocation associated with the secondary offering through over allotment. 

・ 1070BThe forecast assumes that the following debts will be refinanced through loans or investment 
corporation bonds during the 6th Fiscal Period: (1) 18,510 million yen, the remaining balance of 
a long-term loan with the maturity date of January 4, 2015 and (2) short-term loans of 
September 2014 Borrowing.  

1071B・The forecast assumes that 2,960 million yen of long-term loans payable will be repaid at the end 
of August 2015 by using cash on hand since consumption taxes corresponding to the 6th Fiscal 
Period are scheduled to be refunded during the 7th Fiscal Period. 

1072B・It is assumed that LTV as of February 28, 2015 (the 6th Fiscal Period) is 49.1% where LTV as of 
August 31, 2015 (the 7th Fiscal Period) is 48.7%. The following formula is used to compute 
LTV. 

1073BLTV=(Balance of interest-bearing liabilities / Total assets) x 100 

528BOperating revenues 1074B・Concerning operating revenues, the forecast assumes that there is no delinquent rent payment by 
tenants. 

529BOperating expenses 

1075B・With respect to taxes on property and equipment (fixed asset tax, city planning tax and 
depreciable asset tax on real estate, etc. hereinafter “property-related taxes”) held by GLP 
J-REIT, of the tax amount assessed and determined, the amount corresponding to the relevant 
accounting period is recognized as rental expenses. However, if real estate or other assets is 
newly acquired and an adjusted amount of property-related taxes for the year under the same 
accounting period (the “amount equivalent to property-related taxes”) arises between GLP 
J-REIT and the transferor, the relevant adjusted amount is included in the cost of acquisition of 
the real estate, etc. Accordingly, with regard to property-related taxes for two properties 
acquired in March 2014 (GLP Urayasu III and GLP Komaki), two properties acquired in April 
2014 (GLP Tatsumi IIa and GLP Tatsumi IIb) and the Nine September Properties, no amount 
will be recognized as tax expenses for the 6th Fiscal Period, and the total amount of 227 million 
yen for 13 properties will be recognized in the 7th Fiscal Period. The total amounts of 
property-related taxes included in the acquisition costs of the Nine September Properties are 92 
million yen. 

・ 1076BTaxes and dues are expected to be 742 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 969 million yen 
for the 7th Fiscal Period. 

1077B(Continued) 
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1063BItem 1064BAssumption 

530BItem 1078BAssumption 

531BOperating expenses 

1079B(Continued) 
・ 1080BRepair and maintenance expenses are expected to be 156 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 

42 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period. 
・ 1081BProperty and facility management fees are expected to be 401 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period 

and 399 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period. 
・ 1082BDepreciation is expected to be 2,345 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 2,363 million yen 

for the 7th Fiscal Period. 
1083B・ With respect to expenses other than depreciation, of rental expenses which are the main operating 

expenses, such expenses are calculated by reflecting expense changing factors to the past actual 
expenses. 

1084B・ Actual amounts of repair and maintenance expenses of each accounting period may be 
significantly different from the estimated amounts due to the following reasons: repair and 
maintenance (1) may arise urgently due to property damages occurred by unpredictable incidents; 
(2) generally varies significantly by fiscal period and (3) may not arise regularly.  

1085B・ Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on acquisition costs including 
incidental expenses and additional capital expenditure in the future. 

532BNOI (Net Operating 
Income) from leasing 

1086B・NOI (the amount calculated by deducting property-related expenses, excluding depreciation, from 
operating revenues) are expected to be 9,270 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 9,143 
million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period. 

533BNon-operating 
expenses 

・ 552BThe total amounts of interest expenses on loans, interest expenses on investment corporation 
bonds, amortization of investment corporation bonds issuance expenses and other finance-related 
expenses are expected to be 1,007 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 1,039 million yen for 
the 7th Fiscal Period. Investment corporation bonds issuance expenses are amortized monthly for 
the period from issuance to redemption. 
553BInvestment unit issuance expenses are amortized monthly for three years from occurrence, and 
amortization expenses are expected to be 89 million yen for each of the 6th Fiscal Period and the 
7th Fiscal Period. 

・ 554BThe forecast also assumes 29 million yen of costs that may temporarily incur in connection with 
issuance of new investment units for the 6th Fiscal Period. 

534BDistributions per unit 
535B(excluding OPD) 

 

1087B・Distribution per unit is calculated in accordance with the distribution policy set forth in the Articles 
of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT.  

1088B・Distributions per unit (excluding OPD) may change due to various factors including changes in 
portfolio assets, changes in rental revenues in connection with changes in tenants, unexpected 
repair, changes in interest rates and additional issuance of investment units. 

1089BOptimal payable 
distribution (OPD)  

per unit  

1090B・Optimal payable distribution per unit is calculated in accordance with the policy on cash 
distributions in excess of retained earnings provided in the Management Guidelines which are the 
internal policy of the Asset Manager and is calculated by assuming distribution of approximately 
30% of respective depreciation arising in the 6th Fiscal Period and the 7th Fiscal Period. 

1091B・Depreciation may vary from the current expected amount due to change in portfolio assets, the 
amount of incidental expenses incurred and the amount of capital expenditure. Therefore, the total 
amount of optimal payable distribution calculated on the basis of depreciation may also vary due 
to these and other various factors. In addition, in order to maintain the value of assets held by GLP 
J-REIT, in the event that GLP J-REIT is to pay out OPD, GLP J-REIT sets the maximum as the 
amount of depreciation less capital expenditure incurred in the accounting period in which the 
concerned depreciation was recognized. Therefore, when emergency capital expenditure arises 
from unforeseen factors causing building damage and other, the amount of OPD per unit may 
decrease. Moreover, when the appraisal LTV provided below exceeds 60%, GLP J-REIT will not 
pay out OPD. 

1092B・Appraisal LTV (%) = A/B x 100 (%) 
1093BA= Interest-bearing liabilities balance (including investment corporation bonds balance and 
short-term investment corporation bonds balance) at the end of the period + Deposit release 
amount at the end of the period 
1094BB= Total amount of appraisal value or research price of portfolio assets at the end of period + 
Cash and deposits balance at the end of period – Scheduled total amount of distributions of 
earnings – Scheduled total amount of OPD 

1095B・ Furthermore, the scheduled total amount of distributions of earnings and scheduled total amount of 
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1063BItem 1064BAssumption 
OPD are the figures of the most recent fiscal period. 

 
1096BItem 1097BAssumption 

1098BOther 

1099B・ The forecast assumes that there will be no revision of laws and regulations, tax systems, 
accounting standards, listing regulations of Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc., rules of The Investment 
Trusts Association, Japan, (“JITA”), etc. that will impact the forecast figures above. 

1100B・ The forecast assumes that there will be no unforeseen material change in general economic trends 
and real estate market conditions, etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1101B(This part is intentionally left blank) 
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1102B3. Financial Statements 
1103B(1) Balance Sheets 

1104B                               (Unit: Thousand yen) 
 1105BPrior Period 

1106BAs of February 28, 2014 
1107BCurrent Period 

1108BAs of August 31, 2014 
1109BAssets   

1110BCurrent assets   
1111BCash and deposits 1112B3,017,637 1113B4,910,518 
1114BCash and deposits in trust 1115B3,796,866 1116B4,290,515 
1117BOperating accounts receivable 1118B39,315 1119B184,297 
1120BPrepaid expenses 1121B304,122 1122B329,564 
1123BDeferred tax assets 1124B36 1125B34 
1126BConsumption taxes receivable                1127B524,483  1128B55,667 
1129BOther current assets  1130B400 1131B－ 
1132BTotal current assets 1133B7,682,862 1134B9,770,598 

1135BNoncurrent assets   
1136BProperty and equipment   

1137BBuildings in trust 1138B103,209,070 1139B113,702,163 
1140BAccumulated depreciation 1141B(3,615,924) 1142B(5,469,312) 
1143BBuildings in trust, net 1144B99,593,146 1145B108,232,851 

1146BStructures in trust 1147B2,348,908 1148B2,771,918 
1149BAccumulated depreciation 1150B(218,693) 1151B(339,426) 
1152BStructures in trust, net 1153B2,130,214 1154B2,432,491 

1155BMachinery and equipment in trust 1156B51,909 1157B51,909 
1158BAccumulated depreciation 1159B(9,724) 1160B(13,903) 
1161BMachinery and equipment in trust, net 1162B42,185 1163B38,006 

1164BTools, furniture and fixtures in trust 1165B83,233 1166B99,299 
1167BAccumulated depreciation 1168B(14,541) 1169B(22,058) 
1170BTools, furniture and fixtures in trust, net 1171B68,691 1172B77,241 

1173BLand in trust 1174B145,602,917 1175B171,556,870 
1176BConstruction in progress 1177B6,892 1178B17,749 
1179BTotal property and equipment, net 1180B247,444,047 1181B282,355,212 

1182BInvestments and other assets   
1183BInvestment securities 1184B1,600 1185B1,600 
1186BLong-term prepaid expenses 1187B654,067 1188B832,668 
1189BSecurity deposits 1190B10,000 1191B10,000 
1192BTotal investments and other assets 1193B665,667 1194B844,268 

1195BTotal noncurrent assets 1196B248,109,715 1197B283,199,480 
1198BDeferred assets   

1199BInvestment unit issuance expenses 1200B282,476 1201B209,855 
1202BInvestment corporation bond issuance costs 1203B31,999   1204B44,045 

1205BTotal deferred assets 1206B314,476 1207B253,901 
1208BTotal Assets 1209B256,107,053 1210B293,223,980 

1211B                          
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1212B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 1213BPrior Period 
1214BAs of February 28, 2014 

1215BCurrent Period 
1216BAs of August 31, 2014 

562BLiabilities   
1217BCurrent liabilities    

1218BOperating accounts payable  1219B97,594 500B

168,180 
1220BShort-term loans payable 1221B3,800,000 501B

－ 
1222BCurrent portion of long-term loans payable 1223B19,600,000 502B

19,600,000 
1224BAccounts payable  1225B894,357 503B

1,123,745 
1226BAccrued expenses  1227B6,646 504B

15,698 
1228BIncome taxes payable  1229B1,158 505B

1,191 
1230BAdvances received  1231B1,392,633 506B

1,631,787 
1232BDeposits received 1233B－ 507B

75,900 
1234BCurrent portion of tenant leasehold and security deposits 1235B55,354 508B

77,783 
555BTotal current liabilities  1236B25,847,745 509B

22,694,288 
556BNoncurrent liabilities    

557BInvestment corporation bonds 1237B6,000,000 510B

8,000,000 
558BLong-term loans payable  1238B83,900,000 511B

122,320,000 
559BTenant leasehold and security deposits 1239B6,170,130 512B

6,542,803 
560BTenant leasehold and security deposits in trust 1240B178,019 513B

278,019 
561BTotal noncurrent liabilities  1241B96,248,149 514B

137,140,822 
563BTotal Liabilities 1242B122,095,895 

515B

159,835,111 
564BNet Assets    

1243BUnitholders’ equity    
1244BUnitholders’ capital  1245B130,572,839 516B

130,572,839 
1246BDeduction from unitholders’ capital 1247B(630,331) 517B

(1,156,853) 
1248BUnitholders’ capital, net 1249B129,942,508 518B

129,415,985 
1250BRetained earnings    

1251BUnappropriated retained earnings  1252B4,068,649 519B

3,972,883 
1253BTotal retained earnings  1254B4,068,649 520B

3,972,883 
1255BTotal unitholders’ equity  1256B134,011,158 521B

133,388,869 
1257BTotal Net Assets *1 1258B134,011,158 522B

133,388,869 
1259BTotal Liabilities and Net Assets  1260B256,107,053 523B

293,223,980 
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1261B(2) Statements of Operations 

                                               1262B(Unit: Thousand yen) 
 1263BPrior Period 1264BCurrent Period 

1265BFrom September 1, 2013 1266BFrom March 1, 2014 
1267BTo February 28, 2014 1268BTo August 31, 2014 

1269BOperating revenues    
1270BRental revenues *1 1271B7,836,430 1272B8,986,824 
1273BOther rental revenues *1 1274B244,480 1275B335,258 
1276BTotal operating revenues  1277B8,080,911 1278B9,322,083 

1279BOperating expenses    
1280BRental expenses *1 1281B2,323,089 1282B3,438,466 
1283BAsset management fee 1284B819,258 1285B881,580 
1286BAsset custody fee  1287B4,147 1288B4,447 
1289BAdministrative service fees  1290B11,722 1291B11,612 
1292BDirectors’ remuneration  1293B3,720 1294B3,720 
1295BAudit fee  1296B14,000 1297B14,000 
1298BTaxes and dues  1299B44 1300B128 
1301BOther operating expenses  1302B52,148 1303B56,491 
1304BTotal operating expenses  1305B3,228,131 1306B4,410,446 

1307BOperating income 1308B4,852,780 1309B4,911,637 
1310BNon-operating income   

1311BInterest income  1312B968 1313B774 
1314BInterest on refund of consumption taxes 1315B－ 1316B1,477 
1317BTotal non-operating income  1318B968 1319B2,252 

1320BNon-operating expenses    
1321BInterest expense  1322B518,652 1323B665,692 
1324BInterest expenses on investment corporation bonds 1325B77 1326B16,050 
1327BAmortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs 1328B542 1329B3,513 
1330BBorrowing related expenses 1331B169,029 1332B181,063 
1333BAmortization of investment unit issuance expenses 1334B72,620 1335B72,620 
1336BOffering costs associated with the issuance of investment 

units 1337B22,100 1338B1,315 

1339BOthers, net 1340B1,311 1341B609 
1342BTotal non-operating expenses  1343B784,334 1344B940,864 

1345BOrdinary income  1346B4,069,415 1347B3,973,024 
1348BIncome before income taxes 1349B4,069,415 1350B3,973,024 
1351BIncome taxes-current  1352B1,355 1353B1,348 
1354BIncome taxes-deferred  1355B(28) 1356B1 
1357BTotal income taxes 1358B1,326 1359B1,350 
1360BNet income 1361B4,068,088 1362B3,971,673 
1363BAccumulated earnings brought forward 1364B561 1365B1,209 
1366BUnappropriated retained earnings 1367B4,068,649 1368B3,972,883 
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1369B(3) Statements of Changes in Net Assets 

 
1370BPrior period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014) 

1371B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 

1372BUnitholders’ equity 

1373BTotal Net 
Assets 1374BUnitholders’ 

capital 

1375BDeduction 
from 

unitholders’ 
capital 

1376BUnitholders’ 
capital, net 

1377BRetained earnings 
1378BTotal 

unitholders’ 
equity 

1379BUnappropriated 
retained 
earnings  

1380BTotal 
retained 
earnings 

1381BBalance at the 
beginning of the 
period 

1382B107,501,739 1383B(154,366) 1384B107,347,372 1385B3,547,322 1386B3,547,322 1387B110,894,695 1388B110,894,695 

1389BChanges of items 
during the period        

1390BIssuance of new 
investment units 1391B23,071,100  1392B23,071,100   1393B23,071,100 1394B23,071,100 

1395BDistributions in 
excess of retained 
earnings 

 1396B(475,964) 1397B(475,964)   1398B(475,964) 1399B(475,964) 

1400BDistributions of 
earnings    1401B(3,546,761) 1402B(3,546,761) 1403B(3,546,761) 1404B(3,546,761) 

1405BNet income    1406B4,068,088 1407B4,068,088 1408B4,068,088 1409B4,068,088 
1410BTotal changes of items 

during the period 1411B23,071,100 1412B(475,964) 1413B22,595,135 1414B521,327 1415B521,327 1416B23,116,463 1417B23,116,463 

1418BBalance at the end of 
the period *1 1419B130,572,839 1420B(630,331) 1421B129,942,508 1422B4,068,649 1423B4,068,649 1424B134,011,158 1425B134,011,158 

 
1426BCurrent period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014) 

1427B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 

1428BUnitholders’ equity 

1429BTotal Net 
Assets 1430BUnitholders’ 

capital 

1431BDeduction 
from 

unitholders’ 
capital 

1432BUnitholders’ 
capital, net 

1433BRetained earnings 
1434BTotal 

unitholders’ 
equity 

1435BUnappropriated 
retained 
earnings  

1436BTotal 
retained 
earnings 

1437BBalance at the 
beginning of the 
period 

1438B130,572,839 1439B(630,331) 1440B129,942,508 1441B4,068,649 1442B4,068,649 1443B134,011,158 1444B134,011,158 

1445BChanges of items 
during the period        

1446BDistributions in 
excess of retained 
earnings 

 1447B(526,522) 1448B(526,522)   1449B(526,522) 1450B(526,522) 

1451BDistributions of 
earnings    1452B(4,067,440) 1453B(4,067,440) 1454B(4,067,440) 1455B(4,067,440) 

1456BNet income    1457B3,971,673 1458B3,971,673 1459B3,971,673 1460B3,971,673 
1461BTotal changes of items 

during the period 1462B－ 1463B(526,522) 1464B(526,522) 1465B(95,766) 1466B(95,766) 1467B(622,289) 1468B(622,289) 

1469BBalance at the end of 
the period *1 1470B130,572,839 1471B(1,156,853) 1472B129,415,985 1473B3,972,883 1474B3,972,883 1475B133,388,869 1476B133,388,869 
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1477B(4) Statements of Distributions  

  1478B(Unit: Yen) 
 489BPrior Period 490BCurrent Period 

 1479BFrom September 1, 2013 1480BFrom March 1, 2014 
 1481BTo February 28, 2014 1482BTo August 31, 2014 

1483BI  Unappropriated retained earnings  
1484B4,068,649,852 1485B3,972,883,391 

1486BII  Distributions in excess of retained earnings   

1487BDeduction from unitholders’ capital 
1488B526,522,700 1489B593,649,100 

1490BIII Distributions 
1491B4,593,963,000 

1492B4,564,595,200 
1493B[Distributions per unit] 

1494B[2,190] 1495B[2,176] 
  1496BOf which, distributions of earnings 

1497B4,067,440,300 1498B3,970,946,100 
1499B[Of which, distributions of earnings per unit] 

1500B[1,939] 1501B[1,893] 
 1502BOf which, distributions in excess of retained earnings 

1503B526,522,700 1504B593,649,100 
1505B[Of which, distributions in excess of retained earnings  

per unit] 
1506B[251] 1507B[283] 

1508BIV Retained earnings carried forward 1509B1,209,552 1510B1,937,291 

1511BCalculation method of distribution amount  1512BIn accordance with Section 34.1 of 
the bylaws set forth by GLP J-REIT 
for distributions of cash dividends, 
the amount of the distributions shall 
be limited to the amount of net 
income but more than 90% of 
income available for dividends 
defined in Section 67.15 of the 
Special Taxation Measures Act.   

1513BAccordingly, GLP J-REIT declared a 
distribution amount of 
4,067,440,300 yen, which was the 
amount equivalent to the maximum 
integral multiples of the number of 
investment units issued and 
outstanding as of the end of the 
period. 

 1514B(Continued) 

 

 1515BIn accordance with Section 34.1 of 
the bylaws set forth by GLP J-REIT 
for distributions of cash dividends, 
the amount of the distributions shall 
be more than 90% of income 
available for dividends defined in 
Section 67.15 of the Special 
Taxation Measures Act.   

1516BAccordingly, GLP J-REIT declared a 
distribution amount of 
3,970,946,100 yen, which was the 
amount equivalent to the maximum 
integral multiples of the number of 
investment units issued and 
outstanding as of the end of the 
period. 

1517B(Continued) 
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1518B(Continued) 

1519BFurthermore, based on the distribution 
policy as defined in Section 34.2 of its 
bylaws, GLP J-REIT will make an 
Optimal Payable Distribution (the 
“OPD”), which represents a distribution 
of funds in excess of retained earnings, 
as a refund of its investment, in each 
fiscal period on a continuing basis.  

1520BThus, GLP J-REIT declared the OPD of 
526,522,700 yen, as a refund of 
investment, which was determined as 
follows: (1) the amount not exceeding 
the upper limit of 1,275,293,218 yen 
calculated by deducting capital 
expenditure of 480,296,839 yen from 
depreciation expense of 1,755,590,057 
yen, and (2) approximately 30% of the 
depreciation expense of 1,755,590,057 
yen for the period.  

1521B(Continued) 

1522BFurthermore, based on the distribution 
policy as defined in Section 34.2 of its 
bylaws, GLP J-REIT will make an 
Optimal Payable Distribution (the 
“OPD”), which represents a distribution 
of funds in excess of retained earnings, 
as a refund of its investment, in each 
fiscal period on a continuing basis.  

1523BThus, GLP J-REIT declared the OPD of 
593,649,100 yen, as a refund of 
investment, which was determined as 
follows: (1) the amount not exceeding 
the upper limit of 1,643,302,626 yen 
calculated by deducting capital 
expenditure of 342,513,135 yen from 
depreciation expense of 1,985,815,761 
yen, and (2) approximately 30% of the 
depreciation expense of 1,985,815,761 
yen for the period.  

 

1524B(Note) For the time being, GLP J-REIT intends to make an OPD distribution in the amount equal to approximately 30% 
of depreciation expenses for the accounting period immediately before the period in which the distribution is 
made, unless GLP J-REIT determines that the OPD payment would have a negative impact on its long-term 
repair and maintenance plan or financial conditions in light of the estimated amount of capital expenditure for 
each fiscal period based on the plan. 
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1525B(5) Statements of Cash Flows  

1526B                                              (Unit: Thousand yen) 
 1527BPrior Period 1528BCurrent Period 

1529BFrom September 1, 2013 1530BFrom March 1, 2014 
1531BTo February 28, 2014 1532BTo August 31, 2014 

1533BOperating activities:   
1534BIncome before income taxes 1535B4,069,415 1536B3,973,024 
1537BDepreciation  1538B1,755,590 1539B1,985,815 
1540BAmortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs  1541B542 1542B3,513 
1543BAmortization of investment unit issuance expenses 1544B72,620 1545B72,620 
1546BInterest income 1547B(968) 1548B(774) 
1549BInterest expense 1550B518,730 1551B681,742 
1552BDecrease (increase) in operating accounts receivable 1553B940 1554B(144,982) 
1555BDecrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 1556B2,669 1557B(25,442) 
1558BDecrease (increase) in consumption taxes receivable 1559B(524,483) 1560B468,815 
1561BDecrease (increase) in other current assets 1562B(400) 1563B400 
1564BDecrease (increase) in long-term prepaid expenses  1565B78,459 1566B(178,601) 
1567BIncrease (decrease) in operating accounts payable 1568B(14,648) 1569B70,585 
1570BIncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 1571B66,691 1572B117,870 
1573BIncrease (decrease) in consumption taxes payables 1574B(282,961) 1575B－ 
1576BIncrease (decrease) in advances received 1577B225,361 1578B239,154 
1579BIncrease (decrease) in deposits received 1580B(682,167) 1581B75,900 

1582BSub total 1583B5,285,391 1584B7,339,644 
1585BInterest received 1586B968 1587B774 
1588BInterest paid 1589B(520,597) 1590B(672,690) 
1591BIncome taxes paid  1592B(712) 1593B(1,315) 

1594BNet cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1595B4,765,049 1596B6,666,413 
1597BInvesting activities:   

1598BPurchase of property and equipment 1599B(6,872) 1600B(17,660) 
1601BPurchase of property and equipment in trust 1602B(28,157,717) 1603B(36,768,586) 
1604BProceeds from tenant leasehold and security deposits 1605B1,029,200 1606B457,045 
1607BProceeds from tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust 1608B－ 1609B100,000 
1610BRepayments of tenant leasehold and security deposits 1611B(92,862) 1612B(61,943) 

1613BNet cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1614B(27,228,252) 1615B(36,291,144) 
1616BFinancing activities:   

1617BProceeds from short-term loans payable 1618B8,800,000 1619B7,700,000 
1620BRepayments for short-term loans payable 1621B(23,400,000) 1622B(11,500,000) 
1623BProceeds from long-term loans payable 1624B8,500,000 1625B38,420,000 
1626BRepayments for long-term loans payable 1627B(1,000,000) 1628B－ 
1629BProceeds from issuance of investment corporation bonds 1630B6,000,000 1631B2,000,000 
1632BPayments for investment corporation bond issuance costs 1633B(29,454) 1634B(17,011) 
1635BProceeds from issuance of investment units 1636B22,957,887 1637B－ 
1638BPayments of distributions of earnings 1639B(3,544,759) 1640B(4,065,471) 
1641BPayments of distributions in excess of retained earnings 1642B(475,654) 1643B(526,256) 

1644BNet cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1645B17,808,019 1646B32,011,260 
1647BNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1648B(4,655,183) 1649B2,386,529 
1650BCash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1651B11,469,687 1652B6,814,504 
1653BCash and cash equivalents at end of period *1 1654B6,814,504 1655B9,201,033 
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1656B(6) Notes Concerning Going Concern Assumption 

1657B None 
 

1658B(7) Notes Concerning Significant Accounting Policies 

1659B1. Basis and method of valuation 
of assets 

 

1660BSecurities 
1661BAvailable-for-sale securities with no readily determinable market price are stated 

at cost. Cost of securities sold is determined by the moving-average method. 
1662B2. Depreciation of noncurrent 

assets 
1663BProperty and equipment including trust assets 

1664BProperty and equipment are stated at cost, which includes the original purchase 
price and related acquisition costs and expenses. Depreciation of property and 
equipment, including property and equipment in trust, is calculated by the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows: 

    3387BBuildings                2 to 55 years 
    3388BStructures               2 to 57 years 
    3389BMachinery and equipment      6 to 12 years 
    3390BTools, furniture and fixtures      2 to 15 years 

1665B3. Accounting treatment for 
deferred assets 

1666B(1) Investment unit issuance expenses are amortized over three years using the 
straight-line method. 

1667B(2)  Investment corporate bond issuance costs are amortized over the remaining life of 
the bonds using the straight-line method. 

1668B4. Revenue and expense 
recognition 

1669BTaxes on property and equipment 
1670BWith respect to taxes on property and equipment held by GLP J-REIT, of the tax 

amounts assessed and determined, the amounts corresponding to the relevant 
accounting period is accounted for as rental expenses.  

1671BOf the amounts paid for the acquisition of real estate or beneficiary right of real 
estate in trust, the amounts equivalent to property-related tax are capitalized as part 
of the acquisition cost of the relevant property instead of being charged as expenses. 
Capitalized property-related taxes amounted to 47,068 thousand yen for the prior 
period and 147,145 thousand yen for the current period. 

1672B5. Hedge accounting 1673BGLP J-REIT enters into derivative transactions in order to hedge against risks 
defined in its Articles of Incorporation in compliance with their general risk 
management policy. GLP J-REIT uses interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging 
its risk exposure associated with interests on variable rate loans payable. Where 
deferral accounting is generally adopted for hedge transactions, GLP J-REIT applies 
the special accounting treatment to interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge 
accounting and meet the specific matching criteria. Under the special accounting 
treatment, interest rate swaps are not measured at fair value, but the differential paid 
or received under the swap agreements is recognized and included in interest 
expense or income, respectively.  

1674BThe hedge effectiveness for interest rate swaps is omitted since all interest rate 
swaps of GLP J-REIT meet the specific matching criteria for the special accounting 
treatment. 
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1675B6. Cash and cash equivalents as 
stated in the Statements of 
Cash Flows  

1676BCash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and cash in trust, 
readily-available bank deposits, readily-available bank deposits in trust and 
short-term investments that are liquid and realizable with a maturity of three months 
or less when purchased and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

 
1677B7. Other significant matters which 

constitute the basis for 
preparation of financial 
statements 

 

1678B(1) Accounting treatment of beneficiary right of real estate in trust 
1679BAs to beneficiary rights of real estate in trust, all accounts of assets and liabilities 

for assets in trust as well as the related income generated and expenses incurred are 
recorded in the relevant balance sheets and income statement accounts.   

1680BOf which, the following significant trust assets are shown separately on the 
balance sheets.  

1681B(a)  Cash and deposits in trust  
1682B(b) Buildings in trust, structures in trust, machinery and equipment in trust, tools, 

furniture and fixtures in trust and land in trust  
1683B(c)  Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust 

1684B(2) Accounting treatment for consumption taxes 
1685BConsumption taxes withheld and paid are not included in the accompanying 

statements of operations.  
 

 
 
1686B(8) Notes to Financial Statements 
1687B(Notes to Balance Sheets) 

1688BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014)  
1689B*1． Minimum net assets as required by Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment 

Corporations: 50,000 thousand yen. 
 

1690BCurrent Period (As of August 31, 2014) 
1691B*1． Minimum net assets as required by Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment 

Corporations: 50,000 thousand yen. 
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1692B(Notes to Statements of Operations) 

1693B*1. Revenues and expenses generated from the property leasing activities: 
1694B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 
1695BPrior Period 

1696BFrom September 1, 2013 
1697B

 To February 28, 2014 

1698BCurrent Period 
1699BFrom March 1, 2014 

1700B

 To August 31, 2014 
1701BA．Property-related revenues   

1702BRental revenues:    
1703B Rental revenues 

1704B7,618,792 1705B8,723,135 
1706B Common area charges 

1707B217,638 1708B263,689 
1709BTotal 

1710B7,836,430 1711B8,986,824 
1712BOther revenues related to property leasing   

1713BUtility charges 
1714B178,854 1715B230,956 

1716BParking lots  
1717B27,157 1718B28,707 

1719BOthers 
1720B38,469 1721B75,594 

1722BTotal 
1723B244,480 1724B335,258 

1725BTotal property-related revenues 1726B8,080,911 1727B9,322,083 
1728BB．Property-related expenses   

1729BRental expenses:   

1730BTaxes and dues 
1731B－ 1732B742,745 

1733BProperty and facility management fees  
1734B288,406 1735B328,479 

1736BUtilities 
1737B209,312 1738B254,787 

1739BRepairs and maintenance 
1740B15,247 1741B54,802 

1742BCasualty insurance 
1743B14,965 1744B16,334 

1745BDepreciation 
1746B1,755,590 1747B1,985,815 

1748BOthers 
1749B39,566 1750B55,502 

1751BTotal property-related expenses 1752B2,323,089 1753B3,438,466 

1754BC．Operating income from property leasing (A－B) 1755B5,757,822 1756B5,883,616 

   
 
1757B(Notes to Statements of Changes in Net Assets) 

1758B*1. Number of investment units authorized and number of investment units issued and outstanding 

 
1759BPrior Period 

1760BFrom September 1, 2013 
1761B

 To February 28, 2014 

1762BCurrent Period 
1763BFrom March 1, 2014 

1764B

 To August 31, 2014 
1765BNumber of investment units authorized 1766B16,000,000 units 1767B16,000,000 units 
1768BNumber of investment units issued and outstanding 1769B2,097,700 units 1770B2,097,700 units 
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 1771B(Notes to Statements of Cash Flows) 

1772B*1. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents in Statements of Cash Flows to accounts and amounts in the accompanying 
balance sheets  

1773B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 
1774BPrior Period 

1775BFrom September 1, 2013 
1776B

 To February 28, 2014 

1777BCurrent Period 
1778BFrom March 1, 2014 

1779B

 To August 31, 2014 
1780BCash and deposits 1781B3,017,637 1782B4,910,518 
1783BCash and deposits in trust 1784B3,796,866 1785B4,290,515 
1786BCash and cash equivalents 1787B6,814,504 1788B9,201,033 

 
1789B(Leases) 

1790BOperating lease transactions (As Lessor)  
1791B  Future minimum rental revenues 

1792B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 
1793BPrior Period 

1794BAs of February 28, 2014 
1795BCurrent Period 

1796BAs of August 31, 2014 

1797BDue within one year 1798B14,874,364 1799B17,063,214 
1800BDue after one year 1801B51,803,549 1802B54,151,094 
1803BTotal 1804B66,677,914 1805B71,214,309 

 
1806B(Financial Instruments) 

1807B1．Status of financial instruments 
1808B(1) Policy for financial instruments 

1809BGLP J-REIT procures funds for acquisition of assets or repayment of debts through issuance of new investment units, 
bank loans and issuance of investment corporation bonds.  

1810BGLP J-REIT enters into derivative transactions solely for the purpose of reducing interest rate and other risks. GLP 
J-REIT does not use derivative transactions for speculative purposes.  

1811BGLP J-REIT generally invests surplus funds in deposits considering the safety and liquidity of the investment 
although surplus funds could be invested in securities and monetary claims as a matter of policy. 

 
1812B(2) Financial instruments, their risks and risk management system  

1813BDeposits are used for investment of GLP J-REIT’s surplus funds. These deposits are exposed to credit risk, such as 
bankruptcy of the depository financial institution. GLP J-REIT limits credit risk by using only short-term deposits in 
financial institutions with high credit ratings.  

1814BBank loans and investment corporation bonds are made to procure funds for acquisition of properties and refinancing 
of bank loans or investment corporation bonds upon their maturities. GLP J-REIT mitigates the liquidity risk exposure 
upon repayment and redemption of loans by diversifying the maturities and lending institutions, and manages such 
liquidity risk by preparing and monitoring the forecasted cash flows.  

1815BCertain loans are floating rate and exposed to the risk of rising interest rates. GLP J-REIT mitigates such risk by 
maintaining a prudent loan-to-value ratio and stabilizing its financial costs with the use of derivative transactions 
(interest rate swaps) as a hedge. All interest rate swaps meet the specific matching criteria to qualify for the special 
accounting treatment, thus the hedge effectiveness test is omitted. Derivative transactions are executed and managed 
under the Management Guidelines of the Asset Manager.  

 
 
 
 

 
28 



 

 
GLPJ-REIT (3281) 

Financial Results for the fiscal period ended August 31, 2014 
 

  
 
 

1816BTenant leasehold and security deposits and tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust are deposits received from 
tenants. GLP J-REIT is obligated to repay the deposits upon the tenant’s termination of the leased property, thus 
exposed to liquidity risk. GLP J-REIT generally minimizes and manages such risk by holding sufficient funds to make 
the repayments and monitoring its cash flows. 

 
1817B(3) Supplemental explanation regarding fair values of financial instruments 

1818BThe fair value of financial instruments is based on observable market prices, if available. When there is no available 
observable market price, the fair value is reasonably estimated. Since various factors are considered in estimating the 
fair value, different assumptions and factors could result in a range of fair values.  

 
1819B2．Estimated fair value of financial instruments 

1820BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) 
1821BBook value, fair value and difference between the values as of February 28, 2014 are as follows. Financial instruments 

for which fair value is difficult to estimate are excluded from the following table (See Note 2 below). 

1822B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 1823BBook value 1824BFair value 1825BDifference 
1826B(1) Cash and deposits 1827B3,017,637 1828B3,017,637 1829B－ 
1830B(2) Cash and deposits in trust 1831B3,796,866 1832B3,796,866 1833B－ 

1834BTotal assets 1835B6,814,504 1836B6,814,504 1837B－ 

1838B(1) Short-term loans payable 1839B3,800,000 1840B3,800,000 1841B－ 
1842B(2) Current portion of long-term 

loans payable 1843B19,600,000 1844B19,600,000 1845B－ 

1846B(3) Investment corporation bonds 
1847B6,000,000 1848B6,006,000 1849B6,000 

1850B(4) Long-term loans payable 1851B83,900,000 1852B84,536,189 1853B636,189 
1854BTotal liabilities 1855B113,300,000 1856B113,942,189 1857B642,189 

1858BDerivative transactions 1859B－ 1860B－ 1861B－ 

 
1862BCurrent Period (As of August 31, 2014) 

1863BBook value, fair value and difference between the values as of August 31, 2014 are as follows. Financial instruments for 
which fair value is difficult to estimate are excluded from the following table (See Note 2 below). 

1864B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 1865BBook value 1866BFair value 1867BDifference 
1868B(1) Cash and deposits 1869B4,910,518 1870B4,910,518 1871B－ 
1872B(2) Cash and deposits in trust 1873B4,290,515 1874B4,290,515 1875B－ 

1876BTotal assets 1877B9,201,033 1878B9,201,033 1879B－ 
1880B(2) Current portion of long-term 

loans payable 1881B19,600,000 1882B19,600,000 1883B－ 

1884B(3) Investment corporation bonds 
1885B8,000,000 1886B8,042,600 1887B42,600 

1888B(4) Long-term loans payable 1889B122,320,000 1890B123,267,473  1891B947,473  
1892BTotal liabilities 1893B149,920,000 1894B150,910,073 1895B990,073 

1896BDerivative transactions 1897B－ 
1898B(15,106) 1899B(15,106) 

1900B(Note 1) Methods to estimate fair value of financial instruments 
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1901BAssets: 
1902B(1) Cash and deposits (2) Cash and deposits in trust 

1903BDue to the short maturities, the book value of these instruments is deemed a reasonable approximation of 
the fair value; therefore, the book value is used as the fair value.  

1904BLiabilities: 
1905B(1) Short-term loans payable 

1906BDue to the short maturities, the book value of these instruments is deemed a reasonable approximation of 
the fair value; therefore, the book value is used as the fair value. 

1907B(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable (4) Long-term loans payable 
1908BWith respect to long-term loans payable, interest rates of floating-rate loans are periodically adjusted or 

renewed by contract. Thus, the book value of these instruments is deemed a reasonable approximation of 
the fair value, and the book value is, therefore, used as the fair value. The fair value of fixed-rate loans is 
measured by discounting the total principle and interest amount at the current rates that are reasonably 
estimated to be applicable if GLP J-REIT enters into new similar loans. The fair value of interest rate swaps 
under the special accounting treatment is included in long-term loans payable and designated as a hedged 
item. 

1909B(3) Investment corporation bonds 
1910BThe reference value disclosed by the Japan Securities Dealers Association is used as the fair value. 

1911BDerivative transactions: 
1912BPlease refer to “(Derivative Transactions)” described below. 

 

1913B(Note 2) Financial instruments for which fair value is difficult to estimate are as follows: 
1914B(Unit: Thousand yen)  

 
1915BAccount name 1916BPrior Period 

1917BAs of February 28, 2014 
1918BCurrent Period 

1919BAs of August 31, 2014 
 

 
1920BTenant leasehold and security deposits  
1921BTenant leasehold and security deposits in trust 

1922B6,170,130 
1923B178,019 

1924B6,542,803 
1925B278,019 

 
  
 

1926BTotal 1927B6,348,149 1928B6,820,822  
1929BRegarding tenant leasehold and security deposits and tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust, no observable 

market prices are available and the timing of repayments is not reliably estimated. Thus, it is impracticable to 
reasonably estimate their future cash flows and very difficult to estimate their fair value. Therefore, their fair values are 
not disclosed. 

1930B(Note 3) Redemption schedule for monetary claims are as follows: 
1931BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) 

1932B(Unit: Thousand yen) 
  1933BDue within one year  
 1934BCash and deposits 

1935B3,017,637  
 1936BCash and deposits in trust 

1937B3,796,866  
 1938BTotal 

1939B6,814,504  
 

1940BCurrent Period (As of August 31, 2014) 
1941B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

  1942BDue within one year  
 1943BCash and deposits 

1944B4,910,518  
 1945BCash and deposits in trust 

1946B4,290,515  
 1947BTotal 

1948B9,201,033  
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1949B(Note 4) Redemption schedule for long-term loans payable and investment corporation bonds 

1950BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) 
1951B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 1952BDue within 
one year 

1953BDue after one 
to two years 

1954BDue after two 
to three years 

1955BDue after 
three to four 

years 

1956BDue after four 
to five years 

1957BDue after five 
years 

1958BInvestment corporation bonds 
1959B－ 1960B－ 1961B－ 1962B－ 1963B6,000,000 1964B－ 

1965BLong-term loans payable 
1966B19,600,000 1967B23,800,000 1968B3,500,000 1969B24,300,000 1970B－ 1971B32,300,000 

1972BTotal 
1973B19,600,000 1974B23,800,000 1975B3,500,000 1976B24,300,000 1977B6,000,000 1978B32,300,000 

 

1979BCurrent Period (As of August 31, 2014) 
1980B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 1981BDue within 
one year 

1982BDue after one 
to two years 

1983BDue after two 
to three years 

1984BDue after 
three to four 

years 

1985BDue after four 
to five years 

1986BDue after five 
years 

1987BInvestment corporation bonds 
1988B－ 1989B－ 

1990B－ 1991B－ 1992B6,000,000 1993B2,000,000 
1994BLong-term loans payable 

1995B19,600,000 1996B23,800,000 1997B15,580,000 1998B24,300,000 1999B12,300,000 2000B46,340,000 
2001BTotal 

2002B19,600,000 2003B23,800,000 2004B15,580,000 2005B24,300,000 2006B18,300,000 2007B48,340,000 

 
 

2008B(Investment Securities) 
2009BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014) 

2010BNone 
 

2011B(Derivative Transactions) 
2012B1. Derivative transactions for which hedge accounting is not applied 

2013BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014) 
2014BNone 

 
2015B2. Derivative transactions for which hedge accounting is applied 

2016BThe contract and notional amount as of the balance sheet date by hedge accounting method is as follows:  

2017B Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014) 
2018B(Unit: Thousand yen) 

 
2019BHedge accounting 

method 
2020BType of derivative 

transaction 
2021BPrimary 

hedged item 

2022BContract amount and other 
2023BFair 

value 
2024BFair value 

measurement 

 
  2025BDue after 

one year 
 

 
2026BSpecial treatment for 
interest rate swaps 

2027BInterest rate swaps 
2028BReceive floating/ 
pay fix  

2029BLong-term 
loans payable 2030B77,150,000 2031B77,150,000 

2032B(Note 1)  2033B(Note 2) 
 

2034B(Note 1) Interest rate swaps under the special accounting treatment are accounted for as an integral component of long-term loans 

payable designated as hedged items. Thus, their fair value is included in that of long-term loans payable disclosed in 

aforementioned “(Financial Instruments), 2. Estimated fair value of financial instruments, (4) Long-term loans payable.”   

2035B(Note 2) Fair value is measured by the counterparty of the relevant transaction based on market rates.  
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2036B Current Period (As of August 31, 2014) 

2037B(Unit: Thousand yen) 
 

2038BHedge accounting 
method 

2039BType of derivative 
transaction 

2040BPrimary 
hedged item 

2041BContract amount and other 
2042BFair 

value 
2043BFair value 

measurement 

 
  2044BDue after 

one year 
 

 
2045BSpecial treatment for 
interest rate swaps 

2046BInterest rate swaps 
2047BReceive floating/ 
pay fix  

2048BLong-term 
loans payable 

2049B114,990,000 
2050B(Note 1) 

2051B114,990,000 
2052B(Note 1) 

2053B(15,106) 
2054B(Note 2)  

2055B(Note 3) 
 

2056B(Note 1) The amount includes the contract amount of interest rate swap (16,300 million yen) entered on August 29, 2014. The start 

date of the loan that is the hedged item is September 2, 2014.  

2057B(Note 2) The fair value of the aforementioned interest rate swap entered on August 29, 2014 is stated since it is not accounted for as 

an integral component of long-term loan payable under the special accounting treatment due to the fact that no such loan 

payable is not yet recognized as of the fiscal period then ended. Interest rate swaps under the special accounting treatment, 

except for those aforementioned, are accounted for as an integral component of long-term loans payable designated as 

hedged items. Thus, their fair value is included in that of long-term loans payable disclosed in aforementioned “(Financial 

Instruments), 2. Estimated fair value of financial instruments, (4) Long-term loans payable.”   

2058B(Note 3) Fair value is measured by the counterparty of the relevant transaction based on market rates.  

 
2059B(Retirement Benefit Plans) 

2060BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014) 
2061BNone 

 
2062B(Equity in Income) 

2063BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014) 
2064BNo affiliate exists, thus, none to report. 

 
2065B(Asset Retirement Obligation) 

2066BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014) 
2067BNone 
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2068B(Deferred Tax Accounting) 

2069B1. Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities 
2070B(Unit: Thousand yen)  

 
2071BPrior Period 

2072BAs of February 28, 2014 
2073BCurrent Period 

2074BAs of August 31, 2014 

2075BDeferred tax assets    

2076BEnterprise tax payable 2077B36 2078B34 
2079B Total 2080B36 2081B34 

2082BNet deferred tax assets 2083B36 2084B34 
 

2085B2. Reconciliation between Japanese statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate with respect to pre-tax income 
reflected in the accompanying statement of operations for each period is as follows. 

2086B(Unit: %) 

 
2087BPrior Period 

2088BAs of February 28, 2014 
2089BCurrent Period 

2090BAs of August 31, 2014 

2091BStatutory effective tax rate 2092B36.59 2093B36.59 
2094B(Adjustments)   

2095BDistributions deductible for tax purposes 2096B(36.57) 2097B(36.57) 
2098BOther 2099B0.01 2100B0.01 

2101BActual tax rate 2102B0.03 2103B0.03 
 

 
 
2104B(Related Party Transactions) 

2105B1. Transactions and account balances with the parent company and major unitholders 
2106BPrior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014) 

2107BNone 
  

2108BCurrent Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)  
2109BNone 

 
2110B2. Transactions and account balances with affiliates 
2111BPrior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014) 

2112BNone 
  

2113BCurrent Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)  
2114BNone 
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2115B3. Transactions and account balances with companies under common control 
2116BPrior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014)  

2117BClassifi- 
cation 

2118BName of the 
company 2119BLocation 

2120BStated 
capital 

(Thousands 
of yen) 

2121BType of 
business 

2122B% of 
voting 
rights 

(owned) 

2123BBusiness 
relationship 2124BType of transaction 

2125BTransaction 
amount 

(Thousands of yen) 

2126BAccount 
title 

2127BBalance 
(Thousands 

of yen) 

2128BSubsidiary 
of other 
related 

company 

2129BGlobal Logistic 
Properties Inc.  

2130BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2131B100,000 

2132BInvestment 
advisory/ 
agency 

2133B－ 

2134BEntrustment 
of property 
management  
2135BPatent 
license 

2136BProperty management fee 2137B156,077 
2138BOperating 
accounts 
payable 

2139B28,083 

2140BRoyalty fee (Note 2) 2141B7,500 
2142B－ 2143B－ 

2144BLeasing commission 2145B11,865 
2146B－ 2147B－ 

2148BGLP Japan 
Advisors Inc.  

2149BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2150B100,000 2151BAsset 

management 2152B－ 

2153BConcurrently 
serving 
directors 
2154BEntrustment 
of asset 
management 

2155BAsset management fee (Note 2, 3) 2156B901,758 2157BAccounts 
payable 2158B750,017 

2159BGLP Solar Special 
Purpose Company 

2160BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2161B1,630,100 2162BEquipment 

leasing 2163B－ 
2164BRooftop 
leasing 

2165BRental income from rooftop 
leasing (Note 2) 2166B9,860 2167BAdvances 

received 2168B3,367 

2169B(Note 1) Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount but included in the related balance at the end of the period. 

2170B(Note 2) Decisions relating to the terms and conditions of transactions: 

2171B(a) The asset management fee was determined in accordance with the rules prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT.  

2172B(b) The royalty fee was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula proposed by Global 

Logistic Properties Inc.  

2173B(c) The rental income from rooftop leasing was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula 

proposed by GLP Solar Special Purpose Company. 

2174B(d)  Other transactions are determined based on market conditions.  

2175B(Note 3) Asset management fee above includes management fees of 82,500 thousand yen capitalized as part of acquisition costs of properties. 

 
2176BCurrent Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)  

2177BClassifi- 
cation 

2178BName of the 
company 2179BLocation 

2180BStated 
capital 

(Thousands 
of yen) 

2181BType of 
business 

2182B% of 
voting 
rights 

(owned) 

2183BBusiness 
relationship 2184BType of transaction 

2185BTransaction 
amount 

(Thousands of yen) 

2186BAccount 
title 

2187BBalance 
(Thousands 

of yen) 

2188BSubsidiary 
of other 
related 

company 

2189BGlobal Logistic 
Properties Inc.  

2190BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2191B100,000 

2192BInvestment 
advisory/ 
agency 

2193B－ 

2194BEntrustment 
of property 
management  
2195BPatent 
license 

2196BProperty management fee 2197B169,768 
2198BOperating 
accounts 
payable 

2199B29,488 

2200BRoyalty fee (Note 2) 2201B7,500 
2202B－ 2203B－ 

2204BLeasing commission 2205B28,984 
2206B－ 2207B－ 

2208BGLP Japan 
Advisors Inc.  

2209BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2210B100,000 2211BAsset 

management 2212B－ 

2213BConcurrently 
serving 
directors 
2214BEntrustment 
of asset 
management 

2215BAsset management fee (Note 2, 3) 2216B1,005,830 2217BAccounts 
payable 2218B826,615 

2219BUrayasu Three 
Logistic Special 
Purpose Company 

2220BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2221B100 2222BReal estate 2223B－ 2224B－ 

2225BPurchase of beneficiary right of 
real estate in trust 2226B18,200,000 2227B－ 2228B－ 

2229BReceipt of deposits 2230B79,089 2231BDeposits 
received 2232B39,471 

2233BAcceptance of security deposits 2234B106,203 2235B－ 2236B－ 

2237BKomaki Logistic 
Special Purpose 
Company 

2238BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2239B100,100 2240BReal estate 2241B－ 2242B－ 

2243BPurchase of beneficiary right of 
real estate in trust 2244B10,300,000 2245B－ 2246B－ 

2247BReceipt of deposits 2248B75,352 2249BDeposits 
received 2250B36,429 

2251BAcceptance of security deposits 2252B151,729 
2253B－ 2254B－ 

2255BGLP Solar Special 
Purpose Company 

2256BMinato-ku, 
Tokyo 2257B1,630,100 2258BEquipment 

leasing 2259B－ 
2260BRooftop 
leasing 

2261BRental income from rooftop 
leasing (Note 2) 2262B26,620 2263BAdvances 

received 2264B4,806 
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2265B(Note 1) Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount but included in the related balance at the end of the period. 

2266B(Note 2) Decisions relating to the terms and conditions of transactions: 

2267B(a) The asset management fee was determined in accordance with the rules prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT.  

2268B(b) The royalty fee was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula proposed by Global 

Logistic Properties Inc.  

2269B(c) The rental income from rooftop leasing was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula 

proposed by GLP Solar Special Purpose Company. 

2270B(d)  Other transactions are determined based on market conditions.  

2271B(Note 3) Asset management fee above includes management fees of 124,250 thousand yen capitalized as part of acquisition costs of properties. 

2272B(Note 4) The business name of Komaki Logistic Special Purpose Company is changed to Azalea 2 Special Purpose Company on September 2, 

2014. 

 
2273B4. Transactions and account balances with Board of Directors and individual unitholders 

2274BPrior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014)  
2275BNone  

 
2276BCurrent Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)  

2277BNone  
  
2278B(Investment and Rental Properties) 

2279BProperty and equipment consists of leasable logistics facilities for the purpose of earning rental revenues. The following 
tables summarize the book value, including changes during the fiscal periods and fair value of these rental properties.  

2280B (Unit: Thousand yen)  
 

 
2281BPrior Period 

2282BFrom September 1, 2013 
2283B

 To February 28, 2014 

2284BCurrent Period 
2285BFrom March 1, 2014 

2286B

 To August 31, 2014 

 

 2287BBook value     
  

2288BBalance at the beginning of the period 2289B221,053,017 
2290B247,437,155  

 
2291BChange during the period 2292B26,384,137 

2293B34,900,307  

 
2294BBalance at the end of the period 2295B247,437,155 

2296B282,337,462  

 
2297BFair value at the end of the period 2298B264,270,000 

2299B306,507,000  

2300B(Note 1) The amount on the balance sheets is based on the acquisition cost less the accumulated amount of depreciation. 

2301B(Note 2) Of the change in book value during each period, the major increase for the prior period was primarily due to the acquisition of 

the following 7 properties in the total amount of 27,659,430 thousand yen: GLP Hamura, GLP Funabashi III, GLP Sodegaura, 

GLP Rokko II, GLP Ebetsu, GLP Kuwana and GLP Hatsukaichi, where the major decrease was due to depreciation of 

1,755,590 thousand yen. Similarly, the major increase for the current period was primarily due to the acquisition of the 

following 4 properties in the total amount of 36,543,609 thousand yen: GLP Urayasu III, GLP Komaki, GLP Tatsumi IIa and 

GLP Tatsumi IIb), where the major decrease was due to depreciation of 1,985,815 thousand yen. 

2302B(Note 3) The fair value of investment and rental properties was determined based on third-party appraisals or research price.  
 

2303BIncome and loss in connection with investment and rental properties are disclosed in “Notes to Statements of 
Operations.” 
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2304B(Segment and Related Information) 

2305B(Segment Information) 
2306B1．Overview of operating and reportable segments 

2307BOperating segments are a component of GLP J-REIT for which separate financial information is available and whose 
operating results are regularly evaluated by the Board of Directors to make decisions about how resources are 
allocated and assess their performance. Consequently, each property is considered an operating segment. However, 
when properties share similar economic characteristic and meet other specific conditions, they may be aggregated for 
purposes of reporting segment information. Therefore, properties with multiple tenants have been aggregated and 
presented as “Multi-tenant Property” reportable segment, whereas a build-to-suit (“BTS”) properties developed for a 
single tenant or a property with a single tenant have been aggregated and presented as “BTS Property” reportable 
segment.  

   
2308BGLP J-REIT’s properties were classified to each segment as follows:  

 
2309BMulti-tenant property： GLP Tokyo, GLP Sugito II, GLP Koshigaya II, GLP Misato II, GLP Amagasaki, GLP 

Koriyama III, GLP Urayasu III and GLP Komaki. 
2310BBTS property:  GLP Higashi-Ogishima, GLP Akishima, GLP Tomisato, GLP Narashino II, GLP Funabashi, 

GLP Kazo, GLP Fukaya, GLP Iwatsuki, GLP Kasukabe, GLP Tatsumi, GLP Hirakata, GLP 
Hirakata II, GLP Maishima II, GLP Tsumori, GLP Rokko, GLP Amagasaki II, GLP Nara, 
GLP Sakai, GLP Morioka, GLP Tomiya, GLP Koriyama I, GLP Tokai, GLP Hayashima, 
GLP Hayashima II, GLP Kiyama, GLP Tosu III, GLP Sendai, GLP Hamura, GLP 
Funabashi III, GLP Sodegaura, GLP Rokko II, GLP Ebetsu, GLP Kuwana, GLP 
Hatsukaichi, GLP Tatsumi IIa and GLP Tatsumi IIb. 

 
2311B2．Basis of measurement for the amounts of segment income, segment assets and other items for each reportable segment 

2312BThe accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent to those disclosed in “Notes Concerning Significant 
Accounting Policies.” Segment income is measured on the basis of operating income, excluding certain corporate 
expenses (see reconciling items below). Segment assets are measured on the basis of total assets, excluding certain 
assets (see reconciling items below). 

 
2313B3．Information about segment income, segment assets and other items  

 
2314BPrior Period (As of February 28, 2014) 

2315B(Unit: Thousand yen)    

 
2316BMulti-tenant rental 

business 
2317BBTS rental business 

2318BReconciling 
items 

2319BAmount on 
financial 

statements 
2320BOperating revenues (Note1) 

2321B3,076,915 2322B5,003,996 2323B－ 2324B8,080,911 
2325BSegment income 

2326B2,074,035 2327B3,683,787 2328B(905,041) 2329B4,852,780 
2330BSegment assets 

2331B93,912,141 2332B157,387,896 2333B4,807,015 2334B256,107,053 
2335BOther items     

2336BDepreciation 
2337B579,552 2338B1,176,037 2339B－ 2340B1,755,590 

2341BIncrease in property and 
equipment 

2342B68,445 2343B28,071,282 2344B(12,748) 2345B28,126,978 

2346B(Note 1)  Operating revenues are exclusively earned from external parties.  

2347B(Note 2)  Reconciling items to segment income of 905,041 thousand yen consist of corporate expenses of 905,041 thousand yen that 
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are not allocated to each reportable segment. Corporate expenses present mainly asset management fee, asset custody fee, 

administrative service fees, directors’ remuneration and other expenses.  

 2348BReconciling items to segment assets in the amount of 4,807,015 thousand yen include current assets of 3,821,579 thousand 

yen, property and equipment of 6,892 thousand yen, investments and other assets of 664,067 thousand yen and deferred 

assets of 314,476 thousand yen. 

 2349BReconciling items to increase in property and equipment under other items in the amount of 12,748 thousand yen consist of 

corporate assets which are not allocated to each reportable segment. Such corporate assets represent construction in 

progress of 12,748 thousand yen. 

 
2350BCurrent Period (As of August 31, 2014) 

2351B(Unit: Thousand yen)    

 
2352BMulti-tenant rental 

business 
2353BBTS rental business 

2354BReconciling 
items 

2355BAmount on 
financial 

statements 
2356BOperating revenues (Note1) 

2357B3,958,991 2358B5,363,091 2359B－ 2360B9,322,083 
2361BSegment income 

2362B2,430,803 2363B3,452,813 2364B(971,979) 2365B4,911,637 
2366BSegment assets 

2367B122,381,058 2368B164,444,037 2369B6,398,884 2370B293,223,980 
2371BOther items     

2372BDepreciation 
2373B749,512 2374B1,236,302 2375B－ 2376B1,985,815 

2377BIncrease in property and
 
equipment 

2378B28,800,189 2379B8,085,933 2380B10,856 2381B36,896,979 

2382B(Note 1)  Operating revenues are exclusively earned from external parties.  

2383B(Note 2)  Reconciling items to segment income of 971,979 thousand yen consist of corporate expenses of 971,979 thousand yen that 

are not allocated to each reportable segment. Corporate expenses present mainly asset management fee, asset custody fee, 

administrative service fees, directors’ remuneration and other expenses.  

 2384BReconciling items to segment assets in the amount of 6,398,884 thousand yen include current assets of 5,284,565 thousand 

yen, property and equipment of 17,749 thousand yen, investments and other assets of 842,668 thousand yen and deferred 

assets of 253,901 thousand yen. 

 2385BReconciling items to increase in property and equipment under other items in the amount of 10,856 thousand yen consist of 

corporate assets which are not allocated to each reportable segment. Such corporate assets represent construction in 

progress of 10,856 thousand yen. 
 

2386B(Related Information) 

2387BPrior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014) 
2388B1．Revenue information by product and service 

2389BDisclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers for a single 
product and service have exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the Statement of Income.  

2390B2．Information by geographic area 
2391B(1) Operating revenues 

2392BDisclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers in Japan have 
exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the accompanying statement of operations.  
2393B(2) Property and equipment 

2394BDisclosure of this information has been omitted as the amount of property and equipment in Japan has exceeded 90% 
of the amount of total property and equipment on the accompanying balance sheet.  

2395B3．Information on major tenants 
2396BA major customer accounting for 10% or more of total operating revenues is as follows. When each property or 

 
 
 
 

 
37 



 

 
GLPJ-REIT (3281) 

Financial Results for the fiscal period ended August 31, 2014 
 

  
 
 

property in trust is leased through a master lease agreement, the amount of total revenues earned from end-tenants is 
stated. 

 2397B(Unit: Thousand yen) 
2398BName of customer 2399BOperating revenues 2400BRelevant segment 

2401BHitachi Transport System, Ltd. 2402B874,578 
2403BBTS rental business 

 

 

2404BCurrent Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014) 
2405B1．Revenue information by product and service 

2406BDisclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers for a single 
product and service have exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the Statement of Income.  

2407B2．Information by geographic area 
2408B(1) Operating revenues 

2409BDisclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers in Japan have 
exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the accompanying statement of operations.  
2410B(2) Property and equipment 

2411BDisclosure of this information has been omitted as the amount of property and equipment in Japan has exceeded 90% 
of the amount of total property and equipment on the accompanying balance sheet.  

2412B3．Information on major tenants 
2413BDisclosure of this information has been omitted as no customer accounting for 10% or more of total operating 

revenues existed. 
 
 
2414B(Per Unit Information) 

 
2415BPrior Period 

2416BFrom September 1, 2013 
2417B

 To February 28, 2014 

2418BCurrent Period 
2419BFrom March 1, 2014 

2420B

 To August 31, 2014 
2421BNet assets per unit 

2422B63,884 yen 2423B63,588 yen 
2424BNet income per unit 

2425B1,974 yen 2426B1,893 yen 
2427B(Note 1)  Net income per unit is calculated by dividing net income for the period by the weighted average number of 

investment units issued and outstanding. Diluted net income per unit is not stated as there are no diluted units.  
2428B(Note 2)  The basis for calculating the net income per unit is as follows: 
 

2429BPrior Period 
2430BFrom September 1, 2013 

2431B

 To February 28, 2014 

2432BCurrent Period 
2433BFrom March 1, 2014 

2434B

 To August 31, 2014 
540BNet income  541B4,068,088 thousand yen 542B3,971,673 thousand yen 
543BAmount not attributable to ordinary unitholders 544B－ thousand yen 545B－ thousand yen 
546BNet income attributable to ordinary unitholders  547B4,068,088 thousand yen 548B3,971,673 thousand yen 
549BAverage number of investment units during the period 550B2,060,678 units 551B2,097,700 units 
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2435B(Significant Subsequent Events)  

 
2436B1. Issuance of New Investment Units 

 
2437BAt the Board of Directors’ Meetings held on August 11 and August 20, 2014, GLP J-REIT resolved to issue the following 
new investment units. The proceeds from new investment units through a public offering were fully collected on 
September 1, 2014 while the proceeds from new investment units through a third-party allocation were fully collected on 
September 24, 2014. 

 

2438B[Issuance of new investment units through a public offering] 

2439BNumber of new investment units to be issued: 2440B281,709 units 
(113,216 units for domestic market, 
168,493 units for international market) 

2441BIssue price (Offer price): 2442B113,827 yen per unit 
2443BTotal amount issued (total offering amount): 2444B32,066,090,343 yen 
2445BAmount to be paid in (issue amount): 2446B109,947 yen per unit 
2447BTotal amount to be paid in (total issue amount): 2448B30,973,059,423 yen 
2449BPayment date 2450BSeptember 1, 2014 
2451BInitial date of distribution calculation: 2452BSeptember 1, 2014 

 
2453B[Issuance of new investment units through a third-party allocation] 

2454BNumber of new investment units issued: 2455B11,322 units 
2456BAmount to be paid in (issue amount): 2457B109,947 yen per unit 
2458BTotal amount to be paid in (total issue amount): 2459B1,244,819,934 yen 
2460BPayment date 2461BSeptember 24, 2014 
2462BInitial date of distribution calculation: 2463BSeptember 1, 2014 
2464BUnderwriter: 2465BNomura Securities Co., Ltd. 
 
2466B[Purpose of funding] 
2467BThe funds raised through the public offering were appropriated for the acquisition of beneficiary rights of real estate in 
trust stated below in “(b) Acquisition of Assets.” The funds raised through the third-party allocation will be kept as cash 
on hand, of which, 1,090 million yen will be appropriated to repay a long-term loan before its maturity of January 4, 
2015. (The amount was paid on September 30, 2014.) 
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2468B2. Acquisition of Assets 
 
2469BGLP J-REIT acquired the nine properties shown below in the form of trust beneficiary interests (with a total acquisition 
price of 53,830 million yen). The acquisition price (the purchase price stated in the Sales and Purchase Agreement of 
Beneficiary Rights of Real Estate in Trust) excludes acquisition costs such as direct expenses for acquisition, 
property-related taxes and consumption taxes. 

2470BProperty name 2471BAcquisition date 2472BLocation 2473BSeller 
2474BAcquisition 

price 
2475B(Millions of yen) 

2476BGLP Tokyo II 2477BSeptember 2, 2014 2478BKoto-ku, Tokyo 2479BTokyo 2 Logistics Special Purpose 
Company 2480B36,100 

2481BGLP Okegawa 2482BSeptember 2, 2014 2483BOkegawa, Saitama 2484BOkegawa Logistics Special 
Purpose Company 2485B2,420 

2486BGLP Kadoma 2487BSeptember 2, 2014 2488BKadoma, Osaka 2489BAzalea Special Purpose Company 2490B2,430 

2491BGLP Seishin 2492BSeptember 2, 2014 2493BKobe, Hyogo 2494BSeishin Logistics Special Purpose 
Company 2495B1,470 

2496BGLP Fukusaki 2497BSeptember 2, 2014 2498BKanzaki-gun, Hyogo 2499BFukusaki Logistics Special 
Purpose Company 2500B3,640 

2501BGLP Ogimachi 2502BSeptember 2, 2014 2503BSendai, Miyagi 2504BAzalea Special Purpose Company 2505B1,460 

2506BGLP Hiroshima 2507BSeptember 2, 2014 2508BHiroshima, Hiroshima 2509BAzalea Special Purpose Company 2510B3,740 

2511BGLP Fukuoka 2512BSeptember 2, 2014 2513BFukuoka, Fukuoka 2514BAzalea Special Purpose Company 2515B1,520 

2516BGLP Chikushino 2517BSeptember 2, 2014 2518BChikushino, Fukuoka 2519BAzalea Special Purpose Company 2520B1,050 

2521BTotal 
2522B－ 2523B－ 2524B－ 2525B53,830 
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2526B3. Borrowing of Funds 

 
2527BGLP J-REIT borrowed funds for acquisition of specified assets and related costs as stated in “(b) Acquisition of Assets” 
above. 

2528BLender 

2529BLoan 
amount 

2530B(Millions of 
yen) 

2531BInterest rate 
2532BLoan 

execution 
date 

2533BRepayment 
date 

2534BRepayment 
method 2535BCollateral 

2536BSumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation 2537B990 

2538BJBA yen 
1month 

TIBOR plus 
0.2% 

2539BSeptember 2, 
2014 

 

2540BFebruary 
28, 2015 

2541BLump-sum 
repayment 

on 
repayment 

date 

2542BUnsecured 
2543Bnot  

guaranteed  

2544BThe Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 
UFJ, Ltd. 2545B660 

2546BJBA yen 
1month 

TIBOR plus 
0.2% 

2547BFebruary 
28, 2015 

2548BMizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi UFJ 
Trust and Banking Corporation, 
Citibank Japan Ltd., The Bank of 
Fukuoka, Ltd., The Norinchukin 
Bank, Resona Bank, Limited., 
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, 
Limited, Shinsei Bank, Limited, 
Aozora Bank, Ltd., and The 77 
Bank, Ltd.  

2549B3,700 

2550BJBA yen 
1month 

TIBOR plus 
0.175% 

2551BSeptember 
2, 2016 

2552BSumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation, The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., 
Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi UFJ 
Trust and Banking Corporation, 
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd., 
Development Bank of Japan Inc., 
The Norinchukin Bank, Resona 
Bank, Limited. and Sumitomo 
Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited 

2553B13,600 

2554BJBA yen 
3month 

TIBOR plus 
0.36% 

2555B(Note 1) 

2556BSeptember 
2, 2022 

2557BSumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation and The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 

2558B2,700 

2559BJBA yen 
3month 

TIBOR plus 
0.93% 

2560B(Note 2) 

2561BSeptember 
2, 2027 

2562BTotal 2563B21,650 2564B- 2565B- 2566B- 2567B- 2568B- 

2569B(Note 1): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been 
substantially fixed at 0.862%. 

2570B(Note 2): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been 
substantially fixed at 1.854%. 
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2571B(9) Changes in Number of Investment Units Issued and Outstanding  

2572BChanges in number of investment units issued and outstanding and net unitholders’ capital from the date of establishment to the 
end of current period are as follows: 

2573BDate 2574BType of issue 

2575BNumber of investment units 
issued and outstanding (Unit) 

2576BUnitholders’ capital, net 
(Note 1) 

 (Millions of yen) 
2577BNote 

2578BIncrease 
(decrease) 

2579BTotal 
2580BIncrease 

(decrease) 
2581BTotal 

2582BSeptember 16, 2011 2583BEstablishment through 
private placement 2584B200 2585B200 2586B100 2587B100 2588B(Note 2) 

2589BDecember 14, 2011 2590BIssuance of new units through 
allocation to a third party  2591B20 2592B220 2593B10 2594B110 2595B(Note 3) 

2596BJune 22, 2012 2597BIssuance of new units through 
allocation to a third party 2598B180 2599B400 2600B90 2601B200 2602B(Note 4) 

2603BOctober 31, 2012 2604BUnit split 2605B2,800 2606B3,200 2607B－ 2608B200 2609B(Note 5) 

2610BDecember 20, 2012 2611BPublic offering 2612B1,747,100 2613B1,750,300 2614B102,189 2615B102,389 2616B(Note 6) 

2617BJanuary 21, 2013 
2618BIssuance of new units through 

allocation to a third party 
2619B87,400 2620B1,837,700 2621B5,112 2622B107,501 2623B(Note 7) 

2624BMay 22, 2013 
2625BDistributions in excess of 

retained earnings 
 (a refund of investment) 

2626B－ 2627B1,837,700 2628B(154) 2629B107,347 2630B(Note 8) 

2631BSeptember 26, 2013 2632BPublic offering 2633B249,955 2634B2,087,655 2635B22,179 2636B129,527 2637B(Note 9) 

2638BOctober 16, 2013 
2639BIssuance of new units through 

allocation to a third party 
2640B10,045 2641B2,097,700 2642B891 2643B130,418 2644B(Note 10) 

2645BNovember 19, 2013 
2646BDistributions in excess of 

retained earnings 
 (a refund of investment) 

2647B－ 2648B2,097,700 2649B(475) 2650B129,942 2651B(Note 11) 

2652BMay 19, 2014 
2653BDistributions in excess of 

retained earnings 
 (a refund of investment) 

2654B－ 2655B2,097,700 2656B(526) 2657B129,415 2658B(Note 12) 

2659B(Note 1) “Unitholders’ capital, net” represents the amount of unitholders’ capital, net of distributions in excess of retained earnings deducted from 

total unitholders’ capital. 
2660B(Note 2) At establishment of GLP J-REIT, new units were issued at the issue price of 500,000 yen per unit. 

2661B(Note 3) In order to obtain necessary operating funds, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at 500,000 yen per 

unit.  

2662B(Note 4) In order to obtain necessary operating funds, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at 500,000 yen per 

unit.  

2663B(Note 5) GLP J-REIT executed an 8-for-1 unit split. 

2664B(Note 6) In order to obtain funds to acquire new properties, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a public offering at the issue price of 

58,491 yen or the offer price of 60,500 yen per unit. 

2665B(Note 7) In connection with the public offering, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at the issue price of 

58,491 yen.  
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2666B(Note 8) At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on April 16, 2013, it was resolved that GLP J-REIT would make distributions in excess of 

retained earnings (a refund of investment) of 84 yen per unit for the 2nd fiscal period (the period ended February 28, 2013). The payment 

of distributions was commenced on May 22, 2013. 

2667B(Note 9) In order to obtain funds to acquire new properties, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a public offering at the issue price 

of 88,735 yen or the offer price of 91,942 yen per unit. 

2668B(Note 10) In connection with the public offering, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at the issue price of 

88,735 yen. 

2669B(Note 11) At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on October 16, 2013, it was resolved that GLP J-REIT would make distributions in excess of 

retained earnings (a refund of investment) of 259 yen per unit for the 3rd fiscal period (the period ended August 31, 2013). The payment 

of distributions was commenced on November 19, 2013 

2670B(Note 12) At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on April 15, 2014, it was resolved that GLP J-REIT would make distributions in excess of 

retained earnings (a refund of investment) of 251 yen per unit for the 4th fiscal period (the period ended February 28, 2014). The 

payment of distributions was commenced on May 19, 2014. 

 

 

2671B4. Changes in Directors 
2672BChanges in directors are disclosed on a timely basis, when the contents for disclosure are determined. 

 
 

2673B5. Reference Information 
2674B(1) Investment Status  

2675BType of asset 2676BArea 
2677B(Note 1) 

2678BPrior Period 
2679BFebruary 28, 2014 

2680BCurrent Period 
2681BAugust 31, 2014 

2682BTotal amount held 
2683B(Millions of yen) 

2684B(Note 2) 

2685BAs a ratio to total 
assets (%) 

2686B(Note 3) 

2687BTotal amount held 
2688B(Millions of yen) 

2689B(Note 2) 

2690BAs a ratio to total 
assets (%) 

2691B(Note 3) 

2692BProperty and equipment in 
trust (Note 4) 

2693BTokyo 
metropolitan 

area 
2694B146,419 2695B57.2  

2696B171,678 2697B58.5 

2698BGreater Osaka 
area 2699B62,755 2700B24.5  

2701B62,349 2702B21.3 

2703BOther 2704B38,262 2705B14.9  
2706B48,310 2707B16.5 

2708BSub Total 2709B247,437 2710B96.6  2711B282,337 2712B96.3 
2713BDeposits and other assets 2714B8,669 2715B3.4  2716B10,886 2717B3.7 

2718BTotal assets (Note 5) (Note 6) 2719B256,107 
    2720B[247,437] 

2721B100.0 
 2722B[96.6] 

2723B293,223 
    2724B[282,337] 

2725B100.0 
 2726B[96.3] 

 

 2727BAmount 
2728B(Millions of yen) 

2729BAs a ratio to total 
assets (%) 

2730B(Note 3) 

2731BAmount 
2732B(Millions of yen) 

2733BAs a ratio to total 
assets (%) 

2734B(Note 3) 
2735BTotal liabilities (Note 5) 2736B122,095 2737B47.7 2738B159,835 2739B54.5 
2740BTotal net assets (Note 5) 2741B134,011 2742B52.3 2743B133,388 2744B45.5 

2745B(Note 1) “Tokyo metropolitan area” includes Tokyo, Kanagawa, Saitama, Chiba, Ibaraki, Tochigi, Gunma, and Yamanashi prefectures. “Greater 

Osaka area” includes Osaka, Hyogo, Kyoto, Shiga, Nara and Wakayama prefectures. “Other” includes areas other than above.  

2746B(Note 2) Total amount held is the carrying value (for property and equipment or property and equipment in trust, the book value after deducting 

depreciation).  
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536B(Note 3) The ratio to total assets is rounded off to the first decimal place.  

537B(Note 4) The amounts of construction in progress are not included in the amounts of property and equipment in trust. 

538B(Note 5) The book value is stated for total assets, total liabilities and total net assets.  

539B(Note 6) The figures in square brackets represent the holding properties portion to total assets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7B(This part is intentionally left blank) 
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8B(2) Portfolio Overview 
 
9BThe following table summarizes the beneficiary rights of real estate in trust or the real estate properties in trust held by GLP 
J-REIT at the fiscal period end. Each figure in this table is the information as of August 31, 2014 unless otherwise stated.  

11BProperty 
number 

12BProperty name 

13BAcquisition 
price 

14B(Millions of yen) 
15B(Note 1) 

16BBook value 
17B(Millions of 

yen) 

18BAppraisal 
value 

19B(Millions of yen) 
20B(Note 2) 

21BShare 
22B(%) 

23B(Note 3) 

24BLeasable area 
25B(m2) 

26B(Note 4) 

27BLeased area 
28B(m2) 

29B(Note 5) 

30BOccupa
ncy 
ratio 

31B(%) 
(Note 6) 

32BNumber 
of 

tenants 
33B(Note 7) 

34BTokyo-1 168BGLP Tokyo 213B22,700 214B22,493  215B24,300  216B8.0 217B56,105.95 218B56,105.95 35B100.0 36B5 

37BTokyo-2 
169BGLP Higashi- 
Ogishima 

219B4,980 220B5,024  221B5,590  222B1.7 223B34,582.00 224B34,582.00 38B100.0 39B1 

40BTokyo-3 170BGLP Akishima 225B7,160 226B7,135  227B7,740  228B2.5 229B27,356.63 230B27,356.63 41B100.0 42B3 
43BTokyo-4 171BGLP Tomisato 231B4,990 232B4,896  233B5,270  234B1.8 235B27,042.59 236B27,042.59 44B100.0 45B1 
46BTokyo-5 172BGLP Narashino II 237B15,220 238B15,304  239B18,200  240B5.3 241B104,543.59 242B104,543.59 47B100.0 48B2 
49BTokyo-6 173BGLP Funabashi 243B1,720 244B1,745  245B1,840  246B0.6 247B12,017.00 248B12,017.00 50B100.0 51B1 
52BTokyo-7 174BGLP Kazo 249B11,500 250B11,217  251B12,600  252B4.0 253B76,532.71 254B76,532.71 53B100.0 54B1 
55BTokyo-8 175BGLP Fukaya 255B2,380 256B2,368  257B2,650  258B0.8 259B19,706.00 260B19,706.00 56B100.0 57B1 
58BTokyo-9 176BGLP Sugito II 261B19,000 262B18,645  263B20,100  264B6.7 265B101,272.40 266B100,162.57 59B98.9 60B4 
61BTokyo-10 177BGLP Iwatsuki 267B6,940 268B6,842  269B7,320  270B2.4 271B31,839.99 272B31,839.99 62B100.0 63B1 
64BTokyo-11 178BGLP Kasukabe 273B4,240 274B4,144  275B4,470  276B1.5 277B18,460.73  278B18,460.73  65B100.0 66B1 
67BTokyo-12 179BGLP Koshigaya II 279B9,780 280B9,674  281B10,300  282B3.4 283B43,537.47 284B43,537.47 68B100.0 69B2 
70BTokyo-13 180BGLP Misato II 285B14,600 286B14,426  287B15,700  288B5.1 289B59,208.59 290B59,208.59 71B100.0 72B2 
73BTokyo-14 181BGLP Tatsumi 291B4,960 292B4,939  293B5,390  294B1.7 295B12,925.58 296B12,925.58 74B100.0 75B1 
76BTokyo-15 182BGLP Hamura 297B7,660 298B7,639  299B8,210  300B2.7 301B40,277.93 302B40,277.93 77B100.0 78B1 
79BTokyo-16 183BGLP Funabashi III 303B3,050 304B3,038  305B3,560  306B1.1 307B18,281.84 308B18,281.84 80B100.0 81B1 
82BTokyo-17 184BGLP Sodegaura 309B6,150 310B6,107  311B7,140  312B2.2 313B45,582.06 314B45,582.06 83B100.0 84B1 
85BTokyo-18 185BGLP Urayasu III 315B18,200 316B18,229  317B18,700  318B6.4 319B64,198.11 320B64,198.11  86B100.0 87B2 
88BTokyo-19 186BGLP Tatsumi IIa 321B6,694 322B6,738  323B6,900  324B2.3 325B17,108.52 326B17,108.52  89B100.0 90B1 
91BTokyo-20 187BGLP Tatsumi IIb 327B1,056 328B1,065  329B1,120  330B0.4 331B3,359.00 332B3,359.00  92B100.0 93B1 
94BOsaka-1 188BGLP Hirakata 333B4,750 334B4,731  335B4,980  336B1.7 337B29,829.56 338B29,829.56 95B100.0 96B1 
97BOsaka-2 189BGLP Hirakata II 339B7,940 340B7,849  341B8,230  342B2.8 343B43,283.01 344B43,283.01 98B100.0 99B1 
100BOsaka-3 190BGLP Maishima II 345B8,970 346B8,739  347B10,100  348B3.1 349B56,511.10 350B56,511.10 101B100.0 102B1 
103BOsaka-4 191BGLP Tsumori 351B1,990 352B2,021  353B2,120  354B0.7 355B16,080.14 356B16,080.14 104B100.0 105B1 
106BOsaka-5 192BGLP Rokko 357B5,160 358B5,128  359B5,450  360B1.8 361B39,339.00 362B39,339.00 107B100.0 108B1 
109BOsaka-6 193BGLP Amagasaki 363B24,500 364B24,155  365B25,200  366B8.6 367B110,224.89  368B110,224.89  110B100.0 111B6 
112BOsaka-7 194BGLP Amagasaki II 369B2,040 370B2,026  371B2,120  372B0.7 373B12,342.95 374B12,342.95 113B100.0 114B1 
115BOsaka-8 195BGLP Nara 375B2,410 376B2,327  377B2,700  378B0.8 379B19,545.35 380B19,545.35 116B100.0 117B1 
118BOsaka-9 196BGLP Sakai 381B2,000 382B1,967  383B2,080  384B0.7 385B10,372.10 386B10,372.10 119B100.0 120B1 
121BOsaka-10 197BGLP Rokko II 387B3,430 388B3,400  389B3,970  390B1.2 391B20,407.30 392B20,407.30 122B100.0 123B1 
124BOther-1 198BGLP Morioka 393B808 394B824  395B841  396B0.3 397B10,253.80 398B10,253.80 125B100.0 126B1 
127BOther-2 199BGLP Tomiya 399B2,820 400B2,760  401B2,930  402B1.0 403B20,466.98 404B20,466.98 128B100.0 129B1 
130BOther-3 200BGLP Koriyama I 405B4,100 406B3,966  407B4,340  408B1.4 409B24,335.96 410B24,335.96 131B100.0 132B1 
133BOther-4 201BGLP Koriyama III 411B2,620 412B2,607  413B2,690  414B0.9 415B27,671.50 416B27,671.50 134B100.0 135B4 
136BOther-5 202BGLP Tokai 417B6,210 418B6,119  419B6,900  420B2.2 421B32,343.31  422B32,343.31  137B100.0 138B1 
139BOther-6 203BGLP Hayashima 423B1,190 424B1,206  425B1,260  426B0.4 427B13,574.58 428B13,574.58 140B100.0 141B1 
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11BProperty 
number 

12BProperty name 

13BAcquisition 
price 

14B(Millions of yen) 
15B(Note 1) 

16BBook value 
17B(Millions of 

yen) 

18BAppraisal 
value 

19B(Millions of yen) 
20B(Note 2) 

21BShare 
22B(%) 

23B(Note 3) 

24BLeasable area 
25B(m2) 

26B(Note 4) 

27BLeased area 
28B(m2) 

29B(Note 5) 

30BOccupa
ncy 
ratio 

31B(%) 
(Note 6) 

32BNumber 
of 

tenants 
33B(Note 7) 

142BOther-7 204BGLP Hayashima II 429B2,460 430B2,398  431B2,560  432B0.9 433B14,447.48 434B14,447.48 143B100.0 144B1 
145BOther-8 205BGLP Kiyama 435B4,760 436B4,608  437B5,070  438B1.7 439B23,455.96 440B23,455.96 146B100.0 147B1 
148BOther-9 206BGLP Tosu III 441B793 442B828  443B866  444B0.3 445B11,918.00 446B11,918.00 149B100.0 150B1 
151BOther-10 207BGLP Sendai 447B5,620 448B5,501  449B5,910  450B2.0 451B37,256.23 452B37,256.23 152B100.0 153B1 
154BOther-11 208BGLP Ebetsu 453B1,580 454B1,574  455B1,900  456B0.6 457B18,489.25 458B18,489.25 155B100.0 156B1 
157BOther-12 209BGLP Kuwana 459B3,650 460B3,615  461B4,140  462B1.3 463B20,402.12 464B20,402.12 158B100.0 159B1 
160BOther-13 210BGLP Hatsukaichi 465B1,980 466B1,967  467B2,250  468B0.7 469B10,981.89 470B10,981.89 161B100.0 162B1 
163BOther-14 211BGLP Komaki 471B10,300 472B10,331  473B10,800  474B3.6 475B52,709.97 476B52,709.97  164B100.0 165B2 

212BTotal portfolio 477B285,061 478B282,337 479B306,507 480B100.0 481B1,490,181.13 482B1,489,071.30 166B99.9 167B66 
0B“Tokyo” refers to Tokyo metropolitan area and “Osaka” refers to Greater Osaka area.  
1B(Note 1) “Acquisition price” represents the purchase price of each property or beneficiary right in trust as set forth on the relevant purchase 

agreement and does not include expenses such as consumption taxes.  
2B(Note 2) “Appraisal value” represents the appraisal value or research price as set forth on the relevant study reports by real estate appraisers as of 

the balance sheet date in accordance with the policy prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT and the rules of the 
Investment Trust Association. 

3B(Note 3) “Share” is the ratio of the acquisition price of each property or property in trust to total acquisition price, and rounded off to the first 
decimal place. 

4B(Note 4) “Leasable area” is the area of property or property in trust that is available for lease in accordance with the relevant lease agreement or 
architectural drawing, and rounded down to the second decimal place. The leasable area may be changed upon renewal of lease 
agreement. 

5B(Note 5) “Leased area” is the total area of property or property in trust that is leased in accordance with the relevant lease agreement, and rounded 
down to the second decimal place. When the property or property in trust is leased through a master lease agreement, the leased area 
represents the total space actually leased based on the lease agreement concluded with end-tenants.  

2747B(Note 6) “Occupancy ratio” is rounded off to the first decimal place. 
6B(Note 7) “Number of tenants” is the total number of building tenants stated on the lease agreement of each property or property in trust.  
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2748B(3) Capital Expenditure for Properties Owned 

2749B(a) Future plan for capital expenditure 
2750BThe following table summarizes the major capital expenditure plan in connection with scheduled renovation and others for 

properties owned as of February 28, 2014. Estimated construction cost includes the amounts to be expensed for accounting 
purpose. 

2751BProperty name 2752BLocation 2753BPurpose 2754BPlanned period 

2755BEstimated construction cost 
(Millions of yen) 

2756BTotal 
amount 

2757BAmount 
paid 

during the 
period 

2758BTotal 
amount 

paid 

491BGLP Funabashi 2759BFunabashi, Chiba 
2760BConstruction of 
fire prevention 
compartment 

 2761BFrom October 2014
 to December 2014 2762B219 2763B－ 2764B－ 

492BGLP Koriyama III 
2765BKoriyama, 
Fukushima 

2766BReplacement of 
GR-type receivers 

2767BFrom October 2014 
to February 2015 2768B46 2769B－ 2770B－ 

493BGLP Hamura 2771BHamura, Tokyo 2772BRenovation of 
exterior wall 

2773BFrom November 2014 
to February 2015 2774B42 2775B－ 2776B－ 

494BGLP Funabashi III 2777BFunabashi, Chiba 
2778BRenovation of 

exterior wall joint 
of warehouse  

2779BFrom April 2015 to 
June 2015 2780B35 2781B－ 2782B－ 

495BGLP Higashi-Ogishima  
2783BKawasaki, 
Kanagawa 

2784BReplacement of 
water cooled 

chillers  

2785BFrom May 2015 to 
June 2015 

2786B35 2787B－ 2788B－ 

496BGLP Morioka 2789BShiwa-gun, Iwate 
2790BRenovation of 

East exterior wall 
of warehouse 

2791BFrom June 2015 to 
August 2015 2792B15 2793B－ 2794B－ 

497BGLP Tosu III 2795BTosu, Saga 

2796BRenovation of 
asphalt pavement 

around an 
administration 

building 

2797BFrom May 2015 to 
May 2015 2798B10 2799B－ 2800B－ 

498BGLP Tosu III 2801BTosu, Saga 2802BReplacement of 
air conditioners 

2803BFrom December 2014 
to December 2014 2804B9 2805B－ 2806B－ 

499BGLP Tosu III 2807BTosu, Saga 2808BReplacement of 
air conditioners 

2809BFrom June 2015 to 
June 2015 2810B9 2811B－ 2812B－ 

 
2813B(b) Capital expenditure incurred for the period 

2814BThe following table summarizes the major constructions to holding properties that resulted in capital expenditure for the 
current period. Capital expenditure for the current period was 342 million yen. The total construction cost amounted to 397 
million yen, including repair and maintenance of 54 million yen that was accounted for as expenses. 
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2815BProperty name 2816BLocation 2817BPurpose 2818BPeriod 
2819BConstruction 

cost 
(Millions of yen) 

2820BGLP Narashino II 
2821BNarashino, 
Chiba 

2822BReplacement of control 
board of fire 
extinguishing system 

2823BFrom May 2014 to August 2014 483B57 

2824BGLP Higashi-Ogishima 
2825BKawasaki, 
Kanagawa 

2826BReplacement of air 
conditioners 2827BFrom May 2014 to June 2014 484B26 

2828BGLP Morioka 
2829BShiwa-gun, 
Iwate 

2830BRenovation of 
South-West exterior wall 2831BFrom July 2014 to August 2014 485B25 

2832BGLP Tosu III 2833BTosu, Saga 2834BReplacement of air 
conditioners 2835BFrom August 2014 to August 2014 486B9 

2836BOther 2837B－ 2838B－ 
2839B－ 487B223 

2840BTotal 488B342 

 
 

10B(4) Overview of Property Leasing and Status of Operating Income 
2841BThe 5th Fiscal Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)                           (Unit in amount: Thousand yen) 

2842BProperty number 2843BTokyo-1 2844BTokyo-2 2845BTokyo-3 2846BTokyo-4 2847BTokyo-5 2848BTokyo-6 2849BTokyo-7 

2850BProperty name 2851BGLP Tokyo 2852BGLP Higashi- 
Ogishima 2853BGLP Akishima 2854BGLP Tomisato 2855BGLP  

2856BNarashino II 2857BGLP Funabashi 2858BGLP Kazo 

2859BOperating dates 2860B184 2861B184 2862B184 2863B184 2864B184 2865B184 2866B184 
2867B(1)Property-related 
revenues 2868B706,996 

2869B(Note) 2870B(Note) 2871B(Note) 2872B(Note) 2873B(Note) 2874B(Note) 

2875B(2)Property-related 
expenses 2876B158,448 

 2877BTaxes and dues 2878B57,118 

 2879BProperty and facility 
management fees 2880B38,204 

 2881BUtilities 2882B52,816 

 2883BRepair and maintenance 2884B2,213 

 2885BCasualty insurance 2886B797 

 2887BOthers 2888B7,297 
2889B(3)NOI((1)-(2)) 2890B548,547 2891B157,631 2892B198,525 2893B137,761 2894B402,195 2895B49,510 2896B327,746 
2897B(4)Depreciation 2898B120,360 2899B37,659 2900B28,190 2901B38,890 2902B143,342 2903B9,476 2904B104,462 
2905B(5)Operating income from 

property leasing   
((3)-(4)) 

2906B428,186 2907B119,972 2908B170,334 2909B98,871 2910B258,853 2911B40,033 2912B223,283 

2913B(6)Capital expenditure 2914B22,992 2915B57,916 2916B1,550 2917B－ 2918B60,273 2919B9,540 2920B1,820 
2921B(7)NCF((3)-(6)) 2922B525,555 2923B99,715 2924B196,975 2925B137,761 2926B341,922 2927B39,970 2928B325,926 
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2929BProperty number 2930BTokyo-8 2931BTokyo-9 2932BTokyo-10 2933BTokyo-11 2934BTokyo-12 2935BTokyo-13 2936BTokyo-14 

2937BProperty name 2938BGLP Fukaya 2939BGLP Sugito II 2940BGLP Iwatsuki 2941BGLP Kasukabe 2942BGLP 
Koshigaya II 2943BGLP Misato II 2944BGLP Tatsumi 

2945BOperating dates 2946B184 2947B184 2948B184 2949B184 2950B184 2951B184 2952B184 
2953B(1)Property-related 
revenues 

2954B(Note) 

2955B661,963 

2956B(Note) 2957B(Note) 2958B(Note) 2959B(Note) 2960B(Note) 

2961B(2)Property-related 
expenses 2962B145,511 

 2963BTaxes and dues 2964B50,888 

 2965BProperty and facility 
management fees 2966B43,895 

 2967BUtilities 2968B45,717 

 2969BRepair and 
maintenance 2970B2,369 

 2971BCasualty insurance 2972B1,247 

 2973BOthers 2974B1,393 
2975B(3)NOI((1)-(2)) 2976B73,541 2977B516,451 2978B184,695 2979B116,290 2980B254,593 2981B384,198 2982B124,740 
2983B(4)Depreciation 2984B27,899 2985B144,806 2986B45,232 2987B36,058 2988B54,169 2989B76,707 2990B16,652 
2991B(5)Operating income from 

property leasing   
((3)-(4)) 

2992B45,641 2993B371,645 2994B139,463 2995B80,232 2996B200,423 2997B307,490 2998B108,088 

2999B(6)Capital expenditure 3000B13,496 3001B8,327 3002B－ 
3003B610 3004B13,649 3005B1,054 3006B5,720 

3007B(7)NCF((3)-(6)) 3008B60,045 3009B508,124 3010B184,695 3011B115,680 3012B240,944 3013B383,144 3014B119,020 

 
 

3015BProperty number 3016BTokyo-15 3017BTokyo-16 3018BTokyo-17 3019BTokyo-18 3020BTokyo-19 3021BTokyo-20 3022BOsaka-1 

3023BProperty name 3024BGLP Hamura 3025BGLP 
Funabashi III 

3026BGLP 
Sodegaura 

3027BGKP Urayasu 
III 

3028BGLP Tatsumi 
IIa 

3029BGLP Tatsumi 
IIb 3030BGLP Hirakata 

3031BOperating dates 3032B184 3033B184 3034B184 3035B182 3036B153 3037B153 3038B184 
3039B(1)Property-related 
revenues 

3040B(Note) 3041B(Note) 3042B(Note) 3043B(Note) 3044B(Note) 3045B(Note) 3046B(Note) 

3047B(2)Property-related 
expenses 
 3048BTaxes and dues 

 3049BProperty and facility 
management fees 

 3050BUtilities 

 3051BRepair and 
maintenance 

 3052BCasualty insurance 

 3053BOthers 
3054B(3)NOI((1)-(2)) 3055B205,442 3056B83,935 3057B189,241 3058B460,173 3059B143,028 3060B27,313 3061B143,961 
3062B(4)Depreciation 3063B37,983 3064B19,444 3065B41,076 3066B99,662 3067B16,050 3068B4,189 3069B23,659 
3070B(5)Operating income from 

property leasing   
((3)-(4)) 

3071B167,458 3072B64,491 3073B148,164 3074B360,511 3075B126,977 3076B23,123 3077B120,301 

3078B(6)Capital expenditure 3079B8,072 3080B3,061 3081B－ 3082B4,740 3083B1,810 3084B－ 3085B3,570 
3086B(7)NCF((3)-(6)) 3087B197,370 3088B80,874 3089B189,241 3090B455,433 3091B141,218 3092B27,313 3093B140,391 
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3094BProperty number 3095BOsaka-2 3096BOsaka-3 3097BOsaka-4 3098BOsaka-5 3099BOsaka-6 3100BOsaka-7 3101BOsaka-8 

3102BProperty name 3103BGLP  
3104BHirakata II 

3105BGLP 
Maishima II 3106BGLP Tsumori 3107BGLP Rokko 3108BGLP 

Amagasaki 
3109BGLP 

Amagasaki II 3110BGLP Nara 

3111BOperating dates 3112B184 3113B184 3114B184 3115B184 3116B184 3117B184 3118B184 
3119B(1)Property-related 
revenues 

3120B(Note) 3121B(Note) 3122B(Note) 3123B(Note) 

3124B822,623 

3125B(Note) 3126B(Note) 

3127B(2)Property-related 
expenses 3128B206,596 

 3129BTaxes and dues 3130B72,516 

 3131BProperty and facility 
management fees 3132B46,133 

 3133BUtilities 3134B68,822 

 3135BRepair and 
maintenance 3136B2,684 

 3137BCasualty insurance 3138B1,347 

 3139BOthers 3140B15,091 
3141B(3)NOI((1)-(2)) 3142B221,494 3143B236,971 3144B64,698 3145B168,793 3146B616,026 3147B64,091 3148B83,520 
3149B(4)Depreciation 3150B54,469 3151B94,964 3152B7,671 3153B28,918 3154B162,204 3155B11,891 3156B34,417 
3157B(5)Operating income from 

property leasing   
((3)-(4)) 

3158B167,024 3159B142,006 3160B57,026 3161B139,875 3162B453,821 3163B52,200 3164B49,103 

3165B(6)Capital expenditure 3166B2,896 3167B15,675 3168B2,605 3169B8,696 3170B13,241 3171B－ 3172B9,780 
3173B(7)NCF((3)-(6)) 3174B218,598 3175B221,296 3176B62,093 3177B160,097 3178B602,784 3179B64,091 3180B73,740 
 
 

3181BProperty number 3182BOsaka-9 3183BOsaka-10 3184BOther-1 3185BOther-2 3186BOther-3 3187BOther-4 3188BOther-5 

3189BProperty name 3190BGLP Sakai 3191BGLP Rokko 
II 3192BGLP Morioka 3193BGLP Tomiya 3194BGLP 

Koriyama I 
3195BGLP 

Koriyama III 3196BGLP Tokai 

3197BOperating dates 3198B184 3199B184 3200B184 3201B184 3202B184 3203B184 3204B184 
3205B(1)Property-related 
revenues 

3206B(Note) 3207B(Note) 3208B(Note) 3209B(Note) 3210B(Note) 

3211B132,644 

3212B(Note) 

3213B(2)Property-related 
expenses 3214B33,657 

 3215BTaxes and dues 3216B12,214 

 3217BProperty and facility 
management fees 3218B7,209 

 3219BUtilities 3220B11,008 

 3221BRepair and 
maintenance 3222B2,313 

 3223BCasualty insurance 3224B286 

 3225BOthers 3226B625 
3227B(3)NOI((1)-(2)) 3228B58,227 3229B116,898 3230B28,962 3231B82,650 3232B124,095 3233B98,986 3234B167,839 
3235B(4)Depreciation 3236B17,085 3237B27,442 3238B12,233 3239B23,959 3240B48,837 3241B23,051 3242B40,508 
3243B(5)Operating income from 

property leasing   
((3)-(4)) 

3244B41,142 3245B89,455 3246B16,728 3247B58,691 3248B75,257 3249B75,935 3250B127,331 

3251B(6)Capital expenditure 3252B－ 3253B－ 3254B30,846 3255B－ 3256B1,500 3257B12,042 3258B2,286 
3259B(7)NCF((3)-(6)) 3260B58,227 3261B116,898 3262B(1,883) 3263B82,650 3264B122,595 3265B86,944 3266B165,553 
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3267BProperty number 3268BOther-6 3269BOther-7 3270BOther-8 3271BOther-9 3272BOther-10 3273BOther-11 3274BOther-12 

3275BProperty name 3276BGLP 
Hayashima 

3277BGLP 
Hayashima II 3278BGLP Kiyama 3279BGLP Tosu III 3280BGLP Sendai 3281BGLP Ebetsu 3282BGLP Kuwana 

3283BOperating dates 3284B184 3285B184 3286B184 3287B184 3288B184 3289B184 3290B184 
3291B(1)Property-related 
revenues 

3292B(Note) 3293B(Note) 3294B(Note) 3295B(Note) 3296B(Note) 3297B(Note) 3298B(Note) 

3299B(2)Property-related 
expenses 
 3300BTaxes and dues 

 3301BProperty and facility 
management fees 

 3302BUtilities 

 3303BRepair and 
maintenance 

 3304BCasualty insurance 

 3305BOthers 
3306B(3)NOI((1)-(2)) 3307B41,788 3308B71,790 3309B142,622 3310B32,501 3311B176,745 3312B51,604 3313B122,030 
3314B(4)Depreciation 3315B6,511 3316B24,254 3317B55,351 3318B7,481 3319B47,093 3320B18,686 3321B29,502 
3322B(5)Operating income from 

property leasing   
((3)-(4)) 

3323B35,276 3324B47,535 3325B87,270 3326B25,020 3327B129,651 3328B32,917 3329B92,527 

3330B(6)Capital expenditure 3331B1,492 3332B－ 3333B－ 3334B16,476 3335B1,063 3336B2,803 3337B－ 
3338B(7)NCF((3)-(6)) 3339B40,296 3340B71,790 3341B142,622 3342B16,025 3343B175,682 3344B48,801 3345B122,030 

 
3346BProperty number 3347BOther-13 3348BOther-14 

3349BProperty name 3350BGLP 
Hatsukaichi 3351BGLP Komaki 

3352BOperating dates 3353B184 3354B182 
3355B(1)Property-related 
revenues 

3356B(Note) 3357B(Note) 

3358B(2)Property-related 
expenses 
 3359BTaxes and dues 

 3360BProperty and facility 
management fees 

 3361BUtilities 

 3362BRepair and 
maintenance 

 3363BCasualty insurance 

 3364BOthers 
3365B(3)NOI((1)-(2)) 3366B66,230 3367B301,338 
3368B(4)Depreciation 3369B14,752 3370B68,549 
3371B(5)Operating income from 

property leasing   
((3)-(4)) 

3372B51,477 3373B232,788 

3374B(6)Capital expenditure 3375B－ 3376B2,911 
3377B(7)NCF((3)-(6)) 3378B66,230 3379B298,427 

3380B(Note) Disclosure is omitted as the tenant’s permission has not been obtained. 
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	18,645 
	66
	99.9
	1,489,071.30
	1,490,181.13
	100.0
	306,507
	282,337
	285,061
	Total portfolio
	2
	100.0
	52,709.97 
	52,709.97
	3.6
	10,800 
	10,331 
	10,300
	GLP Komaki
	Other-14
	1
	100.0
	10,981.89
	10,981.89
	0.7
	2,250 
	1,967 
	1,980
	GLP Hatsukaichi
	Other-13
	1
	100.0
	20,402.12
	20,402.12
	1.3
	4,140 
	3,615 
	3,650
	GLP Kuwana
	Other-12
	1
	100.0
	18,489.25
	18,489.25
	0.6
	1,900 
	1,574 
	1,580
	GLP Ebetsu
	Other-11
	1
	100.0
	37,256.23
	37,256.23
	2.0
	5,910 
	5,501 
	5,620
	GLP Sendai
	Other-10
	1
	100.0
	11,918.00
	11,918.00
	0.3
	866 
	828 
	793
	GLP Tosu III
	Other-9
	1
	100.0
	23,455.96
	1.7
	5,070 
	4,608 
	4,760
	GLP Kiyama
	Other-8
	1
	100.0
	14,447.48
	14,447.48
	0.9
	2,560 
	2,398 
	2,460
	GLP Hayashima II
	Other-7
	1
	100.0
	13,574.58
	13,574.58
	0.4
	1,260 
	1,206 
	1,190
	GLP Hayashima
	Other-6
	1
	100.0
	32,343.31 
	32,343.31 
	2.2
	6,900 
	6,119 
	6,210
	GLP Tokai
	Other-5
	4
	100.0
	27,671.50
	27,671.50
	0.9
	2,690 
	2,607 
	2,620
	GLP Koriyama III
	Other-4
	1
	100.0
	24,335.96
	24,335.96
	1.4
	4,340 
	3,966 
	4,100
	GLP Koriyama I
	Other-3
	1
	100.0
	20,466.98
	20,466.98
	1.0
	2,930 
	2,760 
	2,820
	GLP Tomiya
	Other-2
	1
	100.0
	10,253.80
	10,253.80
	0.3
	841 
	824 
	808
	GLP Morioka
	Other-1
	1
	100.0
	20,407.30
	20,407.30
	1.2
	3,970 
	3,400 
	3,430
	GLP Rokko II
	Osaka-10
	1
	100.0
	10,372.10
	10,372.10
	0.7
	2,080 
	1,967 
	2,000
	GLP Sakai
	Osaka-9
	1
	100.0
	19,545.35
	19,545.35
	0.8
	2,700 
	2,327 
	2,410
	GLP Nara
	Osaka-8
	1
	100.0
	12,342.95
	12,342.95
	0.7
	2,120 
	2,026 
	2,040
	GLP Amagasaki II
	Osaka-7
	6
	100.0
	110,224.89 
	110,224.89 
	8.6
	25,200 
	24,155 
	24,500
	GLP Amagasaki
	Osaka-6
	1
	100.0
	39,339.00
	39,339.00
	1.8
	5,450 
	5,128 
	5,160
	GLP Rokko
	Osaka-5
	1
	100.0
	16,080.14
	0.7
	2,120 
	2,021 
	1,990
	GLP Tsumori
	Osaka-4
	1
	100.0
	56,511.10
	56,511.10
	3.1
	10,100 
	8,739 
	8,970
	GLP Maishima II
	Osaka-3
	1
	100.0
	43,283.01
	43,283.01
	2.8
	8,230 
	7,849 
	7,940
	GLP Hirakata II
	Osaka-2
	1
	100.0
	29,829.56
	29,829.56
	1.7
	4,980 
	4,731 
	4,750
	GLP Hirakata
	Osaka-1
	1
	100.0
	3,359.00 
	3,359.00
	0.4
	1,120 
	1,065 
	1,056
	GLP Tatsumi IIb
	Tokyo-20
	1
	100.0
	17,108.52 
	17,108.52
	2.3
	6,900 
	6,738 
	6,694
	GLP Tatsumi IIa
	Tokyo-19
	2
	100.0
	64,198.11 
	64,198.11
	6.4
	18,700 
	18,229 
	18,200
	GLP Urayasu III
	Tokyo-18
	1
	100.0
	45,582.06
	45,582.06
	2.2
	7,140 
	6,107 
	6,150
	GLP Sodegaura
	Tokyo-17
	1
	100.0
	18,281.84
	18,281.84
	1.1
	3,560 
	3,038 
	3,050
	GLP Funabashi III
	Tokyo-16
	1
	100.0
	40,277.93
	40,277.93
	2.7
	8,210 
	7,639 
	GLP Hamura
	Tokyo-15
	1
	100.0
	12,925.58
	12,925.58
	1.7
	5,390 
	4,939 
	4,960
	GLP Tatsumi
	Tokyo-14
	2
	100.0
	59,208.59
	59,208.59
	5.1
	15,700 
	14,426 
	14,600
	GLP Misato II
	Tokyo-13
	2
	100.0
	43,537.47
	43,537.47
	3.4
	10,300 
	9,674 
	9,780
	GLP Koshigaya II
	Tokyo-12
	1
	100.0
	18,460.73 
	18,460.73 
	1.5
	4,470 
	4,144 
	4,240
	GLP Kasukabe
	Tokyo-11
	1
	100.0
	31,839.99
	31,839.99
	2.4
	7,320 
	6,842 
	6,940
	GLP Iwatsuki
	Tokyo-10
	4
	98.9
	100,162.57
	101,272.40
	6.7
	20,100 
	19,000
	GLP Sugito II
	Tokyo-9
	1
	100.0
	19,706.00
	19,706.00
	0.8
	2,650 
	2,368 
	2,380
	GLP Fukaya
	Tokyo-8
	1
	100.0
	76,532.71
	76,532.71
	4.0
	12,600 
	11,217 
	11,500
	GLP Kazo
	Tokyo-7
	1
	100.0
	12,017.00
	12,017.00
	0.6
	1,840 
	1,745 
	1,720
	GLP Funabashi
	Tokyo-6
	2
	100.0
	104,543.59
	104,543.59
	5.3
	18,200 
	15,304 
	15,220
	GLP Narashino II
	Tokyo-5
	1
	100.0
	27,042.59
	27,042.59
	1.8
	5,270 
	4,896 
	4,990
	GLP Tomisato
	Tokyo-4
	3
	100.0
	27,356.63
	27,356.63
	2.5
	7,740 
	7,135 
	7,160
	GLP Akishima
	Tokyo-3
	1
	100.0
	34,582.00
	34,582.00
	1.7
	5,590 
	5,024 
	4,980
	GLP Higashi- Ogishima
	Tokyo-2
	5
	100.0
	56,105.95
	56,105.95
	8.0
	24,300 
	22,493 
	22,700
	GLP Tokyo
	Tokyo-1
	(Note 7)
	Number of tenants
	(%) (Note 6)
	Occupancy ratio
	(Note 5)
	(m2)
	Leased area
	(Note 4)
	(m2)
	Leasable area
	(Note 3)
	(%)
	Share
	(Note 2)
	(Millions of yen)
	Appraisal value
	(Millions of yen)
	Book value
	(Note 1)
	(Millions of yen)
	Acquisition price
	Property name
	Property number
	The following table summarizes the beneficiary rights of real estate in trust or the real estate properties in trust held by GLP J-REIT at the fiscal period end. Each figure in this table is the information as of August 31, 2014 unless otherwise stated. 
	(2) Portfolio Overview
	(This part is intentionally left blank)
	(Note 6) The figures in square brackets represent the holding properties portion to total assets.
	(Note 5) The book value is stated for total assets, total liabilities and total net assets. 
	(Note 4) The amounts of construction in progress are not included in the amounts of property and equipment in trust.
	(Note 3) The ratio to total assets is rounded off to the first decimal place. 
	(Note 2) Total amount held is the carrying value (for property and equipment or property and equipment in trust, the book value after deducting depreciation). 
	(Note 1) “Tokyo metropolitan area” includes Tokyo, Kanagawa, Saitama, Chiba, Ibaraki, Tochigi, Gunma, and Yamanashi prefectures. “Greater Osaka area” includes Osaka, Hyogo, Kyoto, Shiga, Nara and Wakayama prefectures. “Other” includes areas other than above. 
	45.5
	133,388
	52.3
	134,011
	Total net assets (Note 5)
	54.5
	159,835
	47.7
	122,095
	Total liabilities (Note 5)
	(Note 3)
	As a ratio to total assets (%)
	(Millions of yen)
	Amount
	(Note 3)
	As a ratio to total assets (%)
	(Millions of yen)
	Amount
	 [96.3]
	100.0
	    [282,337]
	293,223
	 [96.6]
	100.0
	    [247,437]
	256,107
	Total assets (Note 5) (Note 6)
	3.7
	10,886
	3.4 
	8,669
	Deposits and other assets
	96.3
	282,337
	96.6 
	247,437
	Sub Total
	16.5
	48,310
	14.9 
	38,262
	Other
	21.3
	62,349
	24.5 
	62,755
	Greater Osaka area
	58.5
	171,678
	57.2 
	146,419
	Tokyo metropolitan area
	Property and equipment in trust (Note 4)
	(Note 3)
	As a ratio to total assets (%)
	(Note 2)
	(Millions of yen)
	Total amount held
	(Note 3)
	As a ratio to total assets (%)
	(Note 2)
	(Millions of yen)
	Total amount held
	August 31, 2014
	Current Period
	February 28, 2014
	Prior Period
	(Note 1)
	Area
	Type of asset
	(1) Investment Status 
	5. Reference Information
	Changes in directors are disclosed on a timely basis, when the contents for disclosure are determined.
	4. Changes in Directors
	(Note 12) At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on April 15, 2014, it was resolved that GLP J-REIT would make distributions in excess of retained earnings (a refund of investment) of 251 yen per unit for the 4th fiscal period (the period ended February 28, 2014). The payment of distributions was commenced on May 19, 2014.
	(Note 11) At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on October 16, 2013, it was resolved that GLP J-REIT would make distributions in excess of retained earnings (a refund of investment) of 259 yen per unit for the 3rd fiscal period (the period ended August 31, 2013). The payment of distributions was commenced on November 19, 2013
	(Note 10) In connection with the public offering, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at the issue price of 88,735 yen.
	(Note 9) In order to obtain funds to acquire new properties, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a public offering at the issue price of 88,735 yen or the offer price of 91,942 yen per unit.
	(Note 8) At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on April 16, 2013, it was resolved that GLP J-REIT would make distributions in excess of retained earnings (a refund of investment) of 84 yen per unit for the 2nd fiscal period (the period ended February 28, 2013). The payment of distributions was commenced on May 22, 2013.
	(Note 7) In connection with the public offering, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at the issue price of 58,491 yen. 
	(Note 6) In order to obtain funds to acquire new properties, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a public offering at the issue price of 58,491 yen or the offer price of 60,500 yen per unit.
	(Note 5) GLP J-REIT executed an 8-for-1 unit split.
	(Note 4) In order to obtain necessary operating funds, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at 500,000 yen per unit. 
	(Note 3) In order to obtain necessary operating funds, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a third party allocation at 500,000 yen per unit. 
	(Note 2) At establishment of GLP J-REIT, new units were issued at the issue price of 500,000 yen per unit.
	(Note 1) “Unitholders’ capital, net” represents the amount of unitholders’ capital, net of distributions in excess of retained earnings deducted from total unitholders’ capital.
	(Note 12)
	129,415
	(526)
	2,097,700
	－
	Distributions in excess of retained earnings (a refund of investment)
	May 19, 2014
	(Note 11)
	129,942
	(475)
	2,097,700
	－
	Distributions in excess of retained earnings (a refund of investment)
	November 19, 2013
	(Note 10)
	130,418
	891
	2,097,700
	10,045
	Issuance of new units through allocation to a third party
	October 16, 2013
	(Note 9)
	129,527
	22,179
	2,087,655
	249,955
	Public offering
	September 26, 2013
	(Note 8)
	107,347
	(154)
	1,837,700
	－
	Distributions in excess of retained earnings (a refund of investment)
	May 22, 2013
	(Note 7)
	107,501
	5,112
	1,837,700
	87,400
	Issuance of new units through allocation to a third party
	January 21, 2013
	(Note 6)
	102,389
	102,189
	1,750,300
	1,747,100
	Public offering
	December 20, 2012
	(Note 5)
	200
	－
	3,200
	2,800
	Unit split
	October 31, 2012
	(Note 4)
	200
	90
	400
	180
	Issuance of new units through allocation to a third party
	June 22, 2012
	(Note 3)
	110
	10
	220
	20
	Issuance of new units through allocation to a third party 
	December 14, 2011
	(Note 2)
	100
	100
	200
	200
	Establishment through private placement
	September 16, 2011
	Total
	Increase (decrease)
	Total
	Increase (decrease)
	Note
	Unitholders’ capital, net (Note 1) (Millions of yen)
	Number of investment units issued and outstanding (Unit)
	Type of issue
	Date
	Changes in number of investment units issued and outstanding and net unitholders’ capital from the date of establishment to the end of current period are as follows:
	(9) Changes in Number of Investment Units Issued and Outstanding 
	(Note 2): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been substantially fixed at 1.854%.
	(Note 1): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been substantially fixed at 0.862%.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	21,650
	Total
	September 2, 2027
	(Note 2)
	JBA yen 3month TIBOR plus 0.93%
	2,700
	Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
	September 2, 2022
	(Note 1)
	JBA yen 3month TIBOR plus 0.36%
	13,600
	Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation, The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd., Development Bank of Japan Inc., The Norinchukin Bank, Resona Bank, Limited. and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
	September 2, 2016
	JBA yen 1month TIBOR plus 0.175%
	3,700
	Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation, Citibank Japan Ltd., The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd., The Norinchukin Bank, Resona Bank, Limited., Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, Shinsei Bank, Limited, Aozora Bank, Ltd., and The 77 Bank, Ltd. 
	February 28, 2015
	JBA yen 1month TIBOR plus 0.2%
	660
	The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
	not  guaranteed 
	Unsecured
	Lump-sum repayment on repayment date
	February 28, 2015
	September 2, 2014
	JBA yen 1month TIBOR plus 0.2%
	990
	Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
	Collateral
	Repayment method
	Repayment date
	Loan execution date
	Interest rate
	(Millions of yen)
	Loan amount
	Lender
	GLP J-REIT borrowed funds for acquisition of specified assets and related costs as stated in “(b) Acquisition of Assets” above.
	3. Borrowing of Funds
	53,830
	－
	－
	－
	Total
	1,050
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Chikushino, Fukuoka
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Chikushino
	1,520
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Fukuoka, Fukuoka
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Fukuoka
	3,740
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Hiroshima, Hiroshima
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Hiroshima
	1,460
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Sendai, Miyagi
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Ogimachi
	3,640
	Fukusaki Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Kanzaki-gun, Hyogo
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Fukusaki
	1,470
	Seishin Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Kobe, Hyogo
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Seishin
	2,430
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Kadoma, Osaka
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Kadoma
	2,420
	Okegawa Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Okegawa, Saitama
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Okegawa
	36,100
	Tokyo 2 Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Koto-ku, Tokyo
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Tokyo II
	(Millions of yen)
	Acquisition price
	Seller
	Location
	Acquisition date
	Property name
	GLP J-REIT acquired the nine properties shown below in the form of trust beneficiary interests (with a total acquisition price of 53,830 million yen). The acquisition price (the purchase price stated in the Sales and Purchase Agreement of Beneficiary Rights of Real Estate in Trust) excludes acquisition costs such as direct expenses for acquisition, property-related taxes and consumption taxes.
	2. Acquisition of Assets
	The funds raised through the public offering were appropriated for the acquisition of beneficiary rights of real estate in trust stated below in “(b) Acquisition of Assets.” The funds raised through the third-party allocation will be kept as cash on hand, of which, 1,090 million yen will be appropriated to repay a long-term loan before its maturity of January 4, 2015. (The amount was paid on September 30, 2014.)
	[Purpose of funding]
	Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.
	Underwriter:
	September 1, 2014
	Initial date of distribution calculation:
	September 24, 2014
	Payment date
	1,244,819,934 yen
	Total amount to be paid in (total issue amount):
	109,947 yen per unit
	Amount to be paid in (issue amount):
	11,322 units
	Number of new investment units issued:
	[Issuance of new investment units through a third-party allocation]
	September 1, 2014
	Initial date of distribution calculation:
	September 1, 2014
	Payment date
	30,973,059,423 yen
	Total amount to be paid in (total issue amount):
	109,947 yen per unit
	Amount to be paid in (issue amount):
	32,066,090,343 yen
	Total amount issued (total offering amount):
	113,827 yen per unit
	Issue price (Offer price):
	281,709 units(113,216 units for domestic market,168,493 units for international market)
	Number of new investment units to be issued:
	[Issuance of new investment units through a public offering]
	At the Board of Directors’ Meetings held on August 11 and August 20, 2014, GLP J-REIT resolved to issue the following new investment units. The proceeds from new investment units through a public offering were fully collected on September 1, 2014 while the proceeds from new investment units through a third-party allocation were fully collected on September 24, 2014.
	1. Issuance of New Investment Units
	(Significant Subsequent Events)　
	2,097,700 units
	2,060,678 units
	Average number of investment units during the period
	3,971,673 thousand yen
	4,068,088 thousand yen
	Net income attributable to ordinary unitholders 
	－ thousand yen
	－ thousand yen
	Amount not attributable to ordinary unitholders
	3,971,673 thousand yen
	4,068,088 thousand yen
	Net income 
	　To August 31, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	Current Period
	　To February 28, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Prior Period
	(Note 2)  The basis for calculating the net income per unit is as follows:
	(Note 1)  Net income per unit is calculated by dividing net income for the period by the weighted average number of investment units issued and outstanding. Diluted net income per unit is not stated as there are no diluted units. 
	1,893 yen
	1,974 yen
	Net income per unit
	63,588 yen
	63,884 yen
	Net assets per unit
	　To August 31, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	Current Period
	　To February 28, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Prior Period
	(Per Unit Information)
	Disclosure of this information has been omitted as no customer accounting for 10% or more of total operating revenues existed.
	3．Information on major tenants
	Disclosure of this information has been omitted as the amount of property and equipment in Japan has exceeded 90% of the amount of total property and equipment on the accompanying balance sheet. 
	(2) Property and equipment
	Disclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers in Japan have exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the accompanying statement of operations. 
	(1) Operating revenues
	2．Information by geographic area
	Disclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers for a single product and service have exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the Statement of Income. 
	1．Revenue information by product and service
	Current Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)
	BTS rental business
	874,578
	Hitachi Transport System, Ltd.
	Relevant segment
	Operating revenues
	Name of customer
	 (Unit: Thousand yen)
	A major customer accounting for 10% or more of total operating revenues is as follows. When each property or property in trust is leased through a master lease agreement, the amount of total revenues earned from end-tenants is stated.
	3．Information on major tenants
	Disclosure of this information has been omitted as the amount of property and equipment in Japan has exceeded 90% of the amount of total property and equipment on the accompanying balance sheet. 
	(2) Property and equipment
	Disclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers in Japan have exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the accompanying statement of operations. 
	(1) Operating revenues
	2．Information by geographic area
	Disclosure of this information has been omitted as operating revenues earned from external customers for a single product and service have exceeded 90% of operating revenues on the Statement of Income. 
	1．Revenue information by product and service
	Prior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014)
	(Related Information)
	 Reconciling items to increase in property and equipment under other items in the amount of 10,856 thousand yen consist of corporate assets which are not allocated to each reportable segment. Such corporate assets represent construction in progress of 10,856 thousand yen.
	 Reconciling items to segment assets in the amount of 6,398,884 thousand yen include current assets of 5,284,565 thousand yen, property and equipment of 17,749 thousand yen, investments and other assets of 842,668 thousand yen and deferred assets of 253,901 thousand yen.
	(Note 2)  Reconciling items to segment income of 971,979 thousand yen consist of corporate expenses of 971,979 thousand yen that are not allocated to each reportable segment. Corporate expenses present mainly asset management fee, asset custody fee, administrative service fees, directors’ remuneration and other expenses. 
	(Note 1)  Operating revenues are exclusively earned from external parties. 
	36,896,979
	10,856
	8,085,933
	28,800,189
	Increase in property and equipment
	1,985,815
	－
	1,236,302
	749,512
	Depreciation
	Other items
	293,223,980
	6,398,884
	164,444,037
	122,381,058
	Segment assets
	4,911,637
	(971,979)
	3,452,813
	2,430,803
	Segment income
	9,322,083
	－
	5,363,091
	3,958,991
	Operating revenues (Note1)
	Amount on financial statements
	Reconciling items
	BTS rental business
	Multi-tenant rental business
	(Unit: Thousand yen)   
	Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	 Reconciling items to increase in property and equipment under other items in the amount of 12,748 thousand yen consist of corporate assets which are not allocated to each reportable segment. Such corporate assets represent construction in progress of 12,748 thousand yen.
	 Reconciling items to segment assets in the amount of 4,807,015 thousand yen include current assets of 3,821,579 thousand yen, property and equipment of 6,892 thousand yen, investments and other assets of 664,067 thousand yen and deferred assets of 314,476 thousand yen.
	(Note 2)  Reconciling items to segment income of 905,041 thousand yen consist of corporate expenses of 905,041 thousand yen that are not allocated to each reportable segment. Corporate expenses present mainly asset management fee, asset custody fee, administrative service fees, directors’ remuneration and other expenses. 
	(Note 1)  Operating revenues are exclusively earned from external parties. 
	28,126,978
	(12,748)
	28,071,282
	68,445
	Increase in property and equipment
	1,755,590
	－
	1,176,037
	579,552
	Depreciation
	Other items
	256,107,053
	4,807,015
	157,387,896
	93,912,141
	Segment assets
	4,852,780
	(905,041)
	3,683,787
	2,074,035
	Segment income
	8,080,911
	－
	5,003,996
	Operating revenues (Note1)
	Amount on financial statements
	Reconciling items
	BTS rental business
	Multi-tenant rental business
	(Unit: Thousand yen)   
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014)
	3．Information about segment income, segment assets and other items 
	The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent to those disclosed in “Notes Concerning Significant Accounting Policies.” Segment income is measured on the basis of operating income, excluding certain corporate expenses (see reconciling items below). Segment assets are measured on the basis of total assets, excluding certain assets (see reconciling items below).
	2．Basis of measurement for the amounts of segment income, segment assets and other items for each reportable segment
	BTS property:  GLP Higashi-Ogishima, GLP Akishima, GLP Tomisato, GLP Narashino II, GLP Funabashi, GLP Kazo, GLP Fukaya, GLP Iwatsuki, GLP Kasukabe, GLP Tatsumi, GLP Hirakata, GLP Hirakata II, GLP Maishima II, GLP Tsumori, GLP Rokko, GLP Amagasaki II, GLP Nara, GLP Sakai, GLP Morioka, GLP Tomiya, GLP Koriyama I, GLP Tokai, GLP Hayashima, GLP Hayashima II, GLP Kiyama, GLP Tosu III, GLP Sendai, GLP Hamura, GLP Funabashi III, GLP Sodegaura, GLP Rokko II, GLP Ebetsu, GLP Kuwana, GLP Hatsukaichi, GLP Tatsumi IIa and GLP Tatsumi IIb.
	Multi-tenant property： GLP Tokyo, GLP Sugito II, GLP Koshigaya II, GLP Misato II, GLP Amagasaki, GLP Koriyama III, GLP Urayasu III and GLP Komaki.
	GLP J-REIT’s properties were classified to each segment as follows: 
	Operating segments are a component of GLP J-REIT for which separate financial information is available and whose operating results are regularly evaluated by the Board of Directors to make decisions about how resources are allocated and assess their performance. Consequently, each property is considered an operating segment. However, when properties share similar economic characteristic and meet other specific conditions, they may be aggregated for purposes of reporting segment information. Therefore, properties with multiple tenants have been aggregated and presented as “Multi-tenant Property” reportable segment, whereas a build-to-suit (“BTS”) properties developed for a single tenant or a property with a single tenant have been aggregated and presented as “BTS Property” reportable segment. 
	1．Overview of operating and reportable segments
	(Segment Information)
	(Segment and Related Information)
	Income and loss in connection with investment and rental properties are disclosed in “Notes to Statements of Operations.”
	(Note 3) The fair value of investment and rental properties was determined based on third-party appraisals or research price. 
	(Note 2) Of the change in book value during each period, the major increase for the prior period was primarily due to the acquisition of the following 7 properties in the total amount of 27,659,430 thousand yen: GLP Hamura, GLP Funabashi III, GLP Sodegaura, GLP Rokko II, GLP Ebetsu, GLP Kuwana and GLP Hatsukaichi, where the major decrease was due to depreciation of 1,755,590 thousand yen. Similarly, the major increase for the current period was primarily due to the acquisition of the following 4 properties in the total amount of 36,543,609 thousand yen: GLP Urayasu III, GLP Komaki, GLP Tatsumi IIa and GLP Tatsumi IIb), where the major decrease was due to depreciation of 1,985,815 thousand yen.
	(Note 1) The amount on the balance sheets is based on the acquisition cost less the accumulated amount of depreciation.
	306,507,000
	264,270,000
	Fair value at the end of the period
	282,337,462
	247,437,155
	Balance at the end of the period
	34,900,307
	26,384,137
	Change during the period
	247,437,155
	221,053,017
	Balance at the beginning of the period
	Book value 
	　To August 31, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	Current Period
	　To February 28, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Prior Period
	　(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Property and equipment consists of leasable logistics facilities for the purpose of earning rental revenues. The following tables summarize the book value, including changes during the fiscal periods and fair value of these rental properties. 
	(Investment and Rental Properties)
	None 
	Current Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014) 
	None 
	Prior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014) 
	4. Transactions and account balances with Board of Directors and individual unitholders
	(Note 4) The business name of Komaki Logistic Special Purpose Company is changed to Azalea 2 Special Purpose Company on September 2, 2014.
	(Note 3) Asset management fee above includes management fees of 124,250 thousand yen capitalized as part of acquisition costs of properties.
	(d)  Other transactions are determined based on market conditions. 
	(c) The rental income from rooftop leasing was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula proposed by GLP Solar Special Purpose Company.
	(b) The royalty fee was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula proposed by Global Logistic Properties Inc. 
	(a) The asset management fee was determined in accordance with the rules prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT. 
	(Note 2) Decisions relating to the terms and conditions of transactions:
	(Note 1) Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount but included in the related balance at the end of the period.
	4,806
	Advances received
	26,620
	Rental income from rooftop leasing (Note 2)
	Rooftop leasing
	－
	Equipment leasing
	1,630,100
	Minato-ku,Tokyo
	GLP Solar Special Purpose Company
	－
	－
	151,729
	Acceptance of security deposits
	36,429
	Deposits received
	75,352
	Receipt of deposits
	－
	－
	10,300,000
	Purchase of beneficiary right of real estate in trust
	－
	－
	Real estate
	100,100
	Minato-ku, Tokyo
	Komaki Logistic Special Purpose Company
	－
	－
	106,203
	Acceptance of security deposits
	39,471
	Deposits received
	79,089
	Receipt of deposits
	－
	－
	18,200,000
	Purchase of beneficiary right of real estate in trust
	－
	－
	Real estate
	100
	Minato-ku, Tokyo
	Urayasu Three Logistic Special Purpose Company
	826,615
	Accountspayable
	1,005,830
	Asset management fee (Note 2, 3)
	Entrustment of asset management
	Concurrently serving directors
	－
	Asset management
	100,000
	Minato-ku,Tokyo
	GLP Japan Advisors Inc. 
	－
	－
	28,984
	Leasing commission
	－
	－
	7,500
	Royalty fee (Note 2)
	29,488
	Operatingaccountspayable
	169,768
	Property management fee
	Patentlicense
	Entrustmentof propertymanagement 
	－
	Investmentadvisory/agency
	100,000
	Minato-ku,Tokyo
	Global Logistic Properties Inc. 
	Subsidiary of other related company
	Balance (Thousands of yen)
	Account title
	Transaction amount (Thousands of yen)
	Type of transaction
	Business relationship
	% of voting rights (owned)
	Type of business
	Stated capital (Thousands of yen)
	Location
	Name of the company
	Classifi-cation
	Current Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014) 
	(Note 3) Asset management fee above includes management fees of 82,500 thousand yen capitalized as part of acquisition costs of properties.
	(d)  Other transactions are determined based on market conditions. 
	(c) The rental income from rooftop leasing was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula proposed by GLP Solar Special Purpose Company.
	(b) The royalty fee was mutually agreed after negotiation between both parties, based on the initial formula proposed by Global Logistic Properties Inc. 
	(a) The asset management fee was determined in accordance with the rules prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT. 
	(Note 2) Decisions relating to the terms and conditions of transactions:
	(Note 1) Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount but included in the related balance at the end of the period.
	3,367
	Advances received
	9,860
	Rental income from rooftop leasing (Note 2)
	Rooftop leasing
	－
	Equipment leasing
	1,630,100
	Minato-ku,Tokyo
	GLP Solar Special Purpose Company
	750,017
	Accountspayable
	901,758
	Asset management fee (Note 2, 3)
	Entrustment of asset management
	Concurrently serving directors
	－
	Asset management
	100,000
	Minato-ku,Tokyo
	GLP Japan Advisors Inc. 
	－
	－
	11,865
	Leasing commission
	－
	－
	7,500
	Royalty fee (Note 2)
	28,083
	Operatingaccountspayable
	156,077
	Property management fee
	Patentlicense
	Entrustmentof propertymanagement 
	－
	Investmentadvisory/agency
	100,000
	Minato-ku,Tokyo
	Global Logistic Properties Inc. 
	Subsidiary of other related company
	Balance (Thousands of yen)
	Account title
	Transaction amount (Thousands of yen)
	Type of transaction
	Business relationship
	% of voting rights (owned)
	Type of business
	Stated capital (Thousands of yen)
	Location
	Name of the company
	Classifi-cation
	Prior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014) 
	3. Transactions and account balances with companies under common control
	None
	Current Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014) 
	None
	Prior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014)
	2. Transactions and account balances with affiliates
	None
	Current Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014) 
	None
	Prior Period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014)
	1. Transactions and account balances with the parent company and major unitholders
	(Related Party Transactions)
	0.03
	0.03
	Actual tax rate
	0.01
	0.01
	Other
	(36.57)
	(36.57)
	Distributions deductible for tax purposes
	36.59
	36.59
	Statutory effective tax rate
	As of August 31, 2014
	Current Period
	As of February 28, 2014
	Prior Period
	(Unit: %)
	2. Reconciliation between Japanese statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate with respect to pre-tax income reflected in the accompanying statement of operations for each period is as follows.
	34
	36
	Net deferred tax assets
	34
	36
	　Total
	34
	36
	Enterprise tax payable
	Deferred tax assets 
	As of August 31, 2014
	Current Period
	As of February 28, 2014
	Prior Period
	(Unit: Thousand yen) 
	1. Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
	(Deferred Tax Accounting)
	None
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	(Asset Retirement Obligation)
	No affiliate exists, thus, none to report.
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	(Equity in Income)
	None
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	(Retirement Benefit Plans)
	(Note 3) Fair value is measured by the counterparty of the relevant transaction based on market rates. 
	(Note 2) The fair value of the aforementioned interest rate swap entered on August 29, 2014 is stated since it is not accounted for as an integral component of long-term loan payable under the special accounting treatment due to the fact that no such loan payable is not yet recognized as of the fiscal period then ended. Interest rate swaps under the special accounting treatment, except for those aforementioned, are accounted for as an integral component of long-term loans payable designated as hedged items. Thus, their fair value is included in that of long-term loans payable disclosed in aforementioned “(Financial Instruments), 2. Estimated fair value of financial instruments, (4) Long-term loans payable.”  
	(Note 1) The amount includes the contract amount of interest rate swap (16,300 million yen) entered on August 29, 2014. The start date of the loan that is the hedged item is September 2, 2014. 
	(Note 3)
	(Note 2) 
	(15,106)
	(Note 1)
	114,990,000
	(Note 1)
	114,990,000
	Long-term loans payable
	Receive floating/ pay fix 
	Interest rate swaps
	Special treatment for interest rate swaps
	Due after one year
	Fair value measurement
	Fair value
	Contract amount and other
	Primary hedged item
	Type of derivative transaction
	Hedge accounting method
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	　Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	(Note 2) Fair value is measured by the counterparty of the relevant transaction based on market rates. 
	(Note 1) Interest rate swaps under the special accounting treatment are accounted for as an integral component of long-term loans payable designated as hedged items. Thus, their fair value is included in that of long-term loans payable disclosed in aforementioned “(Financial Instruments), 2. Estimated fair value of financial instruments, (4) Long-term loans payable.”  
	(Note 2)
	(Note 1) 
	77,150,000
	77,150,000
	Long-term loans payable
	Receive floating/ pay fix 
	Interest rate swaps
	Special treatment for interest rate swaps
	Due after one year
	Fair value measurement
	Fair value
	Contract amount and other
	Primary hedged item
	Type of derivative transaction
	Hedge accounting method
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	　Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014)
	The contract and notional amount as of the balance sheet date by hedge accounting method is as follows: 
	2. Derivative transactions for which hedge accounting is applied
	None
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	1. Derivative transactions for which hedge accounting is not applied
	(Derivative Transactions)
	None
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014) and Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	(Investment Securities)
	48,340,000
	18,300,000
	24,300,000
	15,580,000
	23,800,000
	19,600,000
	Total
	46,340,000
	12,300,000
	24,300,000
	15,580,000
	23,800,000
	19,600,000
	Long-term loans payable
	2,000,000
	6,000,000
	－
	－
	－
	－
	Investment corporation bonds
	Due after five years
	Due after four to five years
	Due after three to four years
	Due after two to three years
	Due after one to two years
	Due within one year
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	32,300,000
	6,000,000
	24,300,000
	3,500,000
	23,800,000
	19,600,000
	Total
	32,300,000
	－
	24,300,000
	3,500,000
	23,800,000
	19,600,000
	Long-term loans payable
	－
	6,000,000
	－
	－
	－
	－
	Investment corporation bonds
	Due after five years
	Due after four to five years
	Due after three to four years
	Due after two to three years
	Due after one to two years
	Due within one year
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014)
	(Note 4) Redemption schedule for long-term loans payable and investment corporation bonds
	9,201,033
	Total
	4,290,515
	Cash and deposits in trust
	4,910,518
	Cash and deposits
	Due within one year
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	6,814,504
	Total
	3,796,866
	Cash and deposits in trust
	3,017,637
	Cash and deposits
	Due within one year
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014)
	(Note 3) Redemption schedule for monetary claims are as follows:
	Regarding tenant leasehold and security deposits and tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust, no observable market prices are available and the timing of repayments is not reliably estimated. Thus, it is impracticable to reasonably estimate their future cash flows and very difficult to estimate their fair value. Therefore, their fair values are not disclosed.
	6,820,822
	6,348,149
	Total
	278,019
	6,542,803
	178,019
	6,170,130
	Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
	Tenant leasehold and security deposits 
	As of August 31, 2014
	Current Period
	As of February 28, 2014
	Prior Period
	Account name
	(Unit: Thousand yen) 
	(Note 2) Financial instruments for which fair value is difficult to estimate are as follows:
	Please refer to “(Derivative Transactions)” described below.
	Derivative transactions:
	The reference value disclosed by the Japan Securities Dealers Association is used as the fair value.
	(3) Investment corporation bonds
	With respect to long-term loans payable, interest rates of floating-rate loans are periodically adjusted or renewed by contract. Thus, the book value of these instruments is deemed a reasonable approximation of the fair value, and the book value is, therefore, used as the fair value. The fair value of fixed-rate loans is measured by discounting the total principle and interest amount at the current rates that are reasonably estimated to be applicable if GLP J-REIT enters into new similar loans. The fair value of interest rate swaps under the special accounting treatment is included in long-term loans payable and designated as a hedged item.
	(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable (4) Long-term loans payable
	Due to the short maturities, the book value of these instruments is deemed a reasonable approximation of the fair value; therefore, the book value is used as the fair value.
	(1) Short-term loans payable
	Liabilities:
	Due to the short maturities, the book value of these instruments is deemed a reasonable approximation of the fair value; therefore, the book value is used as the fair value. 
	(1) Cash and deposits (2) Cash and deposits in trust
	Assets:
	(Note 1) Methods to estimate fair value of financial instruments
	(15,106)
	(15,106)
	－
	Derivative transactions
	990,073
	150,910,073
	149,920,000
	Total liabilities
	947,473 
	123,267,473 
	122,320,000
	(4) Long-term loans payable
	42,600
	8,042,600
	8,000,000
	(3) Investment corporation bonds
	－
	19,600,000
	19,600,000
	(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable
	－
	9,201,033
	9,201,033
	Total assets
	－
	4,290,515
	4,290,515
	(2) Cash and deposits in trust
	－
	4,910,518
	4,910,518
	(1) Cash and deposits
	Fair value
	Book value
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Book value, fair value and difference between the values as of August 31, 2014 are as follows. Financial instruments for which fair value is difficult to estimate are excluded from the following table (See Note 2 below).
	Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	－
	－
	－
	Derivative transactions
	642,189
	113,942,189
	113,300,000
	Total liabilities
	636,189
	84,536,189
	83,900,000
	(4) Long-term loans payable
	6,000
	6,006,000
	6,000,000
	(3) Investment corporation bonds
	－
	19,600,000
	19,600,000
	(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable
	－
	3,800,000
	3,800,000
	(1) Short-term loans payable
	－
	6,814,504
	6,814,504
	Total assets
	－
	3,796,866
	3,796,866
	(2) Cash and deposits in trust
	－
	3,017,637
	3,017,637
	(1) Cash and deposits
	Difference
	Fair value
	Book value
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Book value, fair value and difference between the values as of February 28, 2014 are as follows. Financial instruments for which fair value is difficult to estimate are excluded from the following table (See Note 2 below).
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014)
	2．Estimated fair value of financial instruments
	The fair value of financial instruments is based on observable market prices, if available. When there is no available observable market price, the fair value is reasonably estimated. Since various factors are considered in estimating the fair value, different assumptions and factors could result in a range of fair values. 
	(3) Supplemental explanation regarding fair values of financial instruments
	Tenant leasehold and security deposits and tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust are deposits received from tenants. GLP J-REIT is obligated to repay the deposits upon the tenant’s termination of the leased property, thus exposed to liquidity risk. GLP J-REIT generally minimizes and manages such risk by holding sufficient funds to make the repayments and monitoring its cash flows.
	Certain loans are floating rate and exposed to the risk of rising interest rates. GLP J-REIT mitigates such risk by maintaining a prudent loan-to-value ratio and stabilizing its financial costs with the use of derivative transactions (interest rate swaps) as a hedge. All interest rate swaps meet the specific matching criteria to qualify for the special accounting treatment, thus the hedge effectiveness test is omitted. Derivative transactions are executed and managed under the Management Guidelines of the Asset Manager. 
	Bank loans and investment corporation bonds are made to procure funds for acquisition of properties and refinancing of bank loans or investment corporation bonds upon their maturities. GLP J-REIT mitigates the liquidity risk exposure upon repayment and redemption of loans by diversifying the maturities and lending institutions, and manages such liquidity risk by preparing and monitoring the forecasted cash flows. 
	Deposits are used for investment of GLP J-REIT’s surplus funds. These deposits are exposed to credit risk, such as bankruptcy of the depository financial institution. GLP J-REIT limits credit risk by using only short-term deposits in financial institutions with high credit ratings. 
	(2) Financial instruments, their risks and risk management system 
	GLP J-REIT enters into derivative transactions solely for the purpose of reducing interest rate and other risks. GLP J-REIT does not use derivative transactions for speculative purposes. 
	GLP J-REIT procures funds for acquisition of assets or repayment of debts through issuance of new investment units, bank loans and issuance of investment corporation bonds. 
	(1) Policy for financial instruments
	1．Status of financial instruments
	(Financial Instruments)
	71,214,309
	66,677,914
	Total
	54,151,094
	51,803,549
	Due after one year
	17,063,214
	14,874,364
	Due within one year
	As of August 31, 2014
	Current Period
	As of February 28, 2014
	Prior Period
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	　　Future minimum rental revenues
	Operating lease transactions (As Lessor) 
	(Leases)
	9,201,033
	6,814,504
	Cash and cash equivalents
	4,290,515
	3,796,866
	Cash and deposits in trust
	4,910,518
	3,017,637
	Cash and deposits
	　To August 31, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	Current Period
	　To February 28, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Prior Period
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	*1. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents in Statements of Cash Flows to accounts and amounts in the accompanying balance sheets 
	 (Notes to Statements of Cash Flows)
	2,097,700 units
	2,097,700 units
	Number of investment units issued and outstanding
	16,000,000 units
	16,000,000 units
	Number of investment units authorized
	　To August 31, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	Current Period
	　To February 28, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Prior Period
	*1. Number of investment units authorized and number of investment units issued and outstanding
	(Notes to Statements of Changes in Net Assets)
	5,883,616
	5,757,822
	C．Operating income from property leasing (A－B)
	3,438,466
	2,323,089
	Total property-related expenses
	55,502
	39,566
	Others
	1,985,815
	1,755,590
	Depreciation
	16,334
	14,965
	Casualty insurance
	54,802
	15,247
	Repairs and maintenance
	254,787
	209,312
	Utilities
	328,479
	288,406
	Property and facility management fees 
	742,745
	－
	Taxes and dues
	Rental expenses:
	B．Property-related expenses
	9,322,083
	8,080,911
	Total property-related revenues
	335,258
	244,480
	Total
	75,594
	38,469
	Others
	28,707
	27,157
	Parking lots 
	230,956
	178,854
	Utility charges
	Other revenues related to property leasing
	8,986,824
	7,836,430
	Total
	263,689
	217,638
	　Common area charges
	8,723,135
	7,618,792
	　Rental revenues
	Rental revenues: 
	A．Property-related revenues
	　To August 31, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	　To February 28, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Prior Period
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	*1. Revenues and expenses generated from the property leasing activities:
	(Notes to Statements of Operations)
	*1． Minimum net assets as required by Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations: 50,000 thousand yen.
	Current Period (As of August 31, 2014)
	*1． Minimum net assets as required by Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations: 50,000 thousand yen.
	Prior Period (As of February 28, 2014)　
	(Notes to Balance Sheets)
	(8) Notes to Financial Statements
	Consumption taxes withheld and paid are not included in the accompanying statements of operations. 
	(2) Accounting treatment for consumption taxes
	(c)  Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
	(b) Buildings in trust, structures in trust, machinery and equipment in trust, tools, furniture and fixtures in trust and land in trust 
	(a)  Cash and deposits in trust 
	Of which, the following significant trust assets are shown separately on the balance sheets. 
	As to beneficiary rights of real estate in trust, all accounts of assets and liabilities for assets in trust as well as the related income generated and expenses incurred are recorded in the relevant balance sheets and income statement accounts.  
	(1) Accounting treatment of beneficiary right of real estate in trust
	7. Other significant matters which constitute the basis for preparation of financial statements
	Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and cash in trust, readily-available bank deposits, readily-available bank deposits in trust and short-term investments that are liquid and realizable with a maturity of three months or less when purchased and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
	6. Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the Statements of Cash Flows 
	The hedge effectiveness for interest rate swaps is omitted since all interest rate swaps of GLP J-REIT meet the specific matching criteria for the special accounting treatment.
	GLP J-REIT enters into derivative transactions in order to hedge against risks defined in its Articles of Incorporation in compliance with their general risk management policy. GLP J-REIT uses interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging its risk exposure associated with interests on variable rate loans payable. Where deferral accounting is generally adopted for hedge transactions, GLP J-REIT applies the special accounting treatment to interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting and meet the specific matching criteria. Under the special accounting treatment, interest rate swaps are not measured at fair value, but the differential paid or received under the swap agreements is recognized and included in interest expense or income, respectively. 
	5. Hedge accounting
	Of the amounts paid for the acquisition of real estate or beneficiary right of real estate in trust, the amounts equivalent to property-related tax are capitalized as part of the acquisition cost of the relevant property instead of being charged as expenses. Capitalized property-related taxes amounted to 47,068 thousand yen for the prior period and 147,145 thousand yen for the current period.
	With respect to taxes on property and equipment held by GLP J-REIT, of the tax amounts assessed and determined, the amounts corresponding to the relevant accounting period is accounted for as rental expenses. 
	Taxes on property and equipment
	4. Revenue and expense recognition
	(2)  Investment corporate bond issuance costs are amortized over the remaining life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
	(1) Investment unit issuance expenses are amortized over three years using the straight-line method.
	3. Accounting treatment for deferred assets
	    Tools, furniture and fixtures      2 to 15 years
	    Machinery and equipment      6 to 12 years
	    Structures     　　        2 to 57 years
	    Buildings　　   　          2 to 55 years
	Property and equipment are stated at cost, which includes the original purchase price and related acquisition costs and expenses. Depreciation of property and equipment, including property and equipment in trust, is calculated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:
	Property and equipment including trust assets
	2. Depreciation of noncurrent assets
	Available-for-sale securities with no readily determinable market price are stated at cost. Cost of securities sold is determined by the moving-average method.
	Securities
	1. Basis and method of valuation of assets
	(7) Notes Concerning Significant Accounting Policies
	　None
	(6) Notes Concerning Going Concern Assumption
	9,201,033
	6,814,504
	Cash and cash equivalents at end of period　*1
	6,814,504
	11,469,687
	Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
	2,386,529
	(4,655,183)
	Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
	32,011,260
	17,808,019
	Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
	(526,256)
	(475,654)
	Payments of distributions in excess of retained earnings
	(4,065,471)
	(3,544,759)
	Payments of distributions of earnings
	－
	22,957,887
	Proceeds from issuance of investment units
	(17,011)
	(29,454)
	Payments for investment corporation bond issuance costs
	2,000,000
	6,000,000
	Proceeds from issuance of investment corporation bonds
	－
	(1,000,000)
	Repayments for long-term loans payable
	38,420,000
	8,500,000
	Proceeds from long-term loans payable
	(11,500,000)
	(23,400,000)
	Repayments for short-term loans payable
	7,700,000
	8,800,000
	Proceeds from short-term loans payable
	Financing activities:
	(36,291,144)
	(27,228,252)
	Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
	(61,943)
	(92,862)
	Repayments of tenant leasehold and security deposits
	100,000
	－
	Proceeds from tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
	457,045
	1,029,200
	Proceeds from tenant leasehold and security deposits
	(36,768,586)
	(28,157,717)
	Purchase of property and equipment in trust
	(17,660)
	(6,872)
	Purchase of property and equipment
	Investing activities:
	6,666,413
	4,765,049
	Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
	(1,315)
	(712)
	Income taxes paid 
	(672,690)
	(520,597)
	Interest paid
	774
	968
	Interest received
	7,339,644
	5,285,391
	Sub total
	75,900
	(682,167)
	Increase (decrease) in deposits received
	239,154
	225,361
	Increase (decrease) in advances received
	－
	(282,961)
	Increase (decrease) in consumption taxes payables
	117,870
	66,691
	Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
	70,585
	(14,648)
	Increase (decrease) in operating accounts payable
	(178,601)
	78,459
	Decrease (increase) in long-term prepaid expenses 
	400
	(400)
	Decrease (increase) in other current assets
	468,815
	(524,483)
	Decrease (increase) in consumption taxes receivable
	(25,442)
	2,669
	Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
	(144,982)
	940
	Decrease (increase) in operating accounts receivable
	681,742
	518,730
	Interest expense
	(774)
	(968)
	Interest income
	72,620
	72,620
	Amortization of investment unit issuance expenses
	3,513
	542
	Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs 
	1,985,815
	1,755,590
	Depreciation 
	3,973,024
	4,069,415
	Income before income taxes
	Operating activities:
	To August 31, 2014
	To February 28, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Current Period
	Prior Period
	　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　  　         (Unit: Thousand yen)
	(5) Statements of Cash Flows 
	(Note) For the time being, GLP J-REIT intends to make an OPD distribution in the amount equal to approximately 30% of depreciation expenses for the accounting period immediately before the period in which the distribution is made, unless GLP J-REIT determines that the OPD payment would have a negative impact on its long-term repair and maintenance plan or financial conditions in light of the estimated amount of capital expenditure for each fiscal period based on the plan.
	Thus, GLP J-REIT declared the OPD of 593,649,100 yen, as a refund of investment, which was determined as follows: (1) the amount not exceeding the upper limit of 1,643,302,626 yen calculated by deducting capital expenditure of 342,513,135 yen from depreciation expense of 1,985,815,761 yen, and (2) approximately 30% of the depreciation expense of 1,985,815,761 yen for the period. 
	Furthermore, based on the distribution policy as defined in Section 34.2 of its bylaws, GLP J-REIT will make an Optimal Payable Distribution (the “OPD”), which represents a distribution of funds in excess of retained earnings, as a refund of its investment, in each fiscal period on a continuing basis. 
	(Continued)
	Thus, GLP J-REIT declared the OPD of 526,522,700 yen, as a refund of investment, which was determined as follows: (1) the amount not exceeding the upper limit of 1,275,293,218 yen calculated by deducting capital expenditure of 480,296,839 yen from depreciation expense of 1,755,590,057 yen, and (2) approximately 30% of the depreciation expense of 1,755,590,057 yen for the period. 
	Furthermore, based on the distribution policy as defined in Section 34.2 of its bylaws, GLP J-REIT will make an Optimal Payable Distribution (the “OPD”), which represents a distribution of funds in excess of retained earnings, as a refund of its investment, in each fiscal period on a continuing basis. 
	(Continued)
	(Continued)
	Accordingly, GLP J-REIT declared a distribution amount of 3,970,946,100 yen, which was the amount equivalent to the maximum integral multiples of the number of investment units issued and outstanding as of the end of the period.
	 In accordance with Section 34.1 of the bylaws set forth by GLP J-REIT for distributions of cash dividends, the amount of the distributions shall be more than 90% of income available for dividends defined in Section 67.15 of the Special Taxation Measures Act.  
	 (Continued)
	Accordingly, GLP J-REIT declared a distribution amount of 4,067,440,300 yen, which was the amount equivalent to the maximum integral multiples of the number of investment units issued and outstanding as of the end of the period.
	 In accordance with Section 34.1 of the bylaws set forth by GLP J-REIT for distributions of cash dividends, the amount of the distributions shall be limited to the amount of net income but more than 90% of income available for dividends defined in Section 67.15 of the Special Taxation Measures Act.  
	Calculation method of distribution amount
	1,937,291
	1,209,552
	IV Retained earnings carried forward
	[283]
	[251]
	[Of which, distributions in excess of retained earnings per unit]
	593,649,100
	526,522,700
	 Of which, distributions in excess of retained earnings
	[1,893]
	[1,939]
	[Of which, distributions of earnings per unit]
	3,970,946,100
	4,067,440,300
	  Of which, distributions of earnings
	[2,176]
	[2,190]
	[Distributions per unit]
	4,564,595,200
	4,593,963,000
	III Distributions
	593,649,100
	526,522,700
	Deduction from unitholders’ capital
	II  Distributions in excess of retained earnings
	3,972,883,391
	4,068,649,852
	I  Unappropriated retained earnings 
	To August 31, 2014
	To February 28, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Current Period
	Prior Period
	(Unit: Yen)
	 (4) Statements of Distributions 
	133,388,869
	133,388,869
	3,972,883
	3,972,883
	129,415,985
	(1,156,853)
	130,572,839
	Balance at the end of the period *1
	(622,289)
	(622,289)
	(95,766)
	(95,766)
	(526,522)
	(526,522)
	－
	Total changes of items during the period
	3,971,673
	3,971,673
	3,971,673
	3,971,673
	Net income
	(4,067,440)
	(4,067,440)
	(4,067,440)
	(4,067,440)
	Distributions of earnings
	(526,522)
	(526,522)
	(526,522)
	(526,522)
	Distributions in excess of retained earnings
	Changes of items during the period
	134,011,158
	134,011,158
	4,068,649
	4,068,649
	129,942,508
	(630,331)
	130,572,839
	Balance at the beginning of the period
	Total retained earnings
	Unappropriated retained earnings 
	Total unitholders’ equity
	Retained earnings
	Unitholders’ capital, net
	Deduction from unitholders’ capital
	Unitholders’capital
	Total Net Assets
	Unitholders’ equity
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Current period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)
	134,011,158
	134,011,158
	4,068,649
	4,068,649
	129,942,508
	(630,331)
	130,572,839
	Balance at the end of the period *1
	23,116,463
	23,116,463
	521,327
	521,327
	22,595,135
	(475,964)
	23,071,100
	Total changes of items during the period
	4,068,088
	4,068,088
	4,068,088
	4,068,088
	Net income
	(3,546,761)
	(3,546,761)
	(3,546,761)
	(3,546,761)
	Distributions of earnings
	(475,964)
	(475,964)
	(475,964)
	(475,964)
	Distributions in excess of retained earnings
	23,071,100
	23,071,100
	23,071,100
	Issuance of new investment units
	Changes of items during the period
	110,894,695
	110,894,695
	3,547,322
	3,547,322
	107,347,372
	(154,366)
	107,501,739
	Balance at the beginning of the period
	Total retained earnings
	Unappropriated retained earnings 
	Total unitholders’ equity
	Retained earnings
	Unitholders’ capital, net
	Deduction from unitholders’ capital
	Unitholders’capital
	Total Net Assets
	Unitholders’ equity
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	Prior period (From September 1, 2013 to February 28, 2014)
	(3) Statements of Changes in Net Assets
	3,972,883
	4,068,649
	Unappropriated retained earnings
	1,209
	561
	Accumulated earnings brought forward
	3,971,673
	4,068,088
	Net income
	1,350
	1,326
	Total income taxes
	1
	(28)
	Income taxes-deferred 
	1,348
	1,355
	Income taxes-current 
	3,973,024
	4,069,415
	Income before income taxes
	3,973,024
	4,069,415
	Ordinary income 
	940,864
	784,334
	Total non-operating expenses 
	609
	1,311
	Others, net
	1,315
	22,100
	Offering costs associated with the issuance of investment units
	72,620
	72,620
	Amortization of investment unit issuance expenses
	181,063
	169,029
	Borrowing related expenses
	3,513
	542
	Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs
	16,050
	77
	Interest expenses on investment corporation bonds
	665,692
	518,652
	Interest expense 
	Non-operating expenses 
	2,252
	968
	Total non-operating income 
	1,477
	－
	Interest on refund of consumption taxes
	774
	968
	Interest income 
	Non-operating income
	4,911,637
	4,852,780
	Operating income
	4,410,446
	3,228,131
	Total operating expenses 
	56,491
	52,148
	Other operating expenses 
	128
	44
	Taxes and dues 
	14,000
	14,000
	Audit fee 
	3,720
	3,720
	Directors’ remuneration 
	11,612
	11,722
	Administrative service fees 
	4,447
	4,147
	Asset custody fee 
	881,580
	819,258
	Asset management fee
	3,438,466
	2,323,089
	Rental expenses *1
	9,322,083
	8,080,911
	Total operating revenues 
	335,258
	244,480
	Other rental revenues　*1
	8,986,824
	7,836,430
	Rental revenues *1
	Operating revenues 
	To August 31, 2014
	To February 28, 2014
	From March 1, 2014
	From September 1, 2013
	Current Period
	Prior Period
	                                               (Unit: Thousand yen)
	(2) Statements of Operations
	293,223,980
	256,107,053
	Total Liabilities and Net Assets 
	133,388,869
	134,011,158
	Total Net Assets　*1
	133,388,869
	134,011,158
	Total unitholders’ equity 
	3,972,883
	4,068,649
	Total retained earnings 
	3,972,883
	4,068,649
	Unappropriated retained earnings 
	Retained earnings 
	129,415,985
	129,942,508
	Unitholders’ capital, net
	(1,156,853)
	(630,331)
	Deduction from unitholders’ capital
	130,572,839
	130,572,839
	Unitholders’ capital 
	Unitholders’ equity 
	Net Assets 
	159,835,111
	122,095,895
	Total Liabilities
	137,140,822
	96,248,149
	Total noncurrent liabilities 
	278,019
	178,019
	Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
	6,542,803
	6,170,130
	Tenant leasehold and security deposits
	122,320,000
	83,900,000
	Long-term loans payable 
	8,000,000
	6,000,000
	Investment corporation bonds
	Noncurrent liabilities 
	22,694,288
	25,847,745
	Total current liabilities 
	77,783
	55,354
	Current portion of tenant leasehold and security deposits
	75,900
	－
	Deposits received
	1,631,787
	1,392,633
	Advances received 
	1,191
	1,158
	Income taxes payable 
	15,698
	6,646
	Accrued expenses 
	1,123,745
	894,357
	Accounts payable 
	19,600,000
	19,600,000
	Current portion of long-term loans payable
	－
	3,800,000
	Short-term loans payable
	168,180
	97,594
	Operating accounts payable 
	Current liabilities 
	Liabilities
	As of August 31, 2014
	Current Period
	As of February 28, 2014
	Prior Period
	(Unit: Thousand yen)
	　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　
	293,223,980
	256,107,053
	Total Assets
	253,901
	314,476
	Total deferred assets
	44,045
	31,999　　
	Investment corporation bond issuance costs
	209,855
	282,476
	Investment unit issuance expenses
	Deferred assets
	283,199,480
	248,109,715
	Total noncurrent assets
	844,268
	665,667
	Total investments and other assets
	10,000
	10,000
	Security deposits
	832,668
	654,067
	Long-term prepaid expenses
	1,600
	1,600
	Investment securities
	Investments and other assets
	282,355,212
	247,444,047
	Total property and equipment, net
	17,749
	6,892
	Construction in progress
	171,556,870
	145,602,917
	Land in trust
	77,241
	68,691
	Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust, net
	(22,058)
	(14,541)
	Accumulated depreciation
	83,233
	Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust
	38,006
	42,185
	Machinery and equipment in trust, net
	(13,903)
	(9,724)
	Accumulated depreciation
	51,909
	51,909
	Machinery and equipment in trust
	2,432,491
	2,130,214
	Structures in trust, net
	(339,426)
	(218,693)
	Accumulated depreciation
	2,771,918
	2,348,908
	Structures in trust
	108,232,851
	99,593,146
	Buildings in trust, net
	(5,469,312)
	(3,615,924)
	Accumulated depreciation
	113,702,163
	103,209,070
	Buildings in trust
	Property and equipment
	Noncurrent assets
	9,770,598
	7,682,862
	Total current assets
	－
	400
	Other current assets　
	55,667
	               524,483 
	Consumption taxes receivable
	34
	36
	Deferred tax assets
	329,564
	304,122
	Prepaid expenses
	184,297
	39,315
	Operating accounts receivable
	4,290,515
	3,796,866
	Cash and deposits in trust
	4,910,518
	3,017,637
	Cash and deposits
	Current assets
	Assets
	As of August 31, 2014
	Current Period
	As of February 28, 2014
	Prior Period
	　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　    (Unit: Thousand yen)
	(1) Balance Sheets
	3. Financial Statements
	(This part is intentionally left blank)
	・ The forecast assumes that there will be no unforeseen material change in general economic trends and real estate market conditions, etc.
	・ The forecast assumes that there will be no revision of laws and regulations, tax systems, accounting standards, listing regulations of Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc., rules of The Investment Trusts Association, Japan, (“JITA”), etc. that will impact the forecast figures above.
	Other
	Assumption
	Item
	・ Furthermore, the scheduled total amount of distributions of earnings and scheduled total amount of OPD are the figures of the most recent fiscal period.
	B= Total amount of appraisal value or research price of portfolio assets at the end of period + Cash and deposits balance at the end of period – Scheduled total amount of distributions of earnings – Scheduled total amount of OPD
	A= Interest-bearing liabilities balance (including investment corporation bonds balance and short-term investment corporation bonds balance) at the end of the period + Deposit release amount at the end of the period
	・Appraisal LTV (%) = A/B x 100 (%)
	・Depreciation may vary from the current expected amount due to change in portfolio assets, the amount of incidental expenses incurred and the amount of capital expenditure. Therefore, the total amount of optimal payable distribution calculated on the basis of depreciation may also vary due to these and other various factors. In addition, in order to maintain the value of assets held by GLP J-REIT, in the event that GLP J-REIT is to pay out OPD, GLP J-REIT sets the maximum as the amount of depreciation less capital expenditure incurred in the accounting period in which the concerned depreciation was recognized. Therefore, when emergency capital expenditure arises from unforeseen factors causing building damage and other, the amount of OPD per unit may decrease. Moreover, when the appraisal LTV provided below exceeds 60%, GLP J-REIT will not pay out OPD.
	・Optimal payable distribution per unit is calculated in accordance with the policy on cash distributions in excess of retained earnings provided in the Management Guidelines which are the internal policy of the Asset Manager and is calculated by assuming distribution of approximately 30% of respective depreciation arising in the 6th Fiscal Period and the 7th Fiscal Period.
	Optimal payable distribution (OPD) per unit 
	・Distributions per unit (excluding OPD) may change due to various factors including changes in portfolio assets, changes in rental revenues in connection with changes in tenants, unexpected repair, changes in interest rates and additional issuance of investment units.
	・Distribution per unit is calculated in accordance with the distribution policy set forth in the Articles of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT. 
	(excluding OPD)
	Distributions per unit
	Investment unit issuance expenses are amortized monthly for three years from occurrence, and amortization expenses are expected to be 89 million yen for each of the 6th Fiscal Period and the 7th Fiscal Period.
	・ The total amounts of interest expenses on loans, interest expenses on investment corporation bonds, amortization of investment corporation bonds issuance expenses and other finance-related expenses are expected to be 1,007 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 1,039 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period. Investment corporation bonds issuance expenses are amortized monthly for the period from issuance to redemption.
	Non-operating expenses
	・NOI (the amount calculated by deducting property-related expenses, excluding depreciation, from operating revenues) are expected to be 9,270 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 9,143 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period.
	NOI (Net Operating Income) from leasing
	・ Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on acquisition costs including incidental expenses and additional capital expenditure in the future.
	・ Actual amounts of repair and maintenance expenses of each accounting period may be significantly different from the estimated amounts due to the following reasons: repair and maintenance (1) may arise urgently due to property damages occurred by unpredictable incidents; (2) generally varies significantly by fiscal period and (3) may not arise regularly. 
	・ With respect to expenses other than depreciation, of rental expenses which are the main operating expenses, such expenses are calculated by reflecting expense changing factors to the past actual expenses.
	・ Depreciation is expected to be 2,345 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 2,363 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period.
	・ Property and facility management fees are expected to be 401 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 399 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period.
	・ Repair and maintenance expenses are expected to be 156 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 42 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period.
	(Continued)
	Operating expenses
	Assumption
	Item
	(Continued)
	・ Taxes and dues are expected to be 742 million yen for the 6th Fiscal Period and 969 million yen for the 7th Fiscal Period.
	・With respect to taxes on property and equipment (fixed asset tax, city planning tax and depreciable asset tax on real estate, etc. hereinafter “property-related taxes”) held by GLP J-REIT, of the tax amount assessed and determined, the amount corresponding to the relevant accounting period is recognized as rental expenses. However, if real estate or other assets is newly acquired and an adjusted amount of property-related taxes for the year under the same accounting period (the “amount equivalent to property-related taxes”) arises between GLP J-REIT and the transferor, the relevant adjusted amount is included in the cost of acquisition of the real estate, etc. Accordingly, with regard to property-related taxes for two properties acquired in March 2014 (GLP Urayasu III and GLP Komaki), two properties acquired in April 2014 (GLP Tatsumi IIa and GLP Tatsumi IIb) and the Nine September Properties, no amount will be recognized as tax expenses for the 6th Fiscal Period, and the total amount of 227 million yen for 13 properties will be recognized in the 7th Fiscal Period. The total amounts of property-related taxes included in the acquisition costs of the Nine September Properties are 92 million yen.
	Operating expenses
	・Concerning operating revenues, the forecast assumes that there is no delinquent rent payment by tenants.
	Operating revenues
	LTV=(Balance of interest-bearing liabilities / Total assets) x 100
	・It is assumed that LTV as of February 28, 2015 (the 6th Fiscal Period) is 49.1% where LTV as of August 31, 2015 (the 7th Fiscal Period) is 48.7%. The following formula is used to compute LTV.
	・The forecast assumes that 2,960 million yen of long-term loans payable will be repaid at the end of August 2015 by using cash on hand since consumption taxes corresponding to the 6th Fiscal Period are scheduled to be refunded during the 7th Fiscal Period.
	・ The forecast assumes that the following debts will be refinanced through loans or investment corporation bonds during the 6th Fiscal Period: (1) 18,510 million yen, the remaining balance of a long-term loan with the maturity date of January 4, 2015 and (2) short-term loans of September 2014 Borrowing. 
	・ On September 30, 2014, GLP J-REIT repaid 1,090 million yen of a long term loan with the  maturity date of January 4, 2015, by using funds raised by the issuance of new investment units through a third party allocation associated with the secondary offering through over allotment.
	・ GLP J-REIT borrowed 21,650 million yen, including short-term loans of 1,650 million yen, (hereinafter the “September 2014 Borrowing”) on September 2, 2014 to acquire the Nine September Properties. 
	・The outstanding interest bearing debts of GLP J-REIT as of the end of the 5th Fiscal Period are 149,920 million yen. 
	Interest-bearing liabilities
	・It is assumed that the number of investment units issued and outstanding as of the date of this document will be 2,390,731 units. 
	Number of investment units issued and outstanding
	・ It is assumed that the portfolio assets will consist of 53 properties which include beneficiary rights in trust assets mainly of real estate held by GLP J-REIT (44 properties) as of the end of the 5th Fiscal Period and the following beneficiary rights of real estate in trust newly acquired on September 2, 2014 (hereinafter the “Nine September Properties”): GLP Tokyo II, GLP Okegawa, GLP Kadoma, GLP Seishin, GLP Fukusaki, GLP Ogimachi, GLP Hiroshima, GLP Fukuoka and GLP Chikushino. The forecast also assumes that there will be no changes in portfolio assets (acquisition of new assets, disposal of portfolio assets, etc.) after these acquisitions until the end of August 2015. In practice, however, changes such as acquisitions of new assets or disposals of assets other than those properties stated above may occur.
	Portfolio assets
	The 7th Fiscal Period:　from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015 (184 days) 
	The 6th Fiscal Period:　from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015 (181 days)
	Accounting period
	Assumption
	Item
	(This part is intentionally left blank)Assumptions Underlying Earnings Forecasts for the 6th Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015) and the 7th Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015) 
	(Note) The forecast figures are the current figures calculated based on certain assumptions, and the actual net income, distribution per unit, OPD per unit and other figures may vary due to changes in circumstances surrounding GLP J-REIT. In addition, the forecast is not a guarantee of the amount of distributions or OPD.
	2,171
	2,243
	Yen    
	296
	294
	Yen    
	1,875
	1,949
	Yen    
	4,484 [(3.8)]
	 4,661 [17.4]
	Millions of yen [%]
	 4,486 [(3.8)]
	 4,662 [17.4]
	Millions of yen [%]
	 5,616 [(3.0)]
	 5,790 [17.9]
	Millions of yen [%]
	 10,962 [(0.0)]
	 10,967 [17.6]
	Millions of yen [%]
	August 31, 2015
	February 28, 2015
	Period ending
	Distributions per unit(including OPD)
	OPD per unit
	Distributions per unit(excluding OPD) 
	income
	Net 
	Ordinary income
	Operating income
	Operating revenues
	　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　[Percentages indicate period-on-period changes]
	GLP J-REIT has made the following earnings forecast for the fiscal period ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015) and the fiscal period ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015). Please refer the forecast assumptions to “Assumptions Underlying Earnings Forecasts for the 6th Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015) and the 7th Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015)” below.
	(iv) Earnings Forecast
	(Note 2): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been substantially fixed at 1.854%.
	(Note 1): GLP J-REIT entered into an interest rate swap agreement on August 29, 2014 and the interest rate has been substantially fixed at 0.862%.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	21,650
	Total
	September 2, 2027
	(Note 2)
	JBA yen 3month TIBOR plus 0.93%
	2,700
	Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
	September 2, 2022
	(Note 1)
	JBA yen 3month TIBOR plus 0.36%
	13,600
	Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation, The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd., Development Bank of Japan Inc. The Norinchukin Bank, Resona Bank, Limited. and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
	September 2, 2016
	JBA yen 1month TIBOR plus 0.175%
	3,700
	Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation, Citibank Japan Ltd., The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd., The Norinchukin Bank, Resona Bank, Limited., Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, Shinsei Bank, Limited, Aozora Bank, Ltd., and The 77 Bank, Ltd. 
	February 28, 2015
	JBA yen 1month TIBOR plus 0.2%
	660
	The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
	not  guaranteed 
	Unsecured
	Lump-sum repayment on repayment date
	February 28, 2015
	September 2, 2014
	JBA yen 1month TIBOR plus 0.2%
	990
	Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
	Collateral
	Repayment method
	Repayment date
	Loan execution date
	Interest rate
	(Millions of yen)
	Loan amount
	Lender
	GLP J-REIT borrowed funds for acquisition of specified assets and related costs as stated in “(b) Acquisition of Assets” above.
	(c) Borrowing of funds
	53,830
	－
	－
	－
	Total
	1,050
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Chikushino, Fukuoka
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Chikushino
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Fukuoka, Fukuoka
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Fukuoka
	3,740
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Hiroshima, Hiroshima
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Hiroshima
	1,460
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Sendai, Miyagi
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Ogimachi
	3,640
	Fukusaki Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Kanzaki-gun, Hyogo
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Fukusaki
	1,470
	Seishin Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Kobe, Hyogo
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Seishin
	2,430
	Azalea Special Purpose Company
	Kadoma, Osaka
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Kadoma
	2,420
	Okegawa Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Okegawa, Saitama
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Okegawa
	36,100
	Tokyo 2 Logistics Special Purpose Company
	Koto-ku, Tokyo
	September 2, 2014
	GLP Tokyo II
	(Millions of yen)
	Acquisition price
	Seller
	Location
	Acquisition date
	Property name
	GLP J-REIT acquired the nine properties shown below in the form of trust beneficiary interests (with the total acquisition price of 53,830 million yen). The acquisition price (the purchase price stated in the Sales and Purchase Agreement of Beneficiary Rights of Real Estate in Trust) excludes acquisition costs such as direct expenses for acquisition, property-related taxes and consumption taxes.
	(b) Acquisition of assets
	The funds raised through the public offering were appropriated for the acquisition of beneficiary rights of real estate in trust stated below in “(b) Acquisition of Assets”. The funds raised through the third-party allocation will be kept as cash on hand, of which, 1,090 million yen was appropriated to repay a long-term loan before its maturity of January 4, 2015. The amount was paid on September 30, 2014.
	[Purpose of funding]
	Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.
	Underwriter:
	September 1, 2014
	Initial date of distribution calculation:
	September 24, 2014
	Payment date
	Total amount to be paid in (total issue amount):
	109,947 yen per unit
	Amount to be paid in (issue amount):
	11,322 units
	Number of new investment units issued:
	[Issuance of new investment units through a third-party allocation]
	September 1, 2014
	Initial date of distribution calculation:
	September 1, 2014
	Payment date
	30,973,059,423 yen
	Total amount to be paid in (total issue amount):
	109,947 yen per unit
	Amount to be paid in (issue amount):
	32,066,090,343 yen
	Total amount issued (total offering amount):
	113,827 yen per unit
	Issue price (Offer price):
	281,709 units(113,216 units for domestic market,168,493 units for international market)
	Number of new investment units to be issued:
	[Issuance of new investment units through a public offering]
	At the Board of Directors’ Meetings held on August 11 and August 20, 2014, GLP J-REIT resolved to issue the following new investment units. The proceeds from new investment units through a public offering were fully collected on September 1, 2014 while the proceeds from new investment units through a third-party allocation were fully collected on September 24, 2014.
	(a) Issuance of new investment units
	(iii) Significant Subsequent Events 
	In terms of financial strategy, GLP J-REIT will examine such financing activities as extending debt maturities through refinancing, issuing investment corporation bonds and raising funds through public offerings, while closely monitoring the trends in the financing environment. By doing so, GLP J-REIT will work to achieve the optimal balance of financing methods and financing costs. 
	As for external growth strategy, the Asset Manager of GLP J-REIT has entered into a right-of-first-look agreement with Global Logistic Properties Limited, which is the sponsor parent, and its group companies (hereinafter “GLP Group”), allowing GLP J-REIT to preferentially obtain information regarding the sale of logistics facilities with regard to the 24 properties wholly owned by the GLP Group (as of the date of this document). Taking advantage of this agreement as a valuable pipeline and continuously collecting information from third parties regarding prospective properties, GLP J-REIT will pursue further expansion of its portfolio size. 
	In its internal growth strategy, while enjoying the stable cash flows that characterize its portfolio of assets, GLP J-REIT will negotiate for higher rents for lease contracts subject to renewal, giving consideration to market rents, upon the expiration of lease period. At the same time, GLP J-REIT will manage to enhance the value of existing assets by appropriate maintenance of such assets and capital expenditures.
	Under these circumstances, GLP J-REIT is committed to implementing the following measures to further its growth over the medium to long term.
	(ii) Future Management Policy and Matters To Be Addressed
	With regard to the financing environment, financial institutions are expected to maintain their current positive lending policies, and this financial environment will further ensure a steady capital inflow into the J-REIT market. 
	Leasable logistics facilities transactions have exhibited an upward trend due to rising investor interest in such transactions. This trend is expected to continue for a while. The leasing market is also expected to continue steady expansion because: (1) while the supply of new modern logistics facilities is expected to continue, the current growth in leasing demand among tenant companies is expected to absorb the vacancies from such facilities and (2) market shows solid trends in rents.  
	Although some weakness remains in the market due to the reaction after a last-minute rise in demand before a consumption tax rate increase, the Japanese economy is expected to recover owing to the effectiveness of various government policy measures. While favorable investment environment is expected to continue in the short term, it is necessary to continuously monitor the risk of prolonged reactionary effect from a last-minute rise in demand before a consumption tax increase, the trends of the economies of the emerging countries and the resource-rich countries, the outlook of European debt crisis, and the recovery pace of the U.S. economy.
	(i) Operational Environment in Next Fiscal Period
	[Outlook of Next Fiscal Period]
	 With respect to all 44 properties held as of the end of the current fiscal period, the six-month period average of the total amount of the emergency short-term repair and maintenance expenses and the medium- to long-term repair and maintenance expenses, which are set forth in the Engineering Reports dated September 19, 2012, August 20, 2013 and March 20, 2014 for each property prepared by Deloitte Tohmatsu Property Risk Solution Co., Ltd., is 358 million yen. 
	 For the time being, GLP J-REIT intends to make an OPD distribution in the amount equal to approximately 30% of depreciation expenses for the accounting period immediately before the period in which the distribution is made, unless GLP J-REIT determines that the OPD payment would have a negative impact on its long-term repair and maintenance plan or financial conditions in light of the estimated amount of capital expenditure for each fiscal period based on the plan. 
	(Note) GLP J-REIT intends to distribute funds in excess of the amount of retained earnings that do not exceed the amount obtained by deducting capital expenditure for the accounting period immediately before the period in which the distribution is made from an amount equal to depreciation expenses for the corresponding period. The amount obtained by deducting 342 million yen of capital expenditure for the current fiscal period from 1,985 million yen of depreciation expenses for the period is 1,643 million yen.
	In addition, GLP J-REIT intends to distribute funds in excess of the amount of retained earnings (Optimal Payable Distribution (hereinafter “OPD”)) for each fiscal period on a continuous basis, in accordance with the distribution policy set forth in the Articles of Incorporation (Note). Based on this, GLP J-REIT decided to distribute 593,649,100 yen, an amount almost equivalent to 30% of depreciation (1,985 million yen) for the current fiscal period, as a refund of investment. As a result, the amount of OPD per unit was 283 yen. 
	As for cash distribution for the current fiscal period, in accordance with the distribution policy set forth in its Articles of Incorporation, GLP J-REIT decided to distribute 3,970,946,100 yen. This cash distribution is eligible for the special tax treatment on investment corporations (Article 67-15 of the Act on Special Measures Concerning Taxation) and represents the multiple of the number of investment units issued and outstanding (2,097,700 units) from unappropriated retained earnings. Accordingly, distribution per unit for the current fiscal period was 1,893 yen.
	As a result of these management efforts, GLP J-REIT reported operating revenues of 9,322 million yen, operating income of 4,911 million yen, ordinary income of 3,973 million yen and net income of 3,971 million yen for the current fiscal period. 
	(iv) Overview of Financial Results and Cash Distribution
	(Note 2) It is the rating for the 2nd Unsecured Investment Corporation Bond.
	(Note 1) It is the rating for the 1st Unsecured Investment Corporation Bond.
	–
	AA-
	Bond rating (Note 2)
	(Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd.)
	JCR
	–
	AA-
	Bond rating (Note 1)
	(Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd.)
	JCR
	Stable
	AA-
	Long-term issuer rating
	JCR
	Outlook
	Rating
	Type
	Credit Rating Agency
	GLP J-REIT was assigned the following credit rating as of the end of the current fiscal period.
	As a result of the above, outstanding interest-bearing liabilities as of the end of the current fiscal period totaled 149,920 million yen (outstanding loans 141,920 million yen, outstanding investment corporation bonds 8,000 million yen), and the ratio of interest-bearing liabilities to total assets (LTV) was 51.1%.
	In the current fiscal period, GLP J-REIT entered into new loan agreements in the amount of 28,920 million yen in March and 7,700 million yen in April 2014 for the purpose of acquiring aforementioned properties. GLP J-REIT achieved to lengthen debt maturities while reducing borrowing costs, by refinancing 5,700 million yen with new loan contracts in June 2014 and issuing 2,000 million yen of the 2nd 10-year-maturity investment corporation bond in July 2014. Besides, GLP J-REIT further strengthened its financial stability by utilizing interest rate swap contracts to convert variable interest rates of some loans into fixed rates for a long term. 
	GLP J-REIT maintains a target Loan-To-Value ratio (hereinafter “LTV”) of 45% to 55% and operates with a stable financial condition. Under the favorable financing environment, GLP J-REIT also pursues to lengthen debt maturity and reduce its borrowing costs.
	(iii) Overview of Financing
	As a result of these operations, GLP J-REIT owns 44 properties with the total acquisition price of 285,061 million yen and the total leasable area of 1,490,181.13m2 as of the end of the current fiscal period. The occupancy rate of the entire portfolio continued to remain stable, and at the end of the current fiscal period, it was at the high level of 99.9%.
	Moreover, while providing services which satisfy the needs of its portfolio property tenants, GLP J-REIT actively strove to increase rents in an environment of strong demand for logistics facilities. Thus, GLP J-REIT successfully renewed all lease contracts with the same condition or higher rents during the four consecutive fiscal periods since its listing on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
	Under these conditions, GLP J-REIT acquired the following four properties: (1) two properties (total acquisition price 28,500 million yen) in March 2014 pursuant to the Trust Beneficial Interest Transfer Agreement entered on September 3, 2013 and (2) two properties (total acquisition price 7,750 million yen) in April 2014 pursuant to the Trust Beneficial Interest Transfer Agreement entered in March 2014. Thus, GLP J-REIT managed to continuously expand the size of its assets and steadily grow its portfolio while maintaining the quality of its asset portfolio.
	In the leasing market for logistics facilities, although there was an increase in the new supply of large-scale logistics facilities, the new supply space was steadily taken up against the backdrop of the expansion of the third-party logistics (3PL) business and the e-commerce market.
	The favorable financing environment in the real estate market has led to a number of asset acquisitions by J-REIT and increases of its capital through public offerings, while transactions and investments by private placement funds and foreign investors continued to be active.
	During the current fiscal period, the overall Japanese economy is on a recovery trend. Although the reactionary effect was witnessed from a last-minute rise in demand before a consumption tax increase in April 2014, such effect has gradually lessened thanks to the effects of government policy measures. 
	(ii) Investment Environment and Business Performance
	(Note)  New investment units were issued through a public offering on September 1, 2014 and through a third party allocation on September 24, 2014. Please refer to “[Outlook of Next Fiscal Period], (iii) Significant Subsequent Events, (a) Issuance of new investment units” for details.
	GLP J-REIT is a real estate investment corporation (J-REIT) specializing in logistics facilities that primarily invests in modern logistics facilities. GLP J-REIT was founded in accordance with the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations (hereinafter the “Investment Trust Act”) with GLP Japan Advisors Inc. as the founder. It had its units listed on the Real Estate Investment Trust Market of the Tokyo Stock Exchange on December 21, 2012 (securities code: 3281). Subsequently, GLP J-REIT issued new investment units through a public offering in September 2013 and through a third party allocation in October 2013. The number of investment units issued and outstanding as of the end of the current fiscal period was 2,097,700 units with unitholders’ net capital of 129,415 million yen. Moreover, as of the end of the current fiscal period, GLP J-REIT owns 44 properties (total acquisition price of 285,061 million yen). 
	(i) Brief Background of GLP J-REIT
	[Overview of the 5th Fiscal Period]
	(2) Operating Conditions
	Disclosure is omitted, as there are no significant changes from the investment policy, investment targets and distribution policy described in the most recent Securities Report filed on May 26, 2014.
	(1) Management Policy
	2. Management Policy and Operating Conditions
	GLP J-REIT MLGK enters into the Master Lease Agreement for assets held by GLP J-REIT as well as other related agreements with the Trustee.
	GLP J-REIT MLGK earns revenue from master lease agreements for assets held by GLP J-REIT. The average of this revenue for all fiscal periods, starting with this period, for next three years will be approximately 20% or more of GLP J-REIT’s total operating revenue from prior year.
	GLP J-REIT Master Lease Godo Kaisha (“GLP J-REIT MLGK”) is regarded as an “interested party” of the Asset Manager (Since GLPI is its sole shareholder, GLP J-REIT MLGK falls under the category of “Parent Company, etc.” of the Asset Manager under the Act). 
	Regarded as an “interested party” of Asset Manager since it is conducting or has conducted transactions specified under Article 29-3, Paragraph 3, Item 4 (Real Estate Lending Transactions) of Order for Enforcement of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act.
	(hereinafter “GLP J-REIT MLGK”)
	GLP J-REIT Master Lease Godo Kaisha
	Global Singapore Pte. Ltd. owns 100% of the issued shares of GLPI and thus is an indirect holding company of Asset Manager. It does not have a contractual relationship with GLP J-REIT.
	Indirect holding company of Asset Manager
	GLP Singapore Pte. Ltd.
	Based on its Trademark License Agreement with GLP J-REIT and GLPI, GLPHL agrees and acknowledges that GLPI is permitted to sublicense the Licensed Trademarks.
	Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited (“GLPHL”) owns 100% of the issued shares of GLP Singapore Pte. Ltd. and thus is an indirect holding company of Asset Manager.
	Indirect holding company of Asset Manager
	(hereinafter “GLPHL”)
	Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited
	GLPI performs property management services for assets owned by GLP J-REIT based on the Property Management Agreement between the Asset Manager and the Trustee.
	Additionally, based on its Trademark License Agreement with GLP J-REIT and Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited, GLPI agrees that GLP J-REIT operates under GLP group name and logo for its trademarks and properties owned.
	Pursuant to the Sponsor Support Agreement (item (5) in the table above) with the Asset Manager, GLPI provides sponsor support. 
	Global Logistic Properties Inc. (“GLPI”) is the parent company of the Asset Manager with 98.0% ownership of its issued shares.
	Sponsor
	Parent company of Asset Manager
	(hereinafter “GLPI”)
	Global Logistic Properties Inc.
	Pursuant to the Right-of-First-Look Agreement (Item (4) in the table above), GLP provides a right-of-first-look to the Asset Manager with respect to the properties that GLP group companies owns as of the date of this document. 
	GLP owns 100% of the issued shares of Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited and is the ultimate parent company of the Asset Manager.
	Sponsor Parent
	Indirect holding company of Asset Manager
	Global Logistic Properties Limited (hereinafter “GLP”)
	Details of Relationship
	Relationship
	Name
	Specified Related Parties of GLP J-REIT
	Administrator for Investment Corporation Bond
	The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
	Pursuant to the Financial Agency Agreement (Item (3) in the table above) for the 1st Unsecured Investment Corporation Bonds (with special pari passu conditions among specified investment corporation bonds), GLP J-REIT designates Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation as its Administrator for Investment Corporation Bond to perform services including (i) issuing agent, (ii) payment agent, (iii) administrating bondholders’ requests and (vi) record keeping of bondholders’ registry.
	Administrator for Investment Corporation Bond
	Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
	Pursuant to the Transfer Agency Agreement (item (2) in the table above), GLP J-REIT designates Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation as its Transfer Agent for Investment Units to provide services including (i) preparation, administration and maintenance of unitholders’ registry and other records, (ii) tasks relating to administration and record keeping, (iii) dispatch of convocation notices of General Meetings of Unitholders, (vi) preparation and tallying of voting documents, and (v) administration of payment distributions to unitholders, etc. 
	Transfer Agent for Investment Units
	Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
	Pursuant to the General Administration Agreement (item (2) in the table above), GLP J-REIT designates Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation as its General Administrator to perform: (i) the general administrative services (of the administrative tasks prescribed in Article 117, Item 4 of the Investment Trust Act, all tasks except the maintenance of unitholders’ registry), (ii) calculation services (as set out in Article 117, Item 5 of the Investment Trust Act), (iii) administration of accounting records (administrative tasks prescribed in Article 117, Item 6 of the Investment Trust Act, and Article 169, Paragraph 2, Item 6 of the Ordinance for Enforcement of the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations (Ordinance of the Prime Minister’s Office No. 129, 2000) (hereinafter “Investment Trust Act Enforcement Ordinance”)), and (vi) administration of tax payments (administrative tasks prescribed in Article 117, Item 6 of the Investment Trust Act and Article 169, Paragraph 2, Item 7 of the Investment Trust Act Enforcement Ordinance). 
	General Administrator 
	Pursuant to the Asset Custody Agreement (item (2) in the table above), GLP J-REIT designates Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation as its Custodian to provide custodial services.
	Custodian
	Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
	Based on the Agreement, the Asset Manager provides the following services: (i) managing investment assets of GLP J-REIT, (ii) managing GLP J-REIT’s financing, (iii) periodical reporting to GLP J-REIT on assets under management, (vi) formulating investment strategy for assets under management, and (v) all other services requested by GLP J-REIT relating to items (i) to (vi).
	Pursuant to the Asset Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) (item (1) in the table above), GLP J-REIT designates GLP Japan Advisors Inc. as the Asset Manager to manage its assets in accordance with the terms as well as investment policy determined by GLP J-REIT.
	Asset Manager
	GLP Japan Advisors Inc. 
	GLP J-REIT is a real estate investment corporation managing assets by primarily investing in real estate and other assets and seeking steady income and stable growth of investment assets in the medium to long term.
	Investment Corporation
	GLP J-REIT
	Business Function
	Operational Role
	Name
	Names, Operational Roles and Business Functions of Parties in the Structure
	(Note) Details of contractual relationship with other specified related parties, if any, are described below.
	(5) Sponsor Support Agreement 
	(4) Right-of-First-Look Agreement
	(3) Financial Agency Agreement
	(2) Asset Custody Agreement /General Administration Agreement /Transfer Agency Agreement
	(1) Asset Management Agreement
	Type of contracts
	(Note): Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited, GLP Singapore Pte. Ltd. and GLP J-REIT Master Lease Godo Kaisha is each regarded as “Specified Related Party” as defined in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act (the “Act”) since: (i) Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited and GLP Singapore Pte. Ltd. are the indirect holding companies of GLP Japan Advisors Inc. and (ii) GLP J-REIT Master Lease Godo Kaisha is conducting or has conducted transactions specified under Article 29-3 Paragraph 3, Item 4 (Real Estate Lending Transactions) of the Order for Enforcement of the Act and thus is considered as an “interested party” of GLP Japan Advisors Inc. 
	The following summarizes the structure and formation of GLP J-REIT as well as the names and relationships of its related parties as of the date of this document.
	1. Structure and Formation of Investment Corporation
	The forward-looking statements in this material are based on the information currently available to us and certain assumptions we believe reasonable. Actual operating performance may differ substantially due to various factors. Furthermore, those statements do not guarantee the amount of future distributions and distributions in excess of earnings. Please refer to “Assumptions Underlying Earnings Forecasts for the 6th Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015) and for the 7th Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015)” on page 15-17 for assumptions regarding the forward-looking statements.
	* Appropriate use of the forecast of financial results and other special matters
	At the time of disclosure of this report of financial results, the audit procedures for the accompanying financial statements under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act are in process. 
	* The Status of Statutory Audit
	(Note) Please refer notes to “Per Unit Information” on page 38 for the number of investment units used as the basis for calculating the net income per unit. 
	0 Units
	As of February 28, 2014 
	0 Units
	As of August 31, 2014
	(b) Number of treasury units:
	2,097,700 Units
	As of February 28, 2014
	2,097,700 Units
	As of August 31, 2014
	(a) Number of investment units issued and outstanding, including treasury units:
	(2) Number of investment units issued and outstanding
	None
	(d) Retroactive restatement:
	None
	(c) Changes in accounting estimates:
	None
	(b) Changes in accounting policies due to other reasons: 
	None
	(a) Changes in accounting policies due to revisions to accounting standards and other regulations: 
	(1) Changes in accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and retroactive restatement
	* Other
	 for the fiscal period ending August 31, 2015 1,875 yen
	(Reference) Estimated net income per unit:  for the fiscal period ending February 28, 2015 1,950 yen
	2,171
	2,243
	Yen    
	296
	294
	Yen    
	1,875
	1,949
	Yen    
	4,484 [(3.8)]
	 4,661 [17.4]
	Millions of yen [%]
	 4,486 [(3.8)]
	 4,662 [17.4]
	Millions of yen [%]
	 5,616 [(3.0)]
	 5,790 [17.9]
	Millions of yen [%]
	 10,962 [(0.0)]
	 10,967 [17.6]
	Millions of yen [%]
	August 31, 2015
	February 28, 2015
	Period ending
	Distributions per unit(including OPD)
	OPD per unit
	Distributions per unit(excluding OPD) 
	income
	Net 
	Ordinary income
	Operating income
	Operating revenues
	　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　[Percentages indicate period-on-period changes]
	2．Earnings Forecast for the Fiscal Period Ending February 28, 2015 (from September 1, 2014 to February 28, 2015)  and for the Fiscal Period Ending August 31, 2015 (from March 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015)
	6,814
	9,201
	　Millions of yen
	17,808
	32,011
	　Millions of yen
	(27,228)
	(36,291)
	　Millions of yen
	4,765
	6,666
	　Millions of yen
	February 28, 2014
	August 31, 2014
	Period ended
	Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
	Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
	Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
	Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
	(4) Cash Flows 
	63,884
	63,588
	Yen
	52.3
	45.5
	%
	134,011
	133,388
	Millions of yen
	256,107
	293,223
	Millions of yen
	February 28, 2014
	August 31, 2014
	Period ended
	Net assets per unit
	Unitholders’ equity to total assets
	Net assets
	Total assets
	(3) Financial Position
	(Note 3) Retained earnings decreased at a rate of 0.004 and 0.005 for the periods ended August 31, 2014 and February 28, 2014, respectively, due to OPD (refund of investment). These rates are calculated based on Article 23, Paragraph 1 (3) of the Order for Enforcement of the Corporation Tax Act. 
	(Note 2) Payout ratio and distributions to net assets ratio are calculated on the basis of excluding OPD. 
	Payout ratio is rounded down to the first decimal place.
	 Payout ratio ＝ Total distributions (excluding OPD) / Net income (loss) ×100
	(Note 1) Payout ratio for the period ended February 28, 2014 was calculated as follows since new investment units were issued during the period: 
	* “OPD” stands for “Optimal Payable Distribution” that means distributions in excess of retained earnings.
	3.1
	3.0
	%
	99.9
	100.0
	%
	4,593
	4,564
	Millions of yen
	2,190
	2,176
	Yen
	526
	593
	Millions of yen
	251
	283
	　Yen
	4,067
	3,970
	Millions of yen
	　　
	1,939
	1,893
	　Yen
	February 28, 2014
	August 31, 2014
	Period ended
	Total
	Per Unit
	Total
	Per Unit
	Total
	Per Unit
	Distributions to net assets
	Payout ratio
	Distributions(including OPD)
	(OPD)
	Optimal payable distribution
	Distributions (excluding OPD*) 
	(2) Distributions
	50.4
	42.6
	%
	1.7
	1.4
	%
	3.3
	3.0
	%
	1,974
	1,893
	　Yen
	February 28, 2014
	August 31, 2014
	Period ended
	Ordinary income to operating revenues
	Ordinary income to total assets
	Return on unitholders’ equity
	Net income per unit
	 4,068  [14.7]
	 3,971  [(2.4)]
	Millions of yen 　%  
	 4,069  [14.7]
	 3,973  [(2.4)]
	Millions of yen 　%  
	 4,852  [12.8]
	 4,911  [1.2]
	Millions of yen 　%  
	 8,080  [11.1]
	 9,322  [15.4]
	Millions of yen 　%  
	February 28, 2014
	August 31, 2014
	Period ended
	Net income
	Ordinary income
	Operating income
	Operating revenues
	(1) Operating Results　　　　　　　　　 　　　　　　　　　　　           [Percentages indicate period-on-period changes]
	1．Financial Results for the Fiscal Period Ended August 31, 2014 (from March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)
	                                                               (Amounts are rounded down to the nearest million yen)
	Holding of financial results briefing session: 　Yes・No (for institutional investors and analysts, in both Japanese and English)
	Supplementary materials for financial results:　Yes・No (Japanese / English)
	Scheduled date to commence distribution payments:　November 19, 2014
	Scheduled date to file securities report:　November 27, 2014　
	 TEL: +81-3-3289-9630
	Contact: (Name) Yoji Tatsumi, (Title) Head of Finance and Administration Division
	Representative: (Name) Masato Miki, (Title) President & CEO 
	Name of Asset Manager: GLP Japan Advisors Inc.
	Representative: (Name) Masato Miki, (Title) Executive Director
	Securities Code: 3281                   　 　　　　URL http://www.glpjreit.com/ 　　　                                
	Name of REIT Issuer: GLP J-REIT　　　　   　 　　　　　  Stock Exchange Listing:  TSE
	October 15, 2014
	<Under Japanese GAAP>
	For the 5th Fiscal Period Ended August 31, 2014
	SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS (REIT)
	“Tokyo” refers to Tokyo metropolitan area and “Osaka” refers to Greater Osaka area. 
	99,299
	Operating expenses 
	23,071,100
	Current Period
	GLP J-REIT generally invests surplus funds in deposits considering the safety and liquidity of the investment although surplus funds could be invested in securities and monetary claims as a matter of policy.
	(Note 3) “Share” is the ratio of the acquisition price of each property or property in trust to total acquisition price, and rounded off to the first decimal place.
	(Note) Disclosure is omitted as the tenant’s permission has not been obtained.
	298,427
	66,230
	(7)NCF((3)-(6))
	2,911
	－
	(6)Capital expenditure
	232,788
	51,477
	(5)Operating income from property leasing　　　((3)-(4))
	68,549
	14,752
	(4)Depreciation
	301,338
	66,230
	(3)NOI((1)-(2))
	Others
	Casualty insurance
	Repair and maintenance
	Utilities
	Property and facility management fees
	Taxes and dues
	(2)Property-related expenses
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(1)Property-related revenues
	182
	184
	Operating dates
	GLP Komaki
	GLP Hatsukaichi
	Property name
	Other-14
	Other-13
	Property number
	122,030
	48,801
	175,682
	16,025
	142,622
	71,790
	40,296
	(7)NCF((3)-(6))
	－
	2,803
	1,063
	16,476
	－
	－
	1,492
	(6)Capital expenditure
	92,527
	32,917
	129,651
	25,020
	87,270
	47,535
	35,276
	(5)Operating income from property leasing　　　((3)-(4))
	29,502
	18,686
	47,093
	7,481
	55,351
	24,254
	6,511
	(4)Depreciation
	122,030
	51,604
	176,745
	32,501
	142,622
	71,790
	41,788
	(3)NOI((1)-(2))
	Others
	Casualty insurance
	Repair and maintenance
	Utilities
	Property and facility management fees
	Taxes and dues
	(2)Property-related expenses
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(1)Property-related revenues
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	Operating dates
	GLP Kuwana
	GLP Ebetsu
	GLP Sendai
	GLP Tosu III
	GLP Kiyama
	GLP Hayashima II
	GLP Hayashima
	Property name
	Other-12
	Other-11
	Other-10
	Other-9
	Other-8
	Other-7
	Other-6
	Property number
	165,553
	86,944
	122,595
	82,650
	(1,883)
	116,898
	(7)NCF((3)-(6))
	2,286
	12,042
	1,500
	－
	30,846
	－
	－
	(6)Capital expenditure
	127,331
	75,935
	75,257
	58,691
	16,728
	89,455
	41,142
	(5)Operating income from property leasing　　　((3)-(4))
	40,508
	23,051
	48,837
	23,959
	12,233
	27,442
	17,085
	(4)Depreciation
	167,839
	98,986
	124,095
	82,650
	28,962
	116,898
	58,227
	(3)NOI((1)-(2))
	625
	Others
	286
	Casualty insurance
	2,313
	Repair and maintenance
	11,008
	Utilities
	7,209
	Property and facility management fees
	12,214
	Taxes and dues
	33,657
	(2)Property-related expenses
	(Note)
	132,644
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(1)Property-related revenues
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	Operating dates
	GLP Tokai
	GLP Koriyama III
	GLP Koriyama I
	GLP Tomiya
	GLP Morioka
	GLP Rokko II
	GLP Sakai
	Property name
	Other-5
	Other-4
	Other-3
	Other-2
	Other-1
	Osaka-10
	Osaka-9
	Property number
	73,740
	64,091
	602,784
	160,097
	62,093
	221,296
	218,598
	(7)NCF((3)-(6))
	9,780
	－
	13,241
	8,696
	2,605
	15,675
	2,896
	(6)Capital expenditure
	49,103
	52,200
	453,821
	139,875
	57,026
	142,006
	167,024
	(5)Operating income from property leasing　　　((3)-(4))
	34,417
	11,891
	162,204
	28,918
	7,671
	94,964
	54,469
	(4)Depreciation
	83,520
	64,091
	616,026
	168,793
	64,698
	236,971
	221,494
	(3)NOI((1)-(2))
	15,091
	Others
	1,347
	Casualty insurance
	2,684
	Repair and maintenance
	68,822
	Utilities
	46,133
	Property and facility management fees
	72,516
	Taxes and dues
	206,596
	(2)Property-related expenses
	(Note)
	(Note)
	822,623
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(1)Property-related revenues
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	Operating dates
	GLP Nara
	GLP Amagasaki II
	GLP Amagasaki
	GLP Rokko
	GLP Tsumori
	GLP Maishima II
	Hirakata II
	GLP 
	Property name
	Osaka-8
	Osaka-7
	Osaka-6
	Osaka-5
	Osaka-4
	Osaka-3
	Osaka-2
	Property number
	140,391
	27,313
	141,218
	455,433
	189,241
	80,874
	197,370
	(7)NCF((3)-(6))
	3,570
	－
	1,810
	4,740
	－
	3,061
	8,072
	(6)Capital expenditure
	120,301
	23,123
	126,977
	360,511
	148,164
	64,491
	167,458
	(5)Operating income from property leasing　　　((3)-(4))
	23,659
	4,189
	16,050
	99,662
	41,076
	19,444
	37,983
	(4)Depreciation
	143,961
	27,313
	143,028
	460,173
	189,241
	83,935
	205,442
	(3)NOI((1)-(2))
	Others
	Casualty insurance
	Repair and maintenance
	Utilities
	Property and facility management fees
	Taxes and dues
	(2)Property-related expenses
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(1)Property-related revenues
	184
	153
	153
	182
	184
	184
	Operating dates
	GLP Hirakata
	GLP Tatsumi IIb
	GLP Tatsumi IIa
	GKP Urayasu III
	GLP Sodegaura
	GLP Funabashi III
	GLP Hamura
	Property name
	Osaka-1
	Tokyo-20
	Tokyo-19
	Tokyo-18
	Tokyo-17
	Tokyo-16
	Tokyo-15
	Property number
	119,020
	383,144
	240,944
	115,680
	184,695
	508,124
	60,045
	(7)NCF((3)-(6))
	5,720
	1,054
	13,649
	610
	－
	8,327
	13,496
	(6)Capital expenditure
	108,088
	307,490
	200,423
	80,232
	139,463
	371,645
	45,641
	(5)Operating income from property leasing　　　((3)-(4))
	16,652
	76,707
	54,169
	36,058
	45,232
	144,806
	27,899
	(4)Depreciation
	124,740
	384,198
	254,593
	116,290
	184,695
	516,451
	73,541
	(3)NOI((1)-(2))
	1,393
	Others
	1,247
	Casualty insurance
	2,369
	Repair and maintenance
	45,717
	Utilities
	43,895
	Property and facility management fees
	50,888
	Taxes and dues
	145,511
	(2)Property-related expenses
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	661,963
	(Note)
	(1)Property-related revenues
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	Operating dates
	GLP Tatsumi
	GLP Misato II
	GLP Koshigaya II
	GLP Kasukabe
	GLP Iwatsuki
	GLP Sugito II
	GLP Fukaya
	Property name
	Tokyo-14
	Tokyo-13
	Tokyo-12
	Tokyo-11
	Tokyo-10
	Tokyo-9
	Tokyo-8
	Property number
	325,926
	39,970
	341,922
	137,761
	196,975
	99,715
	525,555
	(7)NCF((3)-(6))
	1,820
	9,540
	60,273
	－
	1,550
	57,916
	22,992
	(6)Capital expenditure
	223,283
	40,033
	258,853
	98,871
	170,334
	119,972
	428,186
	(5)Operating income from property leasing　　　((3)-(4))
	104,462
	9,476
	143,342
	38,890
	28,190
	37,659
	120,360
	(4)Depreciation
	327,746
	49,510
	402,195
	137,761
	198,525
	157,631
	548,547
	(3)NOI((1)-(2))
	7,297
	Others
	797
	Casualty insurance
	2,213
	Repair and maintenance
	52,816
	Utilities
	38,204
	Property and facility management fees
	57,118
	Taxes and dues
	158,448
	(2)Property-related expenses
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	(Note)
	706,996
	(1)Property-related revenues
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	184
	Operating dates
	GLP Kazo
	GLP Funabashi
	Narashino II
	GLP 
	GLP Tomisato
	GLP Akishima
	GLP Higashi- Ogishima
	GLP Tokyo
	Property name
	Tokyo-7
	Tokyo-6
	Tokyo-5
	Tokyo-4
	Tokyo-3
	Tokyo-2
	Tokyo-1
	Property number
	The 5th Fiscal Period (From March 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014)                           (Unit in amount: Thousand yen)
	342
	Total
	223
	－
	－
	－
	Other
	9
	From August 2014 to August 2014
	Replacement of air conditioners
	Tosu, Saga
	GLP Tosu III
	25
	From July 2014 to August 2014
	Renovation of South-West exterior wall
	Shiwa-gun, Iwate
	GLP Morioka
	26
	From May 2014 to June 2014
	Replacement of air conditioners
	Kawasaki, Kanagawa
	GLP Higashi-Ogishima
	57
	From May 2014 to August 2014
	Replacement of control board of fire extinguishing system
	Narashino, Chiba
	GLP Narashino II
	Construction cost(Millions of yen)
	Period
	Purpose
	Location
	Property name
	The following table summarizes the major constructions to holding properties that resulted in capital expenditure for the current period. Capital expenditure for the current period was 342 million yen. The total construction cost amounted to 397 million yen, including repair and maintenance of 54 million yen that was accounted for as expenses.
	(b) Capital expenditure incurred for the period
	－
	－
	9
	From June 2015 to June 2015
	Replacement of air conditioners
	Tosu, Saga
	GLP Tosu III
	－
	9
	From December 2014 to December 2014
	Replacement of air conditioners
	Tosu, Saga
	－
	－
	10
	From May 2015 to May 2015
	Renovation of asphalt pavement around an administration building
	Tosu, Saga
	GLP Tosu III
	－
	－
	15
	From June 2015 to August 2015
	Renovation of East exterior wall of warehouse
	Shiwa-gun, Iwate
	GLP Morioka
	－
	－
	35
	From May 2015 to June 2015
	Replacement of water cooled chillers 
	Kawasaki, Kanagawa
	GLP Higashi-Ogishima 
	－
	－
	35
	From April 2015 to June 2015
	Renovation of exterior wall joint of warehouse 
	Funabashi, Chiba
	GLP Funabashi III
	－
	－
	42
	From November 2014 to February 2015
	Renovation of exterior wall
	Hamura, Tokyo
	GLP Hamura
	－
	－
	46
	From October 2014 to February 2015
	Replacement of GR-type receivers
	Koriyama, Fukushima
	GLP Koriyama III
	－
	－
	219
	 From October 2014 to December 2014
	Construction of fire prevention compartment
	Funabashi, Chiba
	GLP Funabashi
	Total amount paid
	Amount paid during the period
	Total amount
	Estimated construction cost(Millions of yen)
	Planned period
	Purpose
	Location
	Property name
	The following table summarizes the major capital expenditure plan in connection with scheduled renovation and others for properties owned as of February 28, 2014. Estimated construction cost includes the amounts to be expensed for accounting purpose.
	(a) Future plan for capital expenditure
	(3) Capital Expenditure for Properties Owned
	(Note 6) “Occupancy ratio” is rounded off to the first decimal place.
	－
	184
	58,227
	(4) Overview of Property Leasing and Status of Operating Income
	GLP Tosu III
	(Note 7) “Number of tenants” is the total number of building tenants stated on the lease agreement of each property or property in trust. 
	(Note 5) “Leased area” is the total area of property or property in trust that is leased in accordance with the relevant lease agreement, and rounded down to the second decimal place. When the property or property in trust is leased through a master lease agreement, the leased area represents the total space actually leased based on the lease agreement concluded with end-tenants. 
	(Note 4) “Leasable area” is the area of property or property in trust that is available for lease in accordance with the relevant lease agreement or architectural drawing, and rounded down to the second decimal place. The leasable area may be changed upon renewal of lease agreement.
	(Note 2) “Appraisal value” represents the appraisal value or research price as set forth on the relevant study reports by real estate appraisers as of the balance sheet date in accordance with the policy prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation of GLP J-REIT and the rules of the Investment Trust Association.
	(Note 1) “Acquisition price” represents the purchase price of each property or beneficiary right in trust as set forth on the relevant purchase agreement and does not include expenses such as consumption taxes. 
	23,455.96
	16,080.14
	7,660
	3,076,915
	(Adjustments)
	Difference
	・ The forecast also assumes 29 million yen of costs that may temporarily incur in connection with issuance of new investment units for the 6th Fiscal Period.
	1,520
	1,244,819,934 yen
	(Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd.)
	Pursuant to the Financial Agency Agreement (Item (3) in the table above) for the 2nd Unsecured Investment Corporation Bonds (with special pari passu conditions among specified investment corporation bonds), GLP J-REIT designates The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. as its Administrator for Investment Corporation Bond to perform services including (i) issuing agent, (ii) payment agent, (iii) administrating bondholders’ requests and (vi) record keeping of bondholders’ registry.

